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16 March 2006

United States Securities and Exchange Commission

450 Fifth Street, NW '

Washington DC 20549 IAG
Insurance
Australia

Group

Dear Sirs,

Rule 12g3 - 2 (b) Exemption Documents: Insurance Australia Group lelted, v
ﬁle no 82-34821 G

Please find attached documents submitted in accordance with Rule 12g3 — 2(b) for
Insurance Australia Group Limited, File no. 82 — 34821.

Yours truly

QLJ¢»¢~Q,LJZ,

Glenn Revell
Company Secretary
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Appendix 3B
New issue announcement

Appendix 3B

Rule 2.7,3.10.3, 3.10.4, 3.10.5

New issue announcement,

application for quotation of additional securities

and agreement:

Information or documents not available now must be given to ASX as soon as available. Information and
documients given to ASX become ASX'’s property and may be made public.

Introduced 1/7/96. Origin: Appendix 5. Amended 1/7/98, 1/9/99, 1/7/2000, 30/9/2001, 11/3/2002, 1/1/2003.

Name of entity

INSURANCE AUSTRALIA GROUP LIMITED

ABN

60 090 739 923

We (the entity) give ASX the following information.

Part 1 - All issues

You must complete the relevant sections (attach sheets if there is not enough space).

1

*Class of Tsecurities issued or to be
issued

Number of *securities issued or to

be issued (if known) or maximum
number which may be issued

Principal terms of the *securities
(eg, if options, exercise price and
expiry date; if partly paid
*securities, the amount outstanding
and due dates for payment; if
*convertible securities, the
conversion price and dates for
conversion)

Fully paid ordinary shares

30,000

On the same terms as existing Ordinary Shares
listed on ASX.

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

1/1/2003
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Appendix 3B
New issue announcement

"4 Do the *securities rank equally in all
respects from the date of allotment
with an existing *class of quoted
*securities?

If the additional securities do not

rank equally, please state:

o the date from which they do

o the extent to which they
participate for the next dividend,
(in the case of a ftrust,

- distribution) or interest payment

¢ the extent to which they do not
rank equally, other than in
relation to the' next dividend,
distribution or interest payment

Yes

5 Issue price or consideration

An exercise price of $1 has been paid by the
holders upon the exercise of the Performance
Share Rights irrespective of the number rights

exercised by the holders, ie $2 in total.

6 Pufpose of the issue

(If issued as consideration for the |

acquisition of assets, clearly identify
those assets)

_Shares were issued on exercise of employee
Performance Share Rights

7 Dates of entering *securities into
uncertificated holdings or despatch
of certificates

31 January 2006

Number

*Class

8 Number and “*class of all
*securities quoted on ASX

1,594,935,408

Ordinary

(including the securities in clause | 3 500,000 Reset Preference
2 ifapp]icable) Shares (IAGPA)
2,000,000 Reset Preference
Shares (IAGPB)
+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
1/1/2003
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Appendix 3B
New issue announcement

10

Number and “*class of all
*securities not quoted on ASX
{including the securities in clause
2 if applicable)

Number *Class
232,564 Options over unissued
shares

Dividend policy (in the case of a
trust, distribution policy) on the
increased capital (interests)

The Ordinary Shares will, from the date of
allotment, carry the right to participate in
dividends

Part 2 - Bonus issue or pro rata issue

11

12

13

14
‘ 15

16

17

18

19

Is  security holder approval
required?

Is the issue renounceable or non-
renounceable?

AR

Ratio in which the *securities will
be offered

S T haT il wefiv. o

*Class of *securities to which the
offer relates

*Record date to  determine
entitlements

Will holdings on different registers'
(or subregisters) be aggregated for
calculating entitlements?

Policy for deciding entitlements in
relation to fractions ‘

Names of countries in which the
entity has *security holders who
will not be sent new issue
documents

Note: Security holders must be told how their
entitlements are to be dealt with,

Cross reference: rule 7.7,

Closing date for receipt of

acceptances or renunciations

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

1/1/2003
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Appendix 3B
New issue announcement

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

Names of any underwriters

Amount of any underwriting fee or
commission

Names of any brokers to the issue

Fee or commission payable to the
broker to the issue

Amount of any handling fee
payable to brokers who lodge
acceptances or renunciations on
behalf of *security holders

If the issue is contingent on
*security holders’ approval, the
date of the meeting

Date entitlement and acceptance
form and prospectus or Product
Disclosure Statement will be sent to
persons entitled

If the entity has issued options, and
the terms entitle option holders to
participate on exercise, the date on
which notices will be sent to option
holders

. Date rights trading will begin (if

applicable)

Date rights trading will end (if
applicable)

How do *security holders sell their
entitlements in full through a
broker?

How do *security holders sell part
of their entitlements through a
broker and accept for the balance?

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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Abpendix 3B
New issue announcement

32 How do *security holders dispose
of their entitlements (except by sale
through a broker)?

33 *Despatch date

Part 3 - Quotation of securities

You need only complete this section if you are applying for quotation of securities

34 Type of securities
(tick one)

(a) v Securities described in Part 1

(b) All other securities

Examplé: ‘restricted securities at the end of the escrowed period, partly paid securities that become fully paid, ermployee
incentive share securities when restriction-ends,-securities issued on expiry or conversion of convertible securities

Entities that have ticked box 34(a) '+~~~ .7 [T L
Additional securitieis; formmg a _li,_eW _clééé qf‘ s:ecurities

[ PO . . N
AR 1] o

Tick to indicate you are providing the information ar | .. . AR )
documents FEESHETERE T I IR SO
e
35 If the *securities are *equity securities, the names of the 20 largest holders of the

additional *securities, and the niimber-and percentage of additional +se(':urities held by
those holders

36 D If the *securities are *equity securities, a distribution schedule of the additional
*securities setting out the number of holders in the categories ’
1-1,000
1,001 - 5,000
5,001 - 10,000
10,001 - 100,000
100,001 and over

37 D A copy of any trust deed for the additional *securities

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

1/1/2003 ’ Appendix 3B Page 5



Appendix 3B
New issue announcement

Entities that have ticked box 34(b)

38 Number of securities for which
*quotation is sought

39 Class of *securities for which
quotation is sought

40 Do the *securities rank equally in all
respects from the date of allotment
with an existing *class of quoted
“*securities?

If the additional securities do not

rank equally, please state:

s the date from which they do

o the extent to which they
participate for the next dividend,
(in the case of a ftrust,
distribution) or interest payment

+ ‘the extent to which they do not
rank equally, other than in’
relation to the next dividend, |
distribution or interest payment

41 Reason " for request for -quotation
now. : :

Example: In the case of restricted securities, end of
restriction period .

(if issued upon conversion of
another security, clearly identify that
other security)

Number *Class

42 Number and *class of all *securities
quoted on ASX (including the
securities in clause 38)

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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Appendix 3B
New issue announcement

Quotation agreement

1

*Quotation of our additional *securities is in ASX’s absolute discretion. ASX may
quote the *securities on any conditions it decides.

We warrant the following to ASX.

. The issue of the *securities to be quoted complies with the law and is not for
an illegal purpose. ‘

. There is no reason why those *securities should not be granted *quotation.

. * An offer of the *securities for sale within 12 months after their issue will
not require disclosure under section 707(3) or section 1012C(6) of the
Corporations Act.

Note: An entity may need to obtain appropriate warranties from subscribers for the securities in order to be able to give
this warranty

) Section 724 or section 1016E of the Corporations Act does not apply to any
applications received by us in relation to any *securities to be quoted and
that no-one has any right to return any *securities to be quoted under
sections 737, 738 or 1016F ofithe Corporatlons Act at the time that we
request that the *securmes be quoted o . .

« We warrant_ that if con_ﬁrmatiqn is required under section 1017F of the
Corporations Act in relation to the *securities to be quoted, it has been
provided at the time that we request that the *securities be quoted.

. If we are a trust, we warrant that no person has the right to return the
*securities to be quoted under section 1019B of the Corporations Act at the
time that we request that the *securities be quoted..

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

1/1/2003
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Appendix 3B
New issue announcement

We will indemnify ASX to the fullest extent permitted by law in respect of any
" claim, action or expense arising from or connected with any breach of the warranties

in this agreement.
B

(U]

4 We give ASX the information and documents required by this form. If any
information or document not available now, will give it to ASX before *quotation of
the *securities begins. We acknowledge that ASX is relying.-on the information and
documents. We warrant that they are (will be) true and complete.

27 January 2006

SIgnhere: e Date: .o
(Group Company Secretary) -

Anne O’Driscoll o
Print name: ettt ———eis ety irraartesbeentrarees

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms:-
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Insurance Australia
Group Limited

ABN 60 090 739 923
388 George Street
Sydney NSW 2000
Telephone 02 9292 8222
iag.com.au

27 January 2006

Manager, Company Announcements Office ))}

Australian Stock Exchange Limited

Level 4, Exchange Centre '

20 Bridge Street IAG

SYDNEY NSW 2000 Insurance
Australia

Group
Dear Sir/Madam
INSURANCE AUSTRALIA GROUP LIMITED (‘IAG’)
MEDIA SPECULATION
In response to media speculation, IAG confirms it is in discussion with China
Pacific Property Insurance Co, Limited about a proposed investment in that
Company.

If any agreement is reached, IAG will advise the market accordingly.

Yours sincerely

-/*(w M/e

Glenn Revell
Company Secretary

i : i "IN sw
SwWarn
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HOW WE'VE
PERFORMED

INANCIAL PERFORMANCE

As at As at
31 Dec 2004 31 Dec 2005
Sm Sm
et premium revenue 3,084 3,085
let claims expense - (2,063) (1,970)
ommission expense I (253) (254)
Inderwriting expense - (549) (584)
Inderwriting profit 219 277
ysurance profit 482 469
let profit attributable to
olders of ordinary shares 452 461
-INANCIAL POSITION
As at As at
31 Dec 2004 341 Dec 2005
Sm $m
nvestments 10,409 10,808
dther assets 4,265 4,548
ntangibles 1,479 1,538
[otal assets 16,153 16,894
>laims provisions and '
snearned premium 10,045 10,363
orrowings and other liab 1,777 2,762
Fotal liabilities 11,822 13,125
Net assets* 4,331 3,769
-quity attributable to IAG shareholders 3,772 3,597
Minority interests 559 172
Total equity 4,331 . 3,769

* The decrease in net assets is largely due to the reciassification of reset
preference shares as liabilities under new internationat financial reporting

standards.

i .
NWUA - sGJIOo

INSURANCE

The Board also plans to return $200 million in surpius capital
to shareholders by 30 june 2006. With around $870 million
in capital surplus to that required to maintain our internal
benchmark and regulatory requirements, we are pleased to
be in the financial position to return capital to shareholders
as well as make further international investments.

PATHWAYS TO GROWTH

To continue to meet our goal of delivering top quartile

shareholder return over the long term, our strategy has been to
seek incremental revenue offshore to supplement our domestic
businesses. : : :

In line with this strategy, we have taken some significant steps to
build an international portfolio of insurance assets, with our initial
focus on’ Asia. We have: v

- signed a memorandum of understanding to invest in 24.9%
of China’s second largest general insurer, China Pacific
Property Insurance Company. If successful, this represents
the largest single investment in China by an Australian
company to date;

- acquired an additional 16.7% stake in Thailand’s Safety
Insurance, taking our shareholding to 38.3%. We are currently
seeking to further increase this holding through an offer to
Safety Insurance shareholders;

-+ acquired an initial 30% stake in Malaysia’s AmAssurance; and

+ acquired Royal & SunAlliance Thailand (now branded NZI),
which is already contributing incrementa! earnings.

Successful completion of all of these investments would enable
us to participate in companies with annual gross written premium
of more than $3 billion, of which the Group would have an interest
in more than $800 miltion, and provide us with a foothoid to
participate in the world’s fastest growing insurance markets.
Further opportunities are in the pipeline and we are confident that
other deals can be executed which add value for shareholders.

@ u _m_\amm_.__ww_w:.ﬁ E :L

OUTLOOK

Looking to the future, we expect to deliver a fuli-year
insurance margin of 14%~-16% and we remain

on track to achieve 10% growth in dividends, barring any
material insurance losses outside our normal expectations.

We will maintain our margins by sticking to our plan of
balancing risk-based pricing while retaining a leading market
position, maintaining strong customer relationships and
continually looking for opportunities to operate our business
more efficiently. At the same time, we will aim to bed down
our investments in Asia, while continuing our search for
further international expansion opportunities.

Beyond the current financial year, we believe the strength
of our franchise and our market position in Australia and
New Zealand, should enable us to deliver returns that are
2%~3% ahead of the insurance market average. And we
remain confident that our Asian platform will generate
value for you, our shareholders.

James Strong
Chairman CEO

Michael Hawker



Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Rule 3.194.2

Appendix 3Y

Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Information or documents not available now must be given to ASX as soon as available. Information and
documents given to ASX become ASX'’s property and may be made public.

Introduced 30/9/2001.
Name of entity Insurance Australia Group Limited
ABN 60 090 739 923

We (the entity) give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.19A.2 and as agent for the
director for the purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act.

Name of Director JOHN ASTBURY

Date of last notice ' v 6 December 2005

Part 1 - Change of director’s relevant interests in securities
In the case of a trust, this includes interests in the trust made available by the responsible entity of the trust

Note: In the case of a company, interests which come within paragraph (i) of the definition of **notifiable interest of a director” should be disclosed.
in this part. | : ) .

Direct or indirect interest " Indirect interest
Nature of indirect interest : Trustee and Beneficiary of superannuation fund.

(including registered holder) Registered holder is Astbury Family Super Fund.
Note: Provide details of the circumstances giving rise to the relevant' | ~ -~ : : o
interest.

Date of change ‘ 1 March 2006

No. of securities held prior to change 1. 10,083 (Direct interest)
26,211 (Beneficiary of Non-Executive
Directors’ Share Plan Trust) .

3. 20,000 (Beneficiary and trustee of a
superannuation fund)

Class Ordinary Shares
Number acquired 9,400

Number disposed Nil
Value/Consideration $50,204.

Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide details and estimated valuation

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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Change of Director’s Interest Notice

No. of securities held after change 1. 10,083 (Direct interest)
2. 26211 (Beneficiary of Non-Executive

Directors’ Share Plan Trust)
3. 29,400 (Beneficiary and trustee of a
superannuation fund)

Nature of change On market trade.

Example: on-market trade. off-market trade, exercise of options, issue of
securities under dividend reinvestment plan, participation in buy-back

Part 2 — Change of director’s interests in contracts

Note: In the case of a company, interests which come within paragraph (ii) of the definition of “notifiable interest of a director” should be disclosed
in this part. .

Detail of contract N/A
Nature of interest N/A
Name of registered holder N/A

(if issued securities)

Date of change N/A

No. and class of securities to | N/A
which interest related prior to

change A
Note: Details are only required for a contract in relation
to which the interest has changed

Interest acquired N/A
Interest disposed N/A
Value/Consideration N/A

Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide details and an
estimated valuation

Interest after change ” N/A

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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Appendix 3Y

Rule 3.194.2

Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Information or documents not available now must be given to ASX as soon as available. Information and
documents given to ASX become ASX's property and may be made public.

Introduced 30/9/2001.

Name of entity -

Insurance Australia Group Limited

IABN 60 090 739 923

We (the entity) give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.19A.2 and as agent for the
director for the purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act.

Name of Director

MICHAEL J HAWKER

Date of last notice

6 December 2005

Part 1 - Change of director’s relevant interests in securities
In the case of a trust, this includes interests in the trust made availabie by the responsible entity of the trust

Note: In the case of a company, interests which come within paragraph (i) of the definition of “notifiable interest of a director?” should be disclosed

in this part. : - e
Direct or indirect interest Direct
Nature of indirect interest T NaA~ 0 e
(including registered holder) :
Note: Provide details of the circumstances giving rise to the relevant !
interest. | S
Date of change 24 February 2006

No. of securities held prior to change

1. 1,210,059 ordinary shares

2. 1000 Reset Exchangeable Securities (RES)
issued by IAG’s wholly owned subsidiary,
1AG Finance (New Zealand) Limited.

Class Ordinary Shares

Number acquired 168,000

Number disposed N/A

Value/Consideration An exercise price of $1 has been paid by the

Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide details and estimated valuation

Performance Award Rights (PARs) holder upon
the exercise of PARs irrespective of the number
rights exercised by the holder, ie $1 in total.

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms:

11/3/2002
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Cnange or DIrector's 1aterest ixotice

No. of securities held after change

1.
2.

1,378,059 ordinary shares

1000 Reset Exchangeable Securities
(RES) issued by IAG’s wholly
owned subsidiary, IAG Finance
(New Zealand) Limited.

Nature of change

Example: on-market trade, off-market trade, exercise of options, issue of
securities under dividend reinvestment plan, participation in buy-back

Exercise of employee PARs.

Part 2 — Change of director’s interests in contracts

Note: In the case of a company, interests which come within paragraph (ii) of the definition of “notifiable interest of a director” should be disclosed

in this part.

Detail of contract

The Insurance Australia Group Share and Performance Award
Rights (‘PAR’) Plan Trust Deed.

Nature of interest

PARs granted by IAG Share Plan Nominee Pty Limited, the
Trustee of the PAR Plan Trust in accordance with the PAR

Plan.
Name of registered holder N/A
(if issued securities)
Date of change 24 February 2006
No. and class of securities to | 1,800,000 PARs
-which interest related prior to
change
Note: Details are only required for a contract in relation
to which the interest has changed
Interest acquired N/A
Interest disposed 168,000 PARs

Value/Consideration
Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide details and an
estimated valuation .

$1. See Part 1 above.

Interest after change

1,632,000 PARs

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

Appendix 3Y Page 2
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INSURANCE AUSTRALIA GROUP LIMITED
ABN 60 090 739 923-
Directory

Austrolxcn Stock Exchonge lelted

ASX code for ordlnory shares: 1AG

ASX codes for reset preference shares: IAGPA (Listed June 2002) and IAGPB (Listed June 2003)
ASX code for Reset Exchangeable Securities: JANG {Listed January 2005)

Compufershore lnvestor Selesty len‘ed ’
452 Jjohnston Street, Abbotsford VIC 3067

Or by mail to

GPO Box 4709

Melbourne VIC 3001

Telephone: 1300 340 488

Email; iag@computershare.com.au
Facsimile: (03) 9473 2470

Website; . www.iag.com.au

Ms Anne O'Driscoll
Group Company Secretary & Head of investor Relations

Telephone: (02) 9292 3169
Facsimile: (02) 9292 3109

Emait: _ anne.o'driscoll@iag.com.ay.

Level 26 388 George S'rree’r
SYDNEY NSW 2000 -
Telephone: {02) 9292 9222

Key dates for shareholders - proposed calendar of events*
Interim dividend - ordinary shares

- 2 March 2006

». Ex-dividend date

» Record date 8 March 2006

» Payment date 10 April 2006
Due date for IANG quarterly distribution 15 March 2006
Due date for IAGPA, IAGPB and IANG distributions 15 June 2006
Announcement of annual results o 30 June 2004 24 August 2006

Final dividend - ordinary shares
» Ex-dividend date

31 August 2006

» Record date 6 September 2006
» Payment date 9 October 2006
Due date for IANG quarterly distribution 15 September 2006
Annual General Meeting 15 November 2006
Due date for IAGPA, IAGPB and IANG distributions 15 December 2006

.Announcement of half year results - 31 December 2006 22 February 2007

*these dates are indicative dates only and are subject fo change.
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1.1

intfroduction

The Group produced another record profit result with net profit after tax attributable to holders
of ordinary shares of $461m, which is a 40.5% improvement on 2H05 ($328m) and 2.0% on 1HOS

($452m).

This result includes an insurance profit before tax of $449m, compared with $465m in 2HO5 and
$482m in 1HOS. This represents an insurance margin of 15.2% compared with 15.5% in 2H05 and
15.6% in THOS,

The result also includes pre-tax income on shareholders’ funds investments of $345m {1THOS:
$285m) following another very strong performance in equity markets,

The increase in the Group's profitability has enabled it to declare a 12.5% increase in its interim
dividend to 13.5 cents per ordinary share. This is consnsten’r with its goal of 10% growth in

dividends per share for FY06.

The Group's capital position, measured as a multiple of APRA's minimum capital requirements
applied to the Group, remains very strong at 2.04x. The Board has resolved to move to return
$200m to shareholders by the end of 2H06.

All figures presented in this report for 1H06 are stated using Australian standards issued as
equivalents to Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS). Comparative information
for THOS and 2HOS has been restated unless otherwise specified. Reconciliations fo the
previous basis of reporting are provided in appendix H to this report.

Operating environment in 1TH06 - Australia and New Zealand

The operating environment Auring 1H06 was challenging, with a further escalation of
competitive pressure in both the personal and commercial lines markets. Despite this, the .
Group delivered an insurance margin of 15.2% in 1HO6, in line with its originat the guidance of
the FY06 margin being between 13.5% and 16.3%.

. The commercial insurance market has continued to experience "soft" conditions. The benefits

of tort reform have justified rate reductions in public liabiiity. while the intermnational insurance
cycle has been the key factor in most other classes. Indusiry reports have indicated rate
revisions in commercial lines averaging around 9%, with particular segments such as the
corporate market and some occupation groups exceeding this average, and the small to
medium enterprises (SME) and other occupation groups being below this average. Although
there have been reports of instances of weakening in policy terms and conditions, there are
no signs that this is endemic. Industry profitability stiil appears to be at acceptable levels,
aithough relatively lower than the previous year as lower priced premium is earned.

The personal lines market has also experienced strong competition, with all major market
participants increasing advertising presence. During 1H06 there was a gradual movement
towards price-based marketing, indicating increasing pressure on profitability in this segment,
even though average price increases have lagged either or both general inflation and claims
inflation for a couple of years. However, there are no signs of a “price war” as price changes
have been minimal.

APRA's statistics on total industry premium revenue (excluding inwards reinsurance) for the
year to 30 September 2005 show a reduction year on year of 0.5% from $22.8bn to $22.7on. A
further fall is. antficipated when the December quarter results are published, given the market
conditions noted above. This contrasts with the Group's expectation of a flat market in the
year to June 2006 when it reported its 2H05 results.

The market conditions in New.Zealand have been broadly similar, although industry premium
growth in the year to September 2005 was 4.1%, as measured by the Insurance Council of New
Zedland.

The Group's share of premium, using these statistics, grew marginally in Austrafia and remained
static in New Zealand.
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+  The Group's strategy for both commercial and personal lines in these market conditions has
been to focus more on defending its profitable business than seeking to grow, by striking a
balance between its discipline on risk-based pricing and maintaining its leading market
position to form the basis for profitability through the industry cycles it faces.

» The Group had an additional challenge in its ability to sustain premium growth during 1H04, as
it generates approximately 43% of its GWP in New South Wales (NSW) and the Australian
Capital Territory (ACT), where economic growth has been very slow relative to the rest of
Australia.

» As aresult of all these factors, GWP reduced by 3. 7% relcr'nve to 1HOS.

3 Further information on the Group's performance and response to the market dynamics are
contained inthe segment commentary in this report.

1.2 International expansion

» - In recognition of the maturity of the Australian and ‘New Zed’lond markets ond the Group's
leading position in them, in 2002 the Group embarked on a srro’regy to expcnd internationally.
Since 30 June 2005, the following results have been achieved:

¢ Completed the .oc_q_u‘isi'rion,,of‘ Royal &. SunAlIionce’s generol insurance operation in
Thailand in July 2005. This business, now renamed IAG Insurance (Thailand) Ltd and
operating under the NZI brand, has been consolidated for the first time cnd centributed
$16m in GWP for the half-year to December 2005;

e Agreed to acquire a strategic stake of 30% in Malaysian insurer AmAssurance Berhad for
' $69m. This business generates around $270m in annual GWP, The Group expecrs this
rronsocrlon 1o Be completed by the end of February’ 2006, °

. "Slgned a memorondum “of undersrchdlng Wwith Ching* ‘Pacific: Insuronce Company to

_ acquire an rnn‘rol srcke of 24.9% iV Chrnc Pacific Proper“ry insuronce Co, Limited, the

" secohd largest general insurer in Chmo Irs reporTed GWP for rhe ren mon’rhs to October
2005 was $2.2bn; and

. ,__‘lncreosed rhe Group s rnvesfmenr in Thar!and s Sofefy lnsurcrnce to 38 3% and made an
offer to acqurre the bolqnce f 'rhe shcres Thrs offeris currenﬂy open cmd puts a value of
opproxrmorely $87m n'rh "hole compony, whrch generores opproxnmorely $100m in
onnucl GWP. )

» . The currenf total combrned cnnuol GWP generored by rhese operorlons is approximately
$3bn. Upon completion of the Group's investments, and calculated on an: equity proportion
basis, the Group's share of this total combined GWP would represent GWP of approximately
$800m. This post-completion share of GWP will provide the Group with a mix of consolidated
revenue, dividend streams, and the reinsurance revenue. The reinsurance revenue from these
investments would most likely take the form of quota share business.

» The Group's share of total combined GWP is likely to rise over the mid-term if regulatory
approvals are given permitting the Group to increase its equity holdings in these investments.

» These investments provide the Group with a foothold to porflClpore in a number of the world's
fastest growing insurance markets, leveraging the Group's world-class skills in motor
underwriting and claims management. Other opportunities are in the pipelne ‘and the
growing recognition in Asia of the Group's expertise in underwriting and claims management
provides growing confidence that further deals can be executed which will add value for
shareholders. : ‘
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1.3 Balance sheeft sfrength

’ The Group’s profitability over the last few years from strong insurance margins combined with
positive gains on equity markets, has led to the accumulation of approximately $870m of
surplus capital as at 31 December 2005. This is based on the excess capital above the Group's
internal benchmark of 1.55x APRA's minimum capital requirements as applied to the Group
figures. '

» The interim dividend on ordinary shares and the servicing obligations on the Group’s reset
preference shares will utilise approximately $230m.

» Taking into account the Group's expectations on the timing and quantum of settling the Asian
transactions announced to date, the eamings prospects of the cumrent operations and the
Group's funding position, the Group is announcing its intention to return $200m of surpius
capital to shareholders during 2H06, in addition to the interim dividend.

» ‘The most efficient form for this additional retum to shareholders is yet to be determined. Buy-
- backs and special dividends are under consideration and alternatives that would utilise some
»of the Group's surplus franking capacity are also being investigated.

» The Group continues to maintain its very strong 'AA’ (stoble} insurer financial strength ratings
from S&P for its key wholly-owned insuronce entities.

» The Group has sustained a probability of ‘adequacy (POA) for all insurance liabilities {i.e.
including the liability on unexpired premium), above 90%. It increased from 90.2% at June 2005
to 90.5% at December 2005. Within this, the Group’s net claims reserves have an estimated
POA of 91.8%, a slight reduction from 92.5% at 30 June 2005.

1.4 Outlook e
> During 2H06 the Group expects to:
e Sustaininsurance margins such that the FY0é margin will be between 14% and 16%;

e  Maintain its market share in Australia and New Zealand, providing pricing is at sustainable
levels;

e - Continue to work on completing the intemational investments noted above and-pursuing:
other opportunities in accordance with its stated strategy; and .

. Undertake a return of capital of $200m to shareholders.

» The Group's outlook for premium growth is dependent on the timing of the completion of the
Asian investments outlined above as these have a material bearing on its growth prospects.

3 At a macro level, the Group expects:

. The Australian and New Zealand insurance markets will continue the historic trends of
growing at 1.5 - 2.0 fimes GDP measured over cycles. The point at which premium rates
rise will depend on a number of external factors in the local economy and international
insurance markets; and

e The rates of growth in premium in the Group's Asian interests will exceed those of the
Australian and New Zealand markets on both the higher economic growth rates in the
region and the increasing penetration of general insurance in these markets as the
populations accumulate more wealth.

» The Group's curent position within the Australion and New Zealand markets is such that it
should be able to sustain returns on equity of approximately 2 - 3% above the insurance
industry average. How this translates into insurance margins depends on an individual insurer's
mix of business from time to time and that insurer's views on capital required to back its
business.
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1.5 Changes in reporting format
»  The financial information in this report has been prepared to reflect the following changes:

e The Group is required to prepare financial reports adopting Australian equivalents to
International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS) for the first time for the year ended
30 June 2006 and has agpplied them for the half year reporting period ended
31 December 200S; and

s The Group has opted to re-classify the results of its captive reinsurer, IAG Re, by allocating
the profit earned by the captive from reinsuring the Group's consolidated operations
back to those businesses on a basis which reflects the profits it eamed from those
businesses. This has been done by adjusting the reinsurance expense in each business.
The Group expects to generate some inwards reinsurance premium in the future from
some of the Asian entities in which it acquires significant equity stakes. The results of any
such operations will continue to be reported as part of the International Business segment.

> As a result of these changes, the financial information provided in respect of both 1HO5 and
2HO0S5 has been restated. The reconciliations of the originally reported results to the restated
financials are available in appendix H of the report. Where information is presented for earlier
financial periods (eg in trend graphs), the information has not been restated for AIFRS as the
data necessary to do this is not readily available. Further details on the AIFRS adjustments are
also provided in the Group's statutory financial statements for 1HOé.

> The financial information for all periods prior to- 1HOS has been resfcn‘ed for the change in
treatment of the resulis of the Group's captive insurer.

»  The changes in treatment of the cophve results noted above are not reﬂected in the Group's
statutory financial statements. The profit is the same in both formats but there are differences
in premium, expenses and investment income on technical reserves, w»th a consequential
miner difference in the reported insurance ratios.

~1
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2. Key Elements Of Haif-year Results

Insurance Australia Group Half-year Half-yea
“ ended ended
Financial Performance ' ' . Dec 04

Gioss written premium

Gross earned premium
Reinsurance expense

Net premium revenue

Net claims expense
Commission expense
Underwriting expense

Underwriting profit ‘
Investment income on technical reserves

Insurance profit
Net corporate expenses
Amortisation '
Interest

- Profit from fee based businesses
Investment income on shareholders’ funds
NSW Insurance Protection tax

Profit before income tax T S
" income taxexpense - v tt T T LGTUET T e, o

Profit after inicome fax

Minority interests =

Profit attributable to shareholders

Dividends paid on reset preference shares

. Profit athributable to holders of ordinary shares

\

Insurance Ratios . :
Loss ratio 66.9%

Expense ratio . - 26.0%
Commission ratio ' 8.2%
Administration ratio : 17.8%

Combined ratio 92.9%

Insurance margin | 15.6%

Halt-year Half-year

Financial Results/Ratios ‘ ended
Dec 04

Profit attributable to holders of ordinary shares (A$m)

Reported ROE % (Average Equily) to holders of ordinary shares pa 29.2%
Normalised ROE % {Average Equity) to holders of ordinary shares pa 21.2%
Net cash flow from operations (A$m) ‘ T $431
Basic EPS {cents) 28.54
Diluted EPS (cents) 28.35
DPS : 12.0C
Probabllity of adequacy of general insurance claims reserves > 90%
MCR multiple — Group 1.85x
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» GWP for 1HOé is 3.7% lower than the prior comparative, period. Of this, 0.2% results from
depreciation in the value of the New Zealand dollar relative to the Australian dollar during
1H04. The GWP trends by division are:

e A fall in GWP in the Australian personal lines business contributed 2.0% of the total

' reduction since 1H05. This is largely due to reduced volumes but was exacerbated by
lower average premiums in its motor and CTP portfolios. This was partly offset by GWP
growth in the home portfolio, with increased average premiums driven by increases in
sums insured and pricing fo take account of claims cost inflation and increases in fire
services levy (FSL) rates in NSW and Victoria. Reduced volumes reflect a combination of:

- Not renewing a large contract with a third party distributor during FYO5 due to’
unacceptable terms;

- . Reldtively poor competitive positioning in NSW directly distributed business for part
of 1H06 due to both price positioning in some areas (which has been addressed)
and competitor activity following negative publicity around the Care. & Repair
initiative; and

- An increasing incidence of price cutting on personal lines products distributed by
intermediaries as part of the reaction to the current soft market conditions in
commercial.

e The fall in GWP in the Australian commercial lines business contributed 2.0% of the
reduction in the Group's GWP relative to 1H0S. This is essentially due to the softening of
rates compared with prior periods. The Group's experience of rate reductions is Iower
than that reported generailly in the market due to its defensive mix of business; and

¢ The International business grew the Group's GWP by 0.3% in Australian dollar terms. This
included $16m from IAG Insurance (Thailand), now trading under the NZI brand since its
acquisition in July 2005. GWP in New Zealand remained relatively stable between 1H05
and 1H06 in New Zealand dollar terms, reflecting softening rates, in .commercial and

PR

mcreosed pricing in personal lines, supported by Jndérlying volume growth

» " The 1HO6 NEP was essentially unchanged relafive to 1HO5 ond grew by 2.6% relo’nve to 2HOS,
reflechng\fhe trends in GWP mentioned above. .

. rates opphcoble to clclms reserves, whlch had q correspondmg negchve impact on

" inVestment - income ™ ontechnicdl~ reserves (1hrough copxtol losses). Excluding this, -the
immunised loss ratio of 64,4% on an immunised basis, has remoxned relatively sfoble compared
10 64.8% in 1HOS and 65.2% in 2HOS5. -

»  The expense ratio has increased from 26.0% in 1HO5 to 27.1% in 1H04. The com'mis‘sion ratio was
stable. The most significant factors in the change in the administration ratio are:

e  Fire services levy assessments that highlighted the levy allowances in premium (which
were in accordance with ICA recommendations) were insufficient to fund the levies,
which are assessed in arears. Levies are collected on premium when written but the
amount poyable is not assessed by the fire brigades authorities untit up to 18 months ofter
the premium has been written. These assessments plus an adjustment for higher
anficipated assessments in 2006 added $36m or 1.2% to the administration ratio;

¢ A reduction in the quantum of acquisition costs that can be deferred given the reduced
premiums. In 1HOé, acquisition spending was lower than prior periods, comesponding with
GWP trends. Therefore, the administration cost in 1HO6 includes the recognition of higher
acquisition expenses from prior periods combined with the deferral of lower acquisition
expenses in 1HO6, resulting in a net expense that added $35m or 1.1% to, the expense ratio
relative to 1H0S. In prior pericds, this resulted in a credit to expenses;

s Increased marketing expenditure. The advertising spend was up about $10m; and

¢ Delivery of expense savings, partially offsetting these increases in the ratio. During 1HOS,
$18m of the targeted annual savings of $31m in Ausiralian personal lines and $5m of the
targeted annual savings of $10m in Australian commercial lines division were delivered.
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» Corporate expenses remained at the higher level incured in 2HOS, reflecting the ongoing
activity pursuing Asian expansion opportunities.

> Amortisation relates to intangibles, essentially capitalised IT management contracts.

»  Theincrease in inferest expense of $18m is mainly attributable to the $15m in dividends paid to
reset preference shareholders now being treated as interest expense under AIFRS. Due to
transitional provisions adopted in respect of financial instruments, the prior periods have not
been restated for this change in treatment.

» The interest expense and investment income in respect of reset exchangeable securities (RES)
has been offset in “investment income on shareholders’ funds”, in accordance with AIFRS.

» The fee based business incurred a net loss of $1m. Losses were incumred in the Group's Chinese
roadside assistance operation as it continues to invest in expansion. This offset the small profit
from fee based businesses in the Australian Commercial Lines business.

» The strong equity market retums were the key driver of the investment returns on shareholders’
funds increasing by $60m from 1HO5 to $345m. The return on shareholders’ funds investments
was a yield of 13.9% in 1H06 compared to the THOS yield of 11.9% (these yields exclude retun
on the surplus capital fund and are not annualised).

»  The NSW Insurance Protection Tax, levied on shareholders since the HiH failure in 2001, remains
‘ in force and costs the Group approximately $21m per annum.

» The effective tax rate remains around 30%.

» Earnings per share increased to 29.06c per ordinary share, essentially in line with the movement
in profits — the number of shares on issue only increased by 0.6m or 0.04% during the period.

Insurance Australia Group Limited - ABN 60 090 739 Page 7



= Rustrana
Group

" A. Group Insurance Ratios

Expense ratio

30.0%
25.0%
20.0%
15.0%
10.0%

50%

0.0% J
2H04 108 2HD5
@ Administration ratio & FSL anpact

Combined ratio

100.0% 91.4% 90.8% 91.9%
50.0% 4+ — -
80.0% 1
70.0% 4+
60.0%
50.0%
40.0%
300% +
200%
10.0%
0.0%

2H04 1HS - 2H05 -
. mmm Combhed Ratio

Notes to Graphs:

= Commission ratio

e irrrunis ed Combined ratio

1+H06

91.5%

80.0%

70.0% +

60.0%

50.0% t+

40.0%
30.0%
200%
10.0%

0.0%

18.0% 1
18.0%
14.0%
12.0%
10.0%
8.0%
6.0%
4.0%
20%
0.0%

Loss ratio

65.2% 64.4%

I I I l

2HM 1HDS 2HDS 1HOE
ez Loss Ratio m— imyrunsed LOSs ratio

Insurance margin {before tax)

2H04 1H05 2H5 1HG

e Only 1HO5 and subsequent periods have been restated for AIFRS.
« The re-cliocation of the Group's captive applies to all periods displayed above.
s« The immunised loss and combined ratios are determined by assuming constant bond yieids within each

reporting period.

Reported loss ratio
Discount rate effect
Immunised loss ratio
Expense ratio

Immunised combined ratio

641% . 669%

08% (2.1%)
64.9% 64.8%
26.5% 26.0%
91.4% 90.8%

Half-year
ended
" Jun 04

Half-yeai
ended
Jun 0§

Halt-year
ended
Dec 04

Half-yea

» The Group has sustained very stable results reflecting both its disciplined approach fo risk-
based underwriting and the diversity of its portfolio within Australic and New Zealand. During
1HD4, some savings on the net claims expense — generating a lower loss ratio — were offset by
some increased expenses, most notably the fire services levy adjustment noted earlier.

) The marginal increase in the immunised combined ratio relative to 1H05 and decrease relative
to 2HOS5, as shown in the table above, mask the following underlying experience:

¢ In 2HO5 the Group experienced $100m more in gross losses from storms relative to both
1HO5 and 1H0é, which both experienced similar levels of storm activity;

e Whilst 1HOé experienced a lower level of storm related losses, the incidence of large
commercial property losses increased by $19m (net of reinsurance) compared to 1HOS;

s Very benign claims experience in New Zealand during 1H0é; and

e Continuing favourable experience relative to reserving assumptions for commercial
liability classes while inflation assumptions for future claims for the NSW and ACT CTP
portfolios had to be increased, following an upwards frend in average weekly eamings
which exceeded the Group's previous assumptions.

’ The average of the yearly insurance margins since listing in August 2000 is 11.9%, although this
average needs to be used with caution as only FY05 has been restated for AIFRS.
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B. Results by Business Area

Insurance

Australia Group

General Insurance

International

Insurance Australia Group Limited

ST

ium

R

oss writen prem

Personal

lines

Rt
1,934

Corporate & Investments

Corporate
Costs

Corp Halt-yeas
Comm. Inter 2 ended

lines national Invt Dec 05

973

Gross earned premium - } 524
Reinsurance . ' 2 T 93 '(8'5) (57)

" Net premium revenue” U 1,880 738 S ae7 .
Net claims expense (1,289) 7 (409) T (272) (2.063)
Commission expense (122) (86) {46) (253)
Undenwriting expense (342} (165} (77) {549)
Underwriting profit 127 78 72 219
investment income on technical reserves 119 59 14 263
insurance profit ‘ 244 137 86 482
Net corporate expenses ' (15)
Amortisation (6}
interest (28)
Profit/(loss) from fee based businesses 1 (3) ' 10
Investment income on internal funds ' 285
NSW Insurance Protection Tax ' (19]
Profit before income tax 244 138 83 718
Income tax expense ' {205)
Profit after income tax 513
Minority interests: IMA & MCGI {4¢)
Profit athributable to shareholders 457
Dividends on reset preference shares {15)
Profit attributable to holders of ordinary
shares 452
Basic earnings per share (cents) 28.54
Diluted earnings per share (cents) 28.35
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Australian Personal Lines

Australian Personal Llines

Gross written pi

Half-yean Half-yeat
ended ended
Dec Jun 05

Half-yeal

Gross earned premium 1,986
Reinsurance expense (83)
Net premium revenue 1,903
Net claims expense {1.268)
Commission expense (114)
Underwriting expense (331
Underwriting profit 190
Investment income on technical reserves 158

Insurance profit
Insurance ratios

Loss ratio 66.6%
Expense ratio ‘ 23.4%
Commission ratio 6.0%
Administration ratio 17.4%
Combined ratio 90.0%
Insurance margin {before tax} 18.3%

348

Expense ratio

25.0%
20.0%
15.0%
10.0%

" 5.0%

0.0% . . .
2+04 1HDS 2H05 1H)6
n Administration ratio u Commission ratio

Combined ratio
120.0% ’

. 80.0%
70.0%
60.0%

50.0% 1
40.0% +
300% 4
200%
10.0% +

0.0%

wama Loss Ratio

e TVTUNIS @A LOSS FRLO

Insurance margin (before tax)

94.8% 200%
: 93.7% 18.0%
100.0% 87.8% 88.5% 2

o 16.0%

80.0% 1 14.0% -
60.0% | 120%

10.0% -

40.0% - 8.0% 1
) 6.0%
200% ¢ 40%
0.0% A 20%
204 1H5 2H05 1HOB 0.0%

e Combined Ratio e immunised Combined Ratio 2H04 1HOS 2HD5 1H06
Notes to Graphs:

¢ Only 1HOS and subsequent periods have been restated for AIFRS.
« The re-cliocation of the Group's-caplive applies to all pericds displayed above.

e« The immunised loss and combined ratios are determined by assuming constant bond yields within each
reporting period.

. Insurance Australia Group Limited - ABN 60 090 739
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V4 A Austratia
Group

A. Operational Results

»

Australian Personal Lines delivered a margin of 13.1% for 1H04. This represents an improvement
from the 2HOS margin of 12.7% and a decline from the 18.3% margin in 1HOS. it reflects a very

- strong performance from short-tail personal lines offset by the lowest margin experienced on

long-tail personal lines (CTP) for a number of years.

Reserve strengthening for inflation assumptions on future claims of $68m for NSW and ACT CTP
reduced the margin by 3.6%. This arose from the index of Average Weekly Earnings (AWE)
growing at about twice the expected rate during the past year or so.

GWP reduced by 2.0% relative to 2H05 and 3.3% compared to 1H05. The volume of risks-in-
force reduced by 1.6% from 2H05 and 1.8% from 1HOS5.

The Group has not changed its view that aiming to sustain margins that deliver at least 1.5x
WACC is more valuable over time than gaining market share by dropping margins. It will
continue to defend its franchise by making pricing adjustments where supported by the profits
being generated from the relevant porifolio and working on customer service initiatives to
sustain its renewal rates.

The reinsurance expense has fluctuated in line with the division’s share of the results of the
Group's captive.

The 1HO6 net claims expense includes a favourable adjustment of $8m (0.4%) of NEP arising
from an increase in discount rates applied to claims reserves. This compares with an
unfavourable adjustment of $28m (1.5%) and $8m [0.4%) for 1HO5 and 2HOS5, respectively.
Corresponding capital losses and gains within the technical reserves income virtually negate
the effect in the insurance margin in each reporting period.

The Group’s focus on risk-based underwriting and claims processes continues to be exhibited
in the stability of the underlying loss ratio over the last 18 months. The THO6 loss ratio,
immunised for discount rate movements of $8m wos 690 Key factors to - consider when
comparing these loss’ rcmos are: . ‘

. The $68m expensed in 1H06 for increased mﬂohon oIIowcmces in CTP NSW and ACT; ond

. The high cost of storms reported i in ?HOS relative to both 1HOS cnd 1HO6.

_ The expense rafio of 24.7% is in line with 2H05 (24.9%) and 1.3% higher than 1HO5. In doliar

" “terms, thére has been an increase of approximately $10m in edch half on an expense base of -

over $440m. The increase of $10m between 2H05 and 1H0é should be considered in the
context of:
. Additional fire services levies of $14rm. The estimates provided as a basis for collecting the

levy proved inadequate to fund the final amount levied by the fire brigades authorities,
and provisions also needed to be increased for the 2006 levies;

. Incremental advertising spend of $10m more than 1H05; and

s A lower level of acquisition expenses being defemed as a result of the lower volumes of
business. This increased net expenses by $14m relative to THOS.

The realisation of other expense efficiencies enabled the total increoseito be contained at
$10m from 2H05. Of the $31m in annual savings targeted for implementation during FYDé,
$18m had been implemented by 31 December 2005.

Increased commission is- attributable to a combination of the higher profitability of indirectly
distributed personal lines and some increases in marketing allowances paid to distributors.

Insurance Australia Group Limited - ABN 60 090 73¢9 Page 11



B. Premiums and market share

B.1 Shori-tail personal lines - Premiums

y o Business volume for the short-tail personal lines portfolic reduced by 1.5% from 1H05. Over half
the volume lost was in intermediated personal lines sold through the CGU brokers/agents and
by financial institutions. ‘

»  As noted in the 1HOS réport, the Group re-priced some of the third-party branded/distributed
personal lines business to ensure the premiums appropriately reflected the risks. This resulted in
one contract in particular not being renewed. The underlying policies for approximately $21m
of GWP expired over the past year. The profitability has improved and new partnerships are
providing oppor‘tunmes for profitable growth.

> Commercial insurance compehtors apparently pricing personcl lines as an “accommodation
class” within commercial insurance offerings as part of their response to the cumrent soft cycle
was a further contributing factor in reduced volumes in intermediated personal lines.

» Ongoing price monitoring undertaken by the Group indicated that competitor prices for
motor and home insurance were not moving up in line with increased input costs.  For
example, it became apparent that some competitors absorbed the increased stamp duty
levied on home insurance ln NSW from September 2005. ’

> As 1HOé progressed, and given rhe sTreng’fh of the margins being delivered, price reductions
were selectively mplemented in the motor portfolio. These adjustments were focused on
those areas where margins were srrongesf and pnce positioning relc’nve to competitors
justified it. The changes.were supported by. Iocol morkehng cnd have re generofed volume in
‘fhe 1crgeted areas nn recen’r monrhs

R

IR The cus‘romer retennon rcre for rhe durectly drstnbuted mofor ond home insurance portfolio
w0 - was:close 16,.90% czr 3.1 December 2005 cnd hqs srpce reiumed To over.?: % oy

T Reliable 1ndusfry-w1de statistics on the total personol hnes mcrkef Terain elusive. However
using available subsets such, cs Insuronce Statistic Australia. Limited, {ISA) data, the Group
estimates it has lost about 1% market share ih Rome insurance and 2% in car msuronce over
the year toiDecember2005:. This! wrno’nonol .data and:there are differences by State,

< The Group:s average. premlum forthome insurance has.risen:by 5.1%:while theg increase for

exclude the cost of fire services levies and stamp- duties, both of whlch hove increased in NSW
and Victoria dunng 1HOé. P

» When FSL and stamp duties are included, the Group’s average premium for the home
portfolio has increased by 12.2% over the last 12 months. This was largely due to inflation in
home building costs.  The remainder of the increase was driven by:

e Anincrease in the proportion of directly distributed home policies with additional optional
covers from 41% to 46%,;

¢ Wetter weather patterns leading to a greater frequency of weather related events. There
has been an increase in significant events in Queensiand particularly;

e Anincrease in fire services levies dunng the period. These now represem‘ 5% of average
premium in NSW and Victoria metropolitan areas, and 19% of average premium in rural
Victoria. Stamp duty in NSW also increased during the period from 4% to 9% of average
premium,.

»  The growth in average motor premium continues to be limited by the declining trends in motor
vehicle insured values. This is due to lower prices for new and used cars and, following higher
fuel prices, some switching by consumers to smaller motor vehicles. According to figures
published by the Federal Chamber of Automobile Industries, sales of large cars are at their
lowest in 14 years — down by 15.6% on 2004. Small car sales increased by 18.8% and four wheel
drive vehicle sales increased by 4.1% - more than the growth rate of the total new car market
which was 3.4% on 2004. :

Insurance Australia Group Limited - ABN 60 090 739 ‘ Page 12
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B.2

The Group has continued its strategy of cross-selling and up-selling into its existing customer
base. For example, the number of direct comprehensive car policies with additional options
has increased by 72% on the prior comparative period, with one in five of all direct
comprehensive car policies now including optional covers, such as car hire while a vehicle is

off the road.

Motor insurance has continued to become more affordable. As at December 2005 (latest
available AWE statistics at September 2005), the average premium in NSW equated to 53% of
one week's earnings (based on published NSW average weekly earnings) compared with an
average of 60% over the past 7 years.

NRMA Car Insurance (NSW) Affordability Index

80% §
@
75% £
Q
g 70% g."
< @
E  ex%
E Average 60%
5 0 g ¥ R N L
55%
50% T T T - T T — T - -
2 B & a‘b £ 0 N Q\ & & P R T I $ b &
. 0-. \‘ X oex 0-. \\‘ vé Q) z“ \“ \~" Jﬁ' QF \" s“ ”') 0" \\‘0 vo“ 1? 0‘ \34'\, “e \”) ()" v\* \‘ "3 Qt

. Quarter ended
Futl time adut ordinary time earningsi ~ Gross ‘pay ‘tefore tax and overtime.: Only full-tie adutt employee jobs. (Source: ABS)

N

-Long-ta:l personal lines - Premwms

i*The Iong -tail personol lmes pOI’TfOlIO underwnfes C*P busnnass m NSW the ACT and Queenslcnd
. with the following'market share frends for lHOé Tt : : ‘

0  The Group remoms the sole’ provxder of CTP m the ACT

o. = During 1HO4, the Queensland market share again :ncreosed by 0. 2% to 2.4%. Volume hos
. increased by 17.3% since 1H05. Renewal rates remain steady at 89%; and

s Competitor activities in NSW led to a further decrease in market share (based on premium
on a rolling 12 month basis) from 39.4%. to 37.9% during 1HO6. Market share based on
motor registrations decreased from 40.1% at June 2005 to 39.6% by 31 December 2005.
Weekly data on CTP share as a proportion of registrations shows some market share is
being regained recently following advertising of 1he Group's “at fault” driver cover, @
unigue feature in the NSW CTP market.

* Meanwhile, CTP rates in NSW have not changed materially since July 2004 and CTP rates in

Queensland continued to reduce as scheme benefits are realised.

The 1HO6 GWP in the CTP portfolio declined by 6.4% from 1HOS5 driven by the loss in market
share and a 2.1% reduction in average premium since 1HO5. This reduction in average
premium is due o the improving mix of risks in the portfolio, including a lower proportion of

higher risk business.
Customers continue to benefit from the continuing improvement in the affordability of CTP, as

demonstrated on the following chart, which records the benchmark “Sydney Best Metro Rate”
against average weekly earings (September 2005 is the latest data available).

Insurance Australia Group Limited - ABN 60 090 739
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B.3 Customer focus/measures

3 Customer retention in directly distributed personal lines wos close to 90% at 31 December 2005
and has since returned fo over 90%.

» Direct retail customer sohsfochon continues to be momfclned at above 80% for all brands and
the-number of complaints as a percentage of direct personal lines risks in-force has declined in
.the past-six months and.continues to be below.0.02%. ...

»  Claims satisfaction remains between 87% and 89%.

»  The business is now managing its interactions with customers through the Single Customer View
© tool, which'was implemented for the directly distributed business in November 2005 to provide
+ the Group with-a more-customer centric: view. . This tool provides consolidated information on
“each customer and dllows pefsannel: to: more effectively manage ‘customer product and

_service requirements, ehm:ncfes inefficiencies dué-to’ duphcohon and improves the furnoround R

" Yime of customer resoluflon “Some-of- the funchonoh'fy provided by-the system is:-

e A clearer plcture of the Group s customers by: giving the ability to view a customer’s
details and the policies they hold in a single view, particularly when used by frontline and
customer support employees;

e More accurate and faster identification when Iocbﬁhg customers on the database;

e Identification of customers eligible for'loyol'ry discounts and further automation of the
application of the appropriate discounts {such as multi-product or linked policy
discounts); and

e  Reduction in operational costs generated by issues such as the cost of returned mail and
the time it takes to update multiple customer records. .o

C. Claims experience & frequency

C.1 Short-tail personal iines - Claims

D Claims experience during the period was in line with expectations and produced a better loss
ratio than the same period last year. Claims frequency is slightly better for both the motor and
home portfolios than for the same period last year while average claims costs have generally
been higher than the previous year.

> Storm experience was slightly worse in 1H06 than in 1HOS5, costing $115m on a gross basis in
1H04 [1HO5: $106m). Queensiond’s experience was significantly worse than the prior period
which reinforces the Group's strategy of maintaining a relatively low exposure to the north east
area of Queensland.
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» Overdll claims frequency within the motor portfolio has slightly improved over the last 12
months and continues to outperform the market. {per ISA stafistics). The Group has
experienced a slight reduction in NSW, which is believed to be attributable to the rising fuel
prices, and improvement in Western Australia foliowing the implementation of risk based price
improvements. .

» Car theft numbers decreased during 1H06 but the average cost incurred per claim for stoien
vehicles continues to increase bringing the net position in fine with prior years.

» The underlying cost components of claims experienced varying levels of inflation during the
last year:

¢ ABS data records an increase of 7% in residential building costs and a 2.8% increase in
house building materials over the past year;

. Construction industry wages growth for the year to September 2005 (latest available) was
4.8% (ABS); and

¢ Labour content for motor repairs, has increased by 1.14% from July to December 2005.

» Car parts price increases outweighed price decreases to push the weighted average cost of
car parts up by 1.25% during 1H04. This is less than the increase in the “All Groups” CPI for the
same period (1.5%), but it is a greater increase than was experienced during 1HOS {0.86%).
There is some- evidence that this price restraint is the result of strong competition in the parts
marketplace, combined with lower import tariffs on car parts. Prices of car parts would be
even lower if fransport costs had not been pushed up by the increased price of fuel. The
Australian dollar remains strong against the currencies of our major parts suppliers. This has
helped reduce the impact of higher energy costs.

» The Group continued to improve its claims processes and supply chain management during
1HO6. The maqjor initiative for motor claims was Care & Repair. Under Care & Repair,
customers are encouraged to bring their vehiciesto a Care & Repair centre or, if the vehicle is

-not :drivable, it is. towed to the nearest centre. - The cicim-and repair of the vehicle is then
T monoged by-the Group fromthis point, reieasing the customer from this burden. »

-» Since-10 July, Care & Repair: cenfres in mefropohfcn NSW have opened adding to fhe centres

- ..dready operating in Queensiand, Western Australia- and -South-Australia.  Of these, Hornsby

-+ ..and Northern Beaches operate as.a “we ‘come to you-.or drve in service”. QOver 36,000

r 7 customers have used the NSW centres between opening and 31 January 2006. The Group

~ now. uses 408 preferred smash repairers {PSR) in. NSW The cus'romer response to the Care &
" Repair experience has been very positive. -

> During 1HO4, procurement models implemented in the home portfolio were embedded in the
claims and assessing process. The models were designed to complement the region specific
requirements of the Group's claims and assessing centres while promoting customer service.
Cost savings are evident in.the improved average claims costs for contents claims. The Group
also expects to see improvements in the buildings portfolio with the roll-out of consistent
management of builders in March 2006, coupled with the efficiencies gained from using the
new system that underpins the interaction with prefered builders.

» During 1HO6, independent surveys showed customer satisfaction levels for motor and home
claims have been sustained between 87% and 89%.

»  External complaints as a percentage of claims lodged continue to trend down and is below
0.05% or 1 in 2,000 ciaims.

C.2 long-tail personal lines - Claims

» Claims frequency in the NSW CTP portfolio remained relatively stable, although there is recent
evidence of a small reduction in frequency due to improvement in quality of the portfolio. The
Queensland portfolio is still showing improving frequency in a quite stable scheme.

> Claims settlements from the NSW Claims Assessment of Review process {CARs) remain within
the Group’s reserving estimates.
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The most significant development in the long-tail claims wr'rhrn Australian Personal Lines was the
“increase in inflation assumptions recognised in the claims réserving for NSW and ACT CTP. The
Average Weekly Eamings index (AWE) as published by the ABS has been a strong indicator of
inflation in this portfolic. In the year to September 2005, the latest available information, the
. AWE in NSW increased by 8.2%. This compares with a historic trend of about 4% per annum
and has led fo an increase in reserves of $68m, adding 3.6% to the loss ratio in THOé.

The Group is considering what changes are required in both the NSW and ACT CTP schemes to
ensure prices reflect the.current experience.

C.2.1 Life-time Care

»

o
-

The NSW government announced in December 2005 that it will implement d Life-time Care
scheme for catastrophically injured motor vehicle claimants. The government scheme is
expected to begin in January 2007.

The government scheme will be funded partly by the imposition of an additional levy on the
insured from July 2006 and partly funded from the existing premium base of the insurers (which
will no longer be needed for medical and care costs of the catastrophically injured relative to
the existing CTP scheme). '

The main features of the Life-time ‘Care scheme are:

e Drivers deemed at fault in accidents ‘will now be’ covered and provrded some
compensohon and . :

¢ Lump sum pcymem‘s to clormonts for medlcol ond core componen’rs wrll be replaced
with a Llfe time Ccre scheme

I

) The Group” es’rrmcrtes fhot the govemmer*t scheme! wrll coprure opproxrmotelv 11 - 13% of NSW

CTPrevenue, resultingtin-about a 1% redudtiorin revenue: for the: Group: Therecmrngs impact

,from rhe loss of revenue, ns expected to be rmmc:ferrol

-There is hkely fo be Q. motencl caprrcl refease over frme from rhrs chonge as a resulf of the .

reduced exposuresto;one.ofthesmore volatile and longer tail elements of the claims exposure.

- -However, thisicannot;be quantified, in terms: of fime or. -quantum;-until more-specific details of
e __rhe scheme, lfs cdmrnrsirchon cnd frc:nsr’nonoi crrongemenrs are resolved Co

- =8 - 5 o~ et adt .- - _"r' -
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Australian Commercial Lines

‘ . Half-year Haif-year Half-yea
Australian Commercial Lines ' : : ended ended ended

Dec 04 Jun 05 Dec 05

25

Gross written premium

Gross eamed premium : 831
Reinsurance expense (95}
Net premium revenue 736
Net claims expense {524)
Commission expense ' o (50)
Underwriting expense (147)
" Underwriting profit (25)
Investment income on technical reserves 93
Insurance profit 68
Profit from fee based business 11

Total commercial line result
Insurance ratios ' 4 ) .
Loss ratio 71.2%

Expense ratio o 32.2%
Commission ratio ) ) . 12.2%
Administration ratio ‘ - _ . . 20.0%

Combined ratio 103.4%
Ansurance margin (before tax}] -~ - : ’ o B 2.2%

_ 35,0"/; o ’ h "Expense ratio Bo‘o;,e‘ ‘ " 27 Losstatio - L -
e 3008 . S00% 7 ees% . 862% . .. . -
w00 R 5 S

"250%

2HD4 1HOS 2H05 1H06 2H04 1H5 205 1106
w Administration ratio = Commission ratio . . .
: maa Loss Ratio ===fmmmunised Loss ratio

Combined ratio
120.0% + 24.0%
99.4% - 98.4% 22.0% 4
20.0%
18.0%
18.0%
14.0%
12.0%
10.0%
8.0%
6.0%
4.0% 4
2.0% {
0.0%
2HD4 1HOS 2H0S 1HO6 2H04 1H05 2H0S 1H06

memm Combined Ratio == Imrrunised Cormbined Ratio

fnsurance margin (before tax)

100.0% +

80.0%

60.0%

40.0%

20.0%

0.0%

Notes to Graphs:
e Only THOS and subsequent periods have been restated for AIFRS.
* The re-allocation of the Group's captive applies to all periods displayed above.,

» The immunised loss and combined ratios are determined by assuming constant bond yieids within each
reporting period.
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A. Operational Results

» In spite of the challenging premium environment, Austration Commercial Lines delivered a
~ profit of $138m and an insurance margin of 18.6%. The profit was in line with the 2H05 profit of
$141m and well ahead of the 1HO5 profit of $79m. This was achieved by focusing on
underwriting discipline, fisk selection and maximising retention through value add/product
extension strategies. /

»  The softening commercial market and competitive pressure continued to intensify during the
pericd, which affected both price and volume performance during 1HO6. The reported GWP
for 1HO6 of $761m was 8.0% lower than 1HO5 and 12.2% lower than 2H0S.

»  The GWP trend in this business is in line with the Group's ongoing strategy to balance market
positioning and maintain underwriting discipline in the current insurance cycle to manage for
sustainable, profitable growth in this portfolio.

’ The reductions in volumes and trends were not uniform by class or customer grouping. For
example:

e  Premium rates in liability reduced by more than any other class, due to uriderwriﬁng
action to reduce rates reflecting improving experience'

e Lost volume due to.the market pricing being below the level acceptable to the Group.
This was most prevalent in property;

¢ SME packaged products and commercial motor policy volumes increased;

s _Anotable increase in market capacity in professional indemhity, inc!udihg from both new
entrants‘and existing players, was influential in softening rates in this clcss‘ and,

& . Workers' compensohon premwm rncome benef '(ed from a strong economy in Western
T T Austrdlial e T -

~»  Maintaining high customer retention is core to moncging fhe portfolic through the softening
' ‘¢ycle. Retention rates fremained above 80% in 1HOé, aided by the execution of initiatives to
proocnvely monoge retchonshups dehver product dwersny ond |mproved processes

Half-year Half-year Half-year

. ended ended ended
Loss ratio ] ‘ Jun 04 ) _ Dec¢ 04 Jun 05

Reported loss ratio
- Discount rate adjustment
Immunised loss ratio -

»  The loss ratio of 55.4% reported for 1HOé included a favourable discount rate adjustment of
$8m, giving an.immunised loss ratio of 546.5%.

»  There were a number of factors which had significant effects on the Commercial Lines loss
ratio during the period. These were:

* The long-tail elements of the portfolic performed very well during 1H06. The benefits of tort
reform which supported the rate reductions in liability noted above also generated profits
in the porifolio. Assumptions adopted in reserving were reviewed as confidence grew
that the tort reforms implemented in the past few vears have been successful to date in
reducing the frequency of small claims in particular. This follows similar experience in
2HOS5, whereas the 1HO05 loss ratio included additional reserving for long-tail classes
{asbestos in particular).. The loss ratio effect in 1THO6 was similar to the experience in 2HOS;

e A higher incidence of large individual losses in the short-tail commercial portfolio
compared to the prior corresponding period. The cost to the portfolio of such losses, net
of reinsurance recoveries, was $34m in 1HO6 compared with $15m in 1HO5. -The difference
equates to an additional 2.6% in the 1H0é loss ratio; and

¢ The absence of any major losses from weather events.
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»  The expense ratio increased to 34.0% in 1H06. An increase in provisions for fire services levies of
$22m in 1HO6 added 3.0% to the ratio. Total underwriting and commission expenses, excluding
this increase in provision for fire services levies were $229m in 1H06 relative to $237m in 1HOS,

» The additional provision for fire services levies arose when nofifications from the NSW and
- Victorian fire brigade authorities identified that the industry recommended rates used by the
Group to collect levies within premiums were insufficient to cover the levies being assessed on

the Group. There was a far smaller release from over-provisions during 1HOS.

»  The reduction in the deferred acquisition costs for the Commercial Lines business added $21m
or 2.8% to the expenses relative to THOS.

» Of the targeted annuadl savings of $10m announced at the end of FYD5, $5m were
implemented during THOé.

B. Regulations

» The regulatory focus on the insurance industry has increased. Current regulatory reviews and
.changes include the following: .

“e  The ACCC is continuing to monitor insurers' actions to pass on liability price reductions
arising from reduced claims costs to consumers. Further movements are anticipated as
CGU implements a state based rating methodology. Consistent with the rate reductions
in the liability portfolio, the latest APRA statistics showed that tort reforms had delivered
reduced claims and premiums. The extent of reduced premium varied by state from 18%
in South Australia to 1.5% in Victoria for the 2004 co!endor year.

.-+ .Ongoing.- regulatory implementation and.monitoring of the Financial Sector Reforms
. - .provisions of the Corporohons Act [FSR), which-has increased the service standards and
- . has .greated - additiongt-.disclosure. and. procedurdl requirements. . Consultation on

i e e Government refinements occurred in THO6, with the new reguld’nons coming into. force
. from December 2005: S e

. The new mdustry Code of Practice wil operofe from July 2006, imposing further regulatory
- requirements. - Resources will be’in place to.redesign,:communicate and implement -the
new code. The major impact-will be in product training and accreditation. . The Group's

: ‘f; "-:fff;:';,; “authorised represemdhves, mcludmg staff and agents, are required to.undertake training = - .

" “as part of its on-ine general c0mphdnce program.” Product and technical process
© ti@ining cosfs in FY06 will be approximately $1m, and early estimates suggest an additional
$1 - 2m over the coming two financial years. '

s~ The Victorian State Emergency Bill will chdnge the tax bdse for the fire services levy to
inciude a “notional premium” for companies that have deductibles of $10,000 or more on
their property policies. implementation is expected in July 2006. At this point, the main
impact envisaged from this would be the costs related to systems changes in order to
correctly calculate and capture data for declaration purposes.

C. Operating improvements/service offerings

C.1 Web-based tools and systems

» Lead indicators {absent during the last soft market) have been developed to closely monitor
portfolio profitability and premium rate movements. The “Rating Strength"” report measures
actual premiums against technical premiums and the “Rate Monitoring™ report measures pure
movements in premium rates on renewals. Earlier identification of trends is-improving portfolio
management and pricing decisions.

» The investment to enhance its technology systems is.an ongoing part of the business stirategy

to provide more value-add services and products to promote strong customer retention by
delivering products more efficiently through its distribution channels.

> During 1H0é, CGU's e-commerce platform “CGU Connect" underwent re-development fo
improve the service to intermediaries. Some of the enhanced capabilities include:
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e A new commercial motor application in the “CGU Connect” product suite. This was
rolled out to over 700 intermediaries by November 2005. Additional products currently
being developed include commercial strata, farm motor, motor trades and country
classic; and

e Development of an instament biling payment facility for eBusiness policies, which is the
major focus for the remainder of the year. .

» The workers' compensation business upgraded its on-ine facility to provide employers with
advanced risk management information to assist them with accident prevention and injury
management in their workplaces. This on-line platform has been in operation for six months
and has proved to be a key new business and retention tool.

»  An ongoing project titled “Renew CGU" is reviewing business processes, seeking opportunities
to increase automation and reduce duplication and manual handling.

D. Fee based businesses/managed schemes

» The premium funding business continued to grow and generate profits. Loans outstanding at
31 December 2005 were $163m compared to $133m at 30 June 2005, representing an
increase of 22.6%.

» The Group's non-risk workers' compensation business (ie the provision of claims services out-
sourced for workers' compensation insurance underwritten by governments) broke even
during 1HOé, with significant progress made in addressing the issues which caused a loss to be
reported in 2HOS.

»  The NSW business was successful in the re-licensing process undertaken in calendar 2005 and
has a 21% shareof the market. -The Group-is:confident that the new fee basis provides a
better oUtcome in térms of timely and appropriate incentives 1o’ drivé better outcomes for
empiloyers, . injured workers and the business. This replaces complex fees with significant
retrospective elements. A retrospective adjustment in 1H06 largely’ negcted the profits earned

- by the other sto’res operations and the premuum fundmg business.

> . The Victorian BUsingss Continued to  perform strongly. ..~ "t L

ln January 2006 the Group was c1dv d—“fhcf the South Australian govemment hod resolved to'
leave Snhly one- ogem responsrble for &lf oufsourced:claims management. Thiss due fortake
effect from 1 July 2006. Transition plans are being developed and alternative roles being
“sought. for. affected staff. - The contract profitability was less than $1m per annum, so the
ongorng financial impact is negligible.
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E. Discontinued Businesses

E.1 Inwards Reinsurance

» The commutation strategy for the inwards reinsurance run-off (business ceased in January
2001) continues to progress with a further two commutations finalised in THOé.  All
commutations since underwriting ceased five years ago resulted in net savings for the Group.

» The net provision for the outstanding claims on this portfolic is now approximately $77m,
(2HO5: $78m).

E.2 Asbestos Liabilities

» During THO6, overall asbestos claims experience has been better than that expected in the
Group's reserving assumptions. Given the potential volatility in asbestos experience, the
Group's provisions have not been adjusted at this stage for this favourable experience and the
provisions at June 2005 have been maintained.

> The survival ratio (net reserves as a multiple of the average of the past three years' claims
paid) is 42 times at 31 December 2005, compared with 49 fimes at 30 June 2005. The 3!
December 2005 survival ratio is lower than that reported at 30 June 2005 due to a higher base
measure now being used [i.e. three year average at December 2005 is higher than that at
June 2005).

» The survival ratio is provided as an indicator of the Group's reserving for this particular liability
due fo its very long tail. However, it should be used with caution as different exposures and
portfolio mixes may make comparisons unreliable.
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Half-yeas Half-year Halt-yea
International operations ended ended

Gross earned premium

Reinsurance expense l' {49)
Net premium revenue . 445
Net claims expense (271)
Commission expense (49)
Underwriting expense {70}
Underwriting profit 55
Investment income on technical reserves 12
Insurance profit o : . 67

China Automobile Association
Total international result
insurance ratios

Loss ratio ) . 60.9%
Expense ratfio : ' : ) 267%
Commission ratio ’ ' SR 11.0%
Administration ratio . . - L . Cel - 157%
Combined ratio o : : 87.6%
Insurance margin {before tax) 15.1%

. This segment contains the ,resulfs of the: Group's operations in New Ze‘olond'ond Asia.
In prior periods it also included the results genérofed:by the Gro‘up"‘s copﬁve’reinsu‘rer on reinsuring
business from the Group’s controlled entities. . This element of the captive insurer's activities has now
been re-allocated back to those entities. Appendix H contains reconciliations between the current
- and prior basis-of reporting. . ‘ y . L

_Commentary on the New Zealand and Asian operations follows separately.

o ene LOSS Rati'p»;

: ‘.fE_x_pense.Ratio. s e

30.0% 80.0% 1

- oo

0%,

60.0%

200% 50.0%

15.0% 40.0%
10.0% 30.0% 4

200%

0% 10.0%

0.0% 0.0%

2H4 1HOS 2HDS 1HC6
u Administration Ratio % (NEP) s Commission ratio % {NEP)

Insurance margin (before tax)

Combined ratio
110.0%

100.0% 2.0%
90.0% 1 18.0%
80.0% | 16.0%
70.0% 14.0%
60.0% 12.0%
50.0% 10.0%
40.0% 8.0%
30.0% 6.0% -
20.0% 4.0%
10.0% 2.0%

0.0% 0.0%
2H)4 1HOS 2H0S 1H0B 2H)4 1H05 2H5 1H6

Note to Graphs:
+  Only 1HO5 and subsequent periods have been restated for AIFRS.
« The re-allocation of the Group's captive gpplies to all periods displayed above.
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A. International - New Zealand

Half-yea

New Zealand Operations . ended

ot At

Gross written premium

Gross eamed premium 494
Reinsurance expense {49)
Net premium revenue » 445
Net claims expense (271)

_ Commission experise (49)
Underwriting expense -~ {70)
Underwriting profit 55
investment income on technical reserves 12
Insurance profit

Insurance ratios »
Loss ratio 60.9%

Expense ratio : : : - . 267%
Commission ratio 11.0%
Administration ratio ' . 157%

Combined ratio - : L 87.6%

Insurance margin (before fax) . . o . 153%

L . Expense Ratio "~ -
. 360%‘ R f_",l" ESERT AN - R s '80l0°/_u4-"

70.0%
25.0%
S 60.0%
2 % o
. 200% 50.0% 1
15.0% 40.0% 4
c 0% 4
100% 1 - 30.0%
20.0%
5.0%
10.0%
0.0% 0.0% =
: 2H04 1H05 2H05 1HO6 1HO5 2HOS s
Combined ratio ’ Insurance margin (before tax)
100.0% - ‘
90.0% | 20.0%
0
80.0% 1 18.0%
.
70.0% 16.0%
14.0%
60.0%
w00 12.0%
= 10.0%
o
400% 5.0%
30.0% 6.0%
20.0% 4.0%
10.0% 1 2.0%
0.0% A 0.0%
2H04 1HOS 2H05 1HB 2H04 1HOS 2H05 1H0B

Note to Graphs:: : .
«  Only 1HOS and subsequent periods have been restated for AIFRS.
«  The re-aliocation of the Group's captive applies fo afl periods displayed above.

s As this business is essentially short-tail, the reported and immunised loss and combined rafios are the
same.
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» The New Zedland operations delivered an insurance margin of 18.6% in 1H04. This was a
record since the Group has owned the business. While a mild winter was a key factor, there
have also been a number of underlying business and process improvements.

» Consistent with the Australian experience, the New Zealand operating environment produced
" a challenging landscape for business growth with slowing economic growth and strong
competition within the market.

» Based on the latest data as at September 2005, New Zealand economic growth as measured
by real gross domestic product (GDP) decelerated from 4.3% for the year ended September
2004 to 2.7% for the year ended September 2005 and is forecast to remain at this level for the
year to March 2006 and decline further for the year to March 2007.

» The latest statistics from the Insurance Council of New Zealand (ICNZ), showed that, on a
rolling year to September 2005, industry GWP growth has decelerated from 2.8% {IAG NZ: 3.4%)
to 1.0% {IAG NZ: 0.3%) on December 2004 and June 2005 respectively. The personal lines
market grew by 4.2% (IAG NZ: 6.2%) while the commercial lines market grew by 2.9% (IAG NZ:
-1.8%) on a roling 12 month basis o September 2005. The Group continues to maintain its
leading position in the NZ market with its market share at 36.5% (2HOS: 36.7%) of the market
data captured by the ICNZ.

» " In this context, GWP in New Zealand dollar terms fell by 0.2% (NZ$1m) from 1HO5 and 1 3% from
2H05. The decline in Australian dollar terms of 1.0% on 1HOS is higher due to an adverse
movement in the New Zealond / Australian dollar exchange rate of 0.9% over the same
period. ,

) During 1H0é, IAG NZ managed to grow GWP in its direct person‘ol‘lines and corporate partners
channel, partially offsetting the decline in the broker channel. The frends in GWP growth for
1HO04 compared to 1HO5 across the distribution channels are as follows:

¢ Direct channel: . Representing approximately 38% of IAG NZ's portfolio, this channel grew

mainly..as .a_result of price increases, which offset.a decrease in volumes. This follows _

significant repricing of this porffoho to reflect. nsk-bcsed underwriting, particularly in the
home portfolio; .

e Corporate pcrin’ers channel: Represemlng approximately 15% of IAG NZ's portfolio, this
channel grew both in ’rerms of volume cmd pnce pc:rhculcdy in domeshc motor and SME

’ Commercuol

[ .

e Broker chonnel Represenhng cpproxumofely 45°7 of. the IAG NZ porffoho this chonnel;» . R

reported reduced GWP, despite growing volumes. Pnce compeimon was the main factor
for the trend in this portfolio; and |

e  Mike Henry Travel: This represents cpproxmcn‘ely 2% of the IAG NZ porffollo IAG NZ
acquired 50.1% of this business in July 2004 cnd is due to acquire the remaining 49.9% by 1
July 2006.

» The level of competition in the market is expected to remain intense, particularly in the direct
and broker channels for both personal and commercial products. To counteract this, IAG NZ
has implemented a number of sales and service initiatives focused on delivering improvements
in underwriting and product development, and is partnering with distributors to enhance
processing and product delivery to customers.

»  As part of these initiatives, IAG NZ has sought to enhance its position in the specialist markets.
. Following the acquisiion of Clipper Club (Marine insurance} and National Auto Club
Underwriters Agency {specialist agency for high performance vehicles) in December 2004:

¢ Considerable progress has been made in incorporating Clipper Club competencies into
IAG NZ's marine offering to the market. The success of NZI Marine continues to grow with
the unit steadily gaining a heightened profile in the market following a re-launch to
brokers; and

e A new operating environment has been developed in National Auto Club. The company
has been re-launched as NAC Insurance and has been well received by brokers and
finance companies, with the focus going forward being on leveraging the changes made
to increcse sales.

> Whilst these initiatives are in niche markets, they do add to the Group's distribution and
product diversification capability, further enabling IAG NZ to provide comprehensive
insurance solutions for its customers.
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» Net eamed premium increased by $17m or 3.8% (NZD $23m or 4.8%) on 1HO5 was stable
relative to 2HO0S5. Part of this is due to the reduction in reinsurance expense, which as a
proportion of GWP, has decreased to 9.1% in 1H06 from 9.8%. This has been due to a $4m
saving from the restructure of the reinsurance programme in July 2005. The restructure
increased the proportion of risk retained by IAG NZ. To date, the restructure has realised a $3m
net benefit (net of additional claims cost retained).

> The loss ratio of 58.2% improved by 2.7% and 6.3% on 1HO5 and 2HOS respectively, largely
reflecting better claims experience in 1HO6 compared to the prior periods, where large losses
increased the loss ratio by 2.8% and 5.0% for 1H05 and 2HOS5 respectively. improved claims
processes also assisted in improving the loss ratio.

» Although the 1HQ6 expense ratio, 26.2%, is in line with 1HO5, the mix between the commission
and administration expense ratios has changed following the acquisition of three distribution
channel businesses in December 2004 for which IAG NZ was the existing underwriter. This had
the effect of moving some expenses from external commission to intemal administration.

»  The expense ratio has increased in 1HO6 relative to 2HO5 {26.2% versus 24.7%). This is because
net earned premium has remained flat whilst the operating expense base has increased in line
with inflation and has absorbed the cost of the business furiher investing in its core systems

' copobuﬁy

» The IAG NZ business is on target to complete the implementation of the Australian personal
lines technology platform during calendar 2006, with most of the remaining costs to be
incurred in 2HO6. Some of these costs will be subject to capitalisation and amortisation.

» While service and efficiency are atways impdﬁonf, IAG NZ recognises their additional
importance in times when rates are softening as reliable service and sustainable pricing can
be used to help defend the IAG NI's portfolio from compemors offenng prices below what the

Group considers appropriate for the risk.

» . lnmohves toi |mprove customer servnce ond efﬁc:ency mplemem‘ed dunng fhe period or under
T 77 'way includé: -

’ ¢ The “"Customise” programme which is currently being rolled out throughout 1he direct

channel, with the key focus being on increasing the presence of a sales and service ..

; “cuh‘ure and improving. cus’romer cnd sfoff seﬂsfochon

' ‘ . ,’_T_Increcsed uhltscflén of customer feadboack; 1hrough processes es’rcnbhshed fo opply'

=~ feedback provided by customers 10 help determine aspects:of service:and delivery that

may need |mprovemen1 and to record all complaints, compliments and general
feedback; . '

. Implementing new and enhanced IAG NZ and broker products ihcluding the new online
service offering claims look-up, tracking and submission. The IAG NZ Broker Leaders’
Forums were used to introduce these services to brokers during 1H0O4;

¢ . Improving claims resolution tumaround time, with the “One Touch" initiative, providing the
processes and capcbility to enable resolution of claims on the first telephone call;

*» Improved efficiency of the motor repair claims process through the establishment of o
smash repairer network with digital assessing at repairers’ workshops. This results in lower

- overhead (premises) costs; '

* Implementation of improved supply chain management; and
¢ Centralised business support functions in one location for the direct channel, thereby
fostering increased processing efficiency.
» Recognn‘lon of the focus on customer service was evidenced by:

¢ . The customer satisfaction measure continuing on an upwcrd trend with the cumulative
YTD result at 85.9%, and significant increases ochl_eved in the overall broker satisfaction
results. '

e The “NZI" brand winning the prestigious 'Underwriter of the Year award for 2005 as voted
by members of leading insurance broker organisations. The award was presented by the
Insurance Brokers Association of New Zealand {IBANZ) at their annual conference in
Christchurch in September 2005. NZI was judged against criteria such as claims efficiency,
range, quality of service and client relationships.
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. -B. - International - Asian Operations e

B.1 IAG South East Asia Operations

» During 1H0é, the Group made significant progress on its stated goal of establishing a foothold
in Asia. During 1HO6, IAG completed its acquisition of Royal & SunAlliance (Thailand), agreed
fo a 30% investment in Malaysia's second largest motor vehicle insurer, AmAssurance, and
established a regional headquarters in Singapore. A number of the Group's executives are
now resident in Singapore, where they will oversee the Asian operations and develop IAG's
capability transfer programmes from which it intends to generate incremental value from its
South Eosr Asian investments.

» In February 2006 the Group announced an increased mvesrmenr in Safety Insurance in
Thailand.

B.1.1 Thailand

»  Thailand’s generat insurance market generates GWP of over A$2.5bn, with approximately 60%
of this in motor insurance. The general insurance market is in a developmental stage,
compared to developed economies, however the market is growing at over 10% per annum,
‘with profitability over the last five years showing an upward frend.

B 1.2 IAG Insurance (Thailand)

y The Group completed its ocqursmon of Royol & SunAIhonce (Thorlond) on 4 July, 2005 and this
’ operation’s results crre consolidated with the Group results for 1HO6.

N Jn cccordonce with the terms of.the ocqursmon ogreemenr 1hrs enmy has. been renamed and
s now regrsrered as1AG Insurcrnce (Thorlond) Ud ‘and is rrodrng under ’rhe NZI Insurance brand
-in Thailond. - - - _

» It cumently writes epproxrmote|y Bhrlbn (A$35m) of GWP per annum, rhe majority of which is
" ¢commercial busrness T he Thor commercrol insurance market: s expecred to_experience
" continued strong growfh pcrn‘rcuforly cons’rruc’non/rrrfrcsfrucrure rhsurcrnce where governmenf,
o spendrng on megar prorecrs of US$50bn is pro'ected wrthrn seven yeors _ R

A‘g‘roho of '77 7% comforfobly ouf performed ’rhe ocqursriron’ ‘

"“ror 1H06 'rhe combrned ‘oper
- pusiness case .

B.1.3 Safefy Insurance Pubhc Company errfed (Safefy lnsurance)

» The Group has had a stake in Safety Insurance, since 1998.

»  Safety Insurance, which has been listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand since 1977, is
Thailand's sixth largest general insurer and the sixth largest motor insurer and cumently
generates approximately A$100m in GWP per annum. Providing predominantly motor
insurance, as well as fire, marine and other generat insurance, Safety Insurance distributes its
products through insurance agents and brokers, as well as selling direct to customers.

»  The Group through its Thai investment holding company, NHCT Limited, acquired an additional
16.7% interest in Safety Insurance on 10 February 2006, taking its existing 21.6% shareholding to

38.3%.

» The Group is now seeking to further increase its interest through a general tender offer to aii
Safety Insurance shareholders. The tender document was published on the Stock Exchange of
Thailand on 20 February 2006. The tender is scheduled to close on 27 March 2006. The offer
price implies a value of approximately $87m for 100% of the company.

4 If the Group gains a confrolling interest in Safety Insurance, it infends that it continue to
operate primarily as a personal fines insurer, while 1AG Insurance {Thailand) will continue its
focus on commercial insurance.

B.1.4 Malaysia

» Malaysia will continue to be a focus for IAG, given it is the second fastest growing economy in
Asia. The general insurance industry has grown at @ compound annual growth rate in excess
of 10% since 2000, with improving profitability.
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In addifion to the good growth prospects, it is expected that ongoing regulatory reform will
create opportunities for insurers to differentiate themselves within the market. For example, the
proposed introduction of fisk based capital, and premium rating changes to the current motor
and fire tariff system, are expected to provide an opportunity for the Group to work with its

~ partners to leverage the Group's world class underwriting capability in motor insurance.

On 9 December 2005, IAG announced it had reached agreement to acquire a stake of 30% in
one of Malaysia’s largest insurers, AmAssurance Berhad. In addition to owning AmAssurance,
IAG’s new strategic partner, AMMB Group, is the owner of Malaysia's fourth largest bank,
AmBank, and is the largest auto financier in Malaysia. The cgreement tncludes the terms of an
option to increase the Group's stake to 49% over time.

AmAssurance is the second largest motor vehicle insurer (foUrfh largest general insurer) and
seventh largest life insurer in Malaysia.

The final regulatory approval required in Malaysia was recelved in February 2006 and
completion is expected to occur by 3 March 2006.

B.2 China

B.2.1 China Pacific Propén‘y Insurance Company Lid (CPIC Property)

14

On 7 February 2006, the Group announced it had signed an exclusive memorandum of
understanding with CPIC Property and its parent company. This marked a key milestone in the
Group's negotiations to acquire an interest in CPIC Property.

The Group is now working to put in place binding agreements to acquire a 24.9% stake and an
option to increase this to 40% as soon as practicable. The price will only be determined
following completion of an audit undér Hong Kong accounting principles (which are
equivalent to IFRS). '

CPIC Property is the second largest general insurer in China with approximately 12% of the
market. It reported opproxnmofely $2.2bh of GWP in the ter"months to Oc’rober 2005 of which

" more than 57% was motor insurance. . . e R

B.2.2 China Aufomobile Associdﬁon (CAA)

4

The Group's Chinese roadside assistance operation, CAA, is continuing its pursuit of a strategy
of national expansion beyond its base in Beifing to achieve scale benefits, growth and access
to markets as well as to leverage its cument investment on infrastructure, people and

technology.

As part of this strategy, CAA has established a national network programme with 30 franchise
or cffiliation partners across 28 provinces and 34 major cities in China. This extensive
geographical reach allows national coverage for the CAA brand and road service network.

In the medium.to long term, the national network programme will also assist CAA in choosing
potential cooperation/acquisition targets and in collecting and developing a national
customer database.

A new customer management system and GPS (Global Positioning System) for the CAA road
service fleet have also been installed to enhance CAA customer service delivery.
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»  During the calendar year ending 31 December 2005, CAA has:
. chdlea -<'>ver 72,200 calls, an increase of more than 50% on calendar 2004;
e  Aftended over 38,500 jobs, an increase of more than 14% increase on calendar 2004;
. Soid over‘3,'950'insuronce pL)Iicies, an increase of 35%;
s [ncreased revéhue by over 20% over the past cdlendcr year; and

e Increasedrevenue by over 55% during 1HOé.

» CAA also initiated a new public relations strategy designed to position CAA as a leading
motoring advocate on road and motor vehicle safety. Specific initiatives to date include the

following:

s The CAA Road Safety Campaign in partnership with Qinghua University, China’s leading
and most prestigious university. The campaign is designed to raise awareness of road
safety in the Beijing community by addressing issues such as @ safe colour test; seatbelts
and airbags; drink driving; excessive speeding; and child safety; and

¢ NCAP China Programme (international accreditation for smash testing faclilities) in
cooperation with Qinghua University, CAA is contributing up to RMB 30 million {$5m) in the
first phase of the programme. This involves crash testing 10 cars. Over time, it is hoped this
programme will assist in increasing the safety and reliability of China's automotive industry

~ and raising automotive standards to world ciass levels.
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A. Strategy with Investment Portfolios

»  The Group's investment strategy is fo invest:

. Funds supporting its technical reserves in a conservative asset mix of cash, high quality
fixed inferest securities and synthetic fixed interest investments (overlay);

e ts core sharehoiders’ funds portfolio across a diversified range of higher growth assets,
including equities and hedge funds; and

. Its surplus cash (i.e. investable shareholders' funds above the level required to maintain its
target solvency) in enhanced cash (the mandate allows a maximum of 20% in growth
assets) in recognition of the Group's intention to utilise these funds in a combination of
retums to shareholders and investing in shareholder accretive opportunities in
accordance with the Group's strategy. '

»  Within the broad parameters of this investment strategy, the Group has continued to focus on
reducing the volatility of the investment portfolio by increasing the diversification across both
asset classes and the mcnogers responsible for managing the funds.

oy Addmonclly, the Group has continued to implement a programme of alpha transfer strategies
to diversify the sources of additional return above the various benchmarks.

» ' The active management of the Group’s investment portfolios js rigorouslty confrolled within
both the parameters of the investment strategy and acceptable risk tolerance ranges set by
the Board of the Group and overseen by the Group's Asset Liability Committee ond the IAG
Boord s Risk Mcnogemenf & Comphcnce Commmee .

B.". Key changes in the pef'i“folvieﬁ“dur‘ihgiHO(»» P

S 3 B f_Techmcal reserves funds

b As pcr’r of the strofegy of duvemfytng sources of ocnve retum obove the benchmcrk an..
allocation to lnfemoﬂoncl fixed interest was seeded in December 2005. The moncgement of
this portfolio is outsourced to a Ieodlng mterna'noncl bond manager. This exposure is fully
hedged back to Australian dollars and is monoged with the same high credit quality as the
remaining technical reserves portfolio.

B.2 Shareholders’ funds

» As at 31 December 2005 three extemal managers were responsible for managing
approximately 17% of the Group's Australian equities holdings, with the balance being
managed internally using the Group's “core” and “research fund” strategies. All of the
international equities continue to be managed externally.

“» Further allocations to hedge funds were made during 1H06. As at 31 December 2005, the total
investment in the Group’s hedge funds programme was $214m, covering a range of diversified
global macro and long/short managers. Of this, $112m was cash held to ensure the Group's
exposure to hedge funds remains within the leverage limits set by the Group.
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C. Investment Perfformance

»  The following table sets out the investment returns achieved on the Group's portfolios broken
~ down by asset class:

See Actual 8'mark Actual B'mark Actual B'mark
Note return’ return return return return return

Half-year Half-year Half-year Half-year Half-year Half-year

ended ended ended ended ended ended
Dec 04 Dec @ Jun05  Jun05 Dec05 Dec05

Australian equmes

a
Listed property frusts b 16.3 165 1.3
international equities C -1.8 -1.9 3.3
Fixed interest (Aust & NZ) d 39 3.8 3.1
Cash e 2.7 2.7 28
Surplus capital portfolio f 3.5 2.1 3.7
Hedge funds f&g - - 2.7
Total weighted average ) 7.2 749 50
Offsetting derivative component of overlay h -1.0 -1.0 -0.5
Total {including overlay) 6.2 3.9 4.5

* These are half-yearly returns.

Notes: . - ) . ‘
a. The benchmark is a combination of the S&P/ASX200 Accumuiation index, the S&P/ASX200 Accumulation Index (ex-
IAG and ex LPTs} and the S&P/ASX300 Accumulation Index (ex-IAG ex LPTs).

b. The benchmark is the S&P/ASX200 Property Accumulation index.
The benchmark i is the MSC/ World Index {ex-Australia) nef drwdends rernvesfed in Australion dellars.

c.

d.. Tailored benchmarks based on the liability profile of each of the ¢ Group s msuronce pon“folros discounted to the )

- - Australian-or-New Zeolond govemmenf yfe!d curves, cre used. e e
'-:e.- The benchmark is a combination of UBS Bank Bill index: {Ausfi ond UBS Bonk Bill mdex {NZ} in"Australian dollcrs -

f.  Thebenchmaik is the cash benchmork the UBSBank Bills Index. -~ - N . LT

g. The initial allocdtion to global macro hedge funds was made in Februory 2005, R C e s AT

h. The performonce has been measured as contribution to totol fund. It represents only the denvonves component of

the overlay and has been more than offset by the total return och:eved on the physical equmes component of the
overiay.

*  The Group's portfolios oytperformed the return on the benchmark by 55 basis points for 1H06.
In total, the active return has contributed approximately $52m pre-tax to the Group's result for
1HO6, compared with benchmark returns,

» A summary of the investment income and net capital gains/losses generated on the technical
reserves and shareholders’ funds portfolios are set out below. The percentage retums are
gross of expenses, while the dollar returns are net of expenses.

Portfolio income (pre-tax) : Halt-year Half-year " Half-year
and incl. Derivatives ) ended Dec 04 ended Jun 05 ended Dec 05

Technical reserves
Shareholders' funds

Total investment income
* These are half-yecrly returns, '
Note: The shareholders’ funds retums in the above table include the return on the surpius capital portiotio.

» The technical reserves portfolios remain predominantly exposed to the Australian and New
Zealand fixed interest sectors in line with tailored benchmarks that reflect the underlying
currency and expected duration of the liabilities of the various insurance portfolios within the
Group. The contribution from these assets to the Group's insurance result was $192m for 1HOé.
The return achieved on these assets in 1H0é was 2.8%, 26 basis points above the benchmark
return for the period.
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»  The return on the Group's technical reserves portfolios includes the return from the derivatives
overlay strategy implemented in 1HOS. The active management of these assets which are
invested in the share market, after allowing for the fixed inferest retum foregone and
associated costs, generated a net contribution of $20m {pre-tax) in 1HOé.

»  The Group's shareholders' funds are invested across a range of diversified asset classes and
managers. Australian equities represent the largest component followed by international
equities. The shareholders’ funds contributed $345m to the Group's 1HO6 resutt.

» The return on the Group’s Australian equities portfolios was 16.0% for 1H06 and the return on
the Group's International equities portfolios was 16.7% for 1H06 in Australian dollar terms {the
portfolio is unhedged). ‘

» Both intemally-managed Australian equities strategies, ie the “core” and "research” funds,
contributed positively to the Group's result for 1HO6. Both are ranked in the top quartile of
comparable managers for calendar 2005, according to leading asset consulting firm, Mercer
Investment Consulting.

D. Asset Class Exposure

» This table represents the Group's effective exposure (i.e. after allowance for derivatives) to
each asset class, as at the dates shown.

ER -
-0 s = . "Share- " Share-
* - Techrical- -"holders’ »Techhi¢al: -holders™ Technical holders’
" _Reserves. . Funds - Reserves . . Funds: Reserves Funds

Lt .

Dec 05 Dec 05

Australian equities
Listed property trusts
- Intemational equities . S - i9.0 -
- Fixedinferést (Aust &NZ) - 997 100 993
CCesh. . e T 03" 2.6 0.7
" Surplus capital 2 T e
'Hedgefund's L -
Total 100.0 100.0 100.0
Notes:

1. Includes private equity.
2. The surplus capital porifolio is predominantly invested in cash and fixed interest.
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E. AGro'up Assets Under Management

Assefs under management 31 Dec 2004 30 Jun 2005 31 Dec 2005

Technical reserves!

Minority interest — Unitholders' funds? ‘ ' 0.4

Shareholders’ funds 28

Other? 0.5

Totatinvestiments - on balance sheet! : : 10.4

Other funds managed on behalf of third parties? 3.5

Total assets under mondgement 13.9
Notes:

1. The technical reserves balance as at 31 December 2005 is stated net-of GST on outstanding claims and
premium debtors.

"2, These ftwo items in oggregcre represent- the, total funds managed on - beholf of external clients. The

unitho ders funids shown:as & rminority interest are those rnvesred in frusfs whrch are. conrrolled entities of
the Group ond consohdoted in the: Group s bolonce sheet: - ... T s

3. The balance : clcssrfred os “Other” represenfs ltems '‘that are nof under rnvesrmenf monogemenf which

<+ ~in¢lude cash in cor 'treosury and rnvesfmenrs 4n'relored entities.

4, The pnor penod“bolon have been odjusfed ‘to exolude the lnvesrmenr rn propemes’ occupied by the
L busrness as these are c/ossmed os fixed assets under AIFRS R

C o Lt

.The Group s osse’rs under moncgement reduced by $1 2bn between 2H05 ond 1HO4 due to.

~the reduction in external wholesale mondofes “of $1.5bn. This” reduc‘non beMeen 2HOS and

Compensohon scheme under Wthh The funds mdnoged fo he scheme by fhe Group were
“:reduced. : o
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E.1 Credit quality of assets under management

» The credit qudlity of the Group's Australian and New Zealand fixed interest and cash portfolios

backing the technical reserves is considered to be very strong, with 47% invesied in Australian

- government securities and a further 41% in fixed interest and cash securities that are rated
‘AAA’. The minimum acceptable credit quality is ‘A’ rated.

Cash & fixed interest credit quality
as at 31 December 2005

Fixed interest Cash & Dépbs its
(Rated 'A") (Rated 'AAAm)
4% 9%
Fixed interest
(Rated 'AA")

8%
Govt. Securities
('AAAY)
47%

Fixed interest
(Rated 'AAA")
. 32%
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Half year Half year Half yea

Corporate ' - ended ended ended

Head Office
Fee based business (profit}/ioss
Amortisation

Interest

Dec 04 Dec 05

Total corporate expenses

A. Corporate

4

Head office expenses have remained consistent with 2H05 and are slightly higher than 1HQ5,
primarily representing the additional spend associated with the Group's international growth
strategy. Head office expenses hove been adjusted both in the current and prior periods for
AIFRS impacts.

The amortisation expense of $ém for 1HOé relates to intangible assets, essentially capitalised IT
management contracts. Prior periods have been restated to exclude goodwill amortisation.

Following the adoption of AIFRS from 1 July 2005, gooedwil is subject to review at each
reporting date with any impairment recognised in the income sto’remen’r For 1HOé there are
no impairment losses to report.

The THOS interest expense increased by $18m on 2HOS5 to $45m. This increase represents the

- inclusion of the reset preference shares. (RPS) distributions in interest expense. These dividends '
. are freated as interest poymems in 1HO6 as the terms of the RPS mean they are now classified
" debt instruments under AIFRS.” The Group has elected to take advantage of a transitional
~-provision within AASB I and occordmgiy hos no’f restc:ted pnor penods on. fhas basis. .. .
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B Changes in Financial Legislative Réquiremeﬁfs

B.1 International Financial 'Reporﬁng Standards

» JAG is required to prepare financial reports using Australian equivalents to Internationat
Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS) for the first time for the year ended 30 June 2006 and has
applied them for this half year reporting period ending 31 December 2005. A detailed
discussion of the impacts of the change in standards is included in “Note 2 — Explanation of
transition to Australian equivalents to International ancnc:of Reporting Sfcndards of the notes
to the 1HO6 statutory financial statements.

» A reconciliation of profit under Australian GAAP to that under AIFRS for 1HOS and 2HOS is set
out below. The 1HOS figures were prepared only under AIFRS.

Group

Notes Haif year Half yea
ended

Dec 04

(pre tax & minority interests) . ' 535

. Reversal of goodwill amortisatfion: 3 ‘, 46

Movement in defined benefit pians 2.0 47) (33)

. Adjustment to share based remuneration expense 3 ! 1

- Capitalisation of software de_velojpmenj costs 4 15

‘.~ - Reversal of market value movernent-on property . 5 - 42) (6)

* <" 'Recognifion of depreciation on buidinigs . 5 M

" Recognition of lease provision amortisation 6 - (2 (N

.. Profit for the period under AIFRS (pre tax & 'rvr-n_inbirit'yjn_fer‘e,s’rs,), e 729 556

.. Restatement of investment income on external funds C 7 ],, (12}
“Restated profit for the period under AIFRS (pre fdx & minority interests) - ok ‘ . 544

Note 1::Reversal of goodwill amortisation -

»  The elimination of the requirement to amortise goodwill under AIFRS resulted in the reversal of
the goodwill amortisation expense of $4ém for each of 1HO5 and 2H05. There was a
corresponding increase in goodwill of $46m in the balance sheet for each period.

Note 2: Movement in defined benefit plans

» Under AIFRS, the relevant net position of defined benefit plans is recognised in the balance
sheet. The movement in the net position is recognised in the income statement, except for
actuarial gains and losses, which are recognised directly in retained eamnings. This is the result
of an accounting policy selection made by the Group from the options available under AIFRS.
Recognising the movement in the net position of the plans for 1THO5 resulted in an expense
through the AIFRS income statement of $47m for 1H0S5 and $33m for 2HOS,

Note 3: Adjustment to share based remuneration expense

»  The Group acquires IAG shares on-market and holds them in trust to satisfy future obligations
for share based remuneration rights.  The shares are purchased on or near the grant date of
the rights at the prevailing market price.  Previously, under Australion GAAP, the cost of
acquiring the shares was recorded as a prepayment and then expensed in full, generally over
the period during which the employees provided related services.
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» Under AIFRS, the fair value at grant date of the equity instruments granted as share based
remuneration is expensed over the relevant period rather than the actual cost of acquiring the
shares to support the arangements. The relevant period is from grant date until the equity
instruments vest fully to the employee. For equity settled share based payments, an equity

-reserve is created as the expense is recognised. At each reporting date the total
accumulated expense is adjusted through the income statement based on the latest estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will vest, considering only employee turnover, and
taking into account the expired portion of the vesting period.

Note 4: Capitalisation of software development costs

» Certain software development expenditure that was previously expensed under the
application of Austradlian GAAP has been capitalised under AIFRS.  Only software
development expenditure incurred after 1 July 2004, the Group's AIFRS fransition date, was
eligible for capitalisation under AIFRS. ‘

» The adjustments relating to software development expenditure were a net reduction in
operating expenses of $9m and $15m for 1HO5 and 2HOS5, respectively. There was a
corresponding increase in intangible assets on the balance sheet for each of those amounts.

Note 5: Property, piant and equipment

> All of the property within the Group is classified as owner occupied property under AIFRS. Prior
to transition to AIFRS, all land and buildings were caried at fair value with movements in fair
value recognised in the income statement.  Under AIFRS, land and buildings are measured at -
cost with the cost of the buildings being depreciated over their useful hfe -The carrying vaiue
of land and buildings is subject to impairment testing. -

©»  For land and buildings held as at 30 June 2004, the fair value at that date is used as the
deemed cost, as permitted upon first time” addoption of AIFRS.  This-required reversal of the
movement in the market value of the propertywrecognised.inthe-reported profit. For 1HOS this
was $2m and for 2H0S it was $ém. There was a.coresponding.decrease-in property, plant and

- equipment on the balance sheet of the same. amount. . .Depreciation of the buildings
mtroduced a chorge for FYOS5 of $lm ) -

“Note 6: Recognmon of lease provisnon amorhscmon I

Sy Cer‘tom operohng4eoses for propedy require 1hat The fand ond/or bunldlng be returned 1o the
7 lessor in"original coriditioh. ” Under AIFRS, the-present-value of the estimated future cost -of
restoring these premises to their original condition are recognised as a lease provision. The
amount is capitalised as part of the cost of plant and equipment, and depreciated over the
useful lives of the assets. The amortisation expense relating to the lease provusnon was $2m in

1HOS and $1m in 2HOS.

Note 7: Restatement of |nve51ment income on external funds

» The profit before tax and minority interests for the comparative periods on pages 5 and ¢
differs from the Croup’s statutory financial statements. This difference arises because this
report treats net income attributable to minority interests in unitholders' funds consistently
between periods as an expense offsetting the relevant income, rather than as a minority

- interest for 1HOS and 2H0S. The net profit after tax attibutable to IAG shareholders is
unaffected by this treatment.

Reset preference shares (applied from 1 July 2005)
» The IAG Group’s reset preference shares (“RPS") are ciassified as debt under AIFRS. This

involved a reclassification of $550m {less issue. costs) from contributed equity to interest-
bearing liabiiities as at 1 July 20085.

» Due to the Group's election to take advantage of certain AIFRS transitional brovisions, which
' offer exemption from presenting comparative financials, there is no change to the profit in the
comparative periods for the RPS. From 1 July 2005, there are three AIFRS transition impacts:

e Reclassification of the RPS from equity to debt;
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* The transaction costs incurred from the issuance of the two tranches of RPS, previously
recognised directly in equity, are now capitalised, disclosed together with the related
liability, and amortised over the period to the first reset date; and

° Distributions on the RPS made after 1 July 2005 are treated as an interest expense, rather
than dividends.

B.2 APRA Stage 2 Reforms

»  APRA released a number of draft standards and guidelines during 2HO5 and some of these
have been published in final form in February 2006. The Group made submissions on these
proposals, which focussed on matters of detail rather than the general intent of the standards.
Should the detail be unchanged the Group, and the industry, may incur some additional
regulatory cost burden in complying with the extensive documentation and reporﬂng

proposed.

Balance Sheet, Capital and Dividends

A }Balance Sheet

IAG Group Balance Sheet

As at ' " 31pec-04”

I > 5% : o LT RIS TR

? el =

_ Assets )
Investments S B 10,409
Premium receivables 1,564
Reinsurance recoveries on Claims™ "= o 530 LR

; * Other recoveries on claims 7 - ST L 386
Defémed acguisiioncosfs -~ T 582
. Deferred reinsurance expense R 3 U
.~ Gooawilt and-other «monglbles"v T .74 B,
eier .. Otherassets-- .- T -
T Totalassets - CTE183

Liobilities ) T
Gutstanding claims ‘ . ) 6,548
Unearned premium ' 3,497
interest bearing liabilities 788
Other liabilities 989
Total ligbilities ) 11,822
Net assets 4,331
Equity
Equity attributable to equity
holders 3772
Mincrity interests ) 559
Total equity 4,331

» Theincrease in goodwill and other imongibles is due to an increase in the capitdlised software
costs under AIFRS and the acquisition of IAG Thailand in July 2005.

» The “other assets” category represents the aggregate of trade debtors, prepayments,
deferred tax assets and property, plant & equipment. :

> The low growth experienced by the business in 1H06 is reflected in very little growth in
outstanding claims liability, and a reduction in uneamed premium.
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» The increase in inferest . bearing liabilities is largely due to the reclassification of reset
preference shares of $550m to liabilities on cdoption of AIFRS at 31 December 2005. This
increase was partially offset by the repayment of $46m on the NZ senior term notes. There has
beenin a comresponding decrease in equity attributable to shareholders.

» The “other liabilities” category has increased due to the reclassification as other liabilities of
unitholders' funds held by minority interests in IAG controlled trusts at 31 December 2005
(previously classified as minority interests). This was partially offset by a decrease in reinsurance
payable, income tax payable, employee provisions and the resfructunng provision as these
were paid or utilised.

A.l1 Unearned premium, deferred acquisition costs and liability adequacy test

» The liability adequacy test (LAT) is a new requirement as part of AIFRS. Its purpose is to be an
assessment of whether the camying amount of the unearned premium liability (net of deferred
acquisition costs) is adequate to meet the liabilities. expedted to be incured on the unexpired
risk represented by these balances. AIFRS requires that a risk margin be added to the central
estimate of the future liabilities. The test has been conducted using a risk margin that equates
to a probability of adequacy of 75%.

»  The test must be performed at the level of a portfoiio of contracts which are subject to broadly
similar risks and that are managed together as a single portfolio. As such, conduct of the test
will vary between different orgcmsohons There is also likely to be some variability caused by
both the probability of adequacy used and the underlying ‘assumptions used to set the
quantum of the risk margin. Long-tail classes are particularly sensitive to these assumptions
because of the reiatively Iorger risk margins on these classes due to the nsk inherent in the
longer tails.

-~ »  The Group has applied the test at a number of portfolie. segmems pnmanly the reporting
. segments . used in this report, except that .the Group/s coptive and. elements of the ..
=7 “international segment were considered separately. . Due to the way in Wthh the Group's.
reinsurance programme is sfrucfured and moncged The IAG Re segmenf fo:led The Test by
: . f,nmmedmtely recovercble from the other Group enfities).” This $3m is mcluded in the. bolcnce
;shee’r as’ -a prowsron for unexptred nsk The Group s ofher pon‘fohos of contnac?s possed 1he
N test. o i : SR .

» The Group acknowledges that undnwducl producfs may, if They were Tesfed in a LAT
" environment, be subject to failure which is not identified in the conduct of the test at the
portfolio of contracts level. This could arise, for example, where a business strategy has been
adopted that forgoes some short term profitability for longer term benefits. Within a diversified
portfolio this can be accommodated as has occured here with surpluses in other segments
more than covering the shortfall in the IAG Re fiability adequacy test.

insurance _Ausfralia Group Limited - ABN 60 090 739 . Page 38




UGN
zZ A Australia
Group

B. Capital Management

B.1 Capital adequacy/MCR

Coverage of regulatory capital 1AG Group Insurance
requirements Australia Ltd Group

TR

Tier 1 capital

Paid-up ordinary shares ‘ 3.263

Hybrid equity 539

-Reserves (4

Retdined earnings {51)

Excess technical provisions (net of 328
tox) .

Less: deductions (1 ' 2 {1.503) {1,116}

. 2,572 2,819

Tier 2 capital ‘ , o

Subordinated debt . 607 607
Capital base - 3,179 3,426

Minimum capital requirements

{MCR):

Australian general insurance 1,537

businesses .
“Infernationat i msurance busnnesses N

MCR .. ) o - 184
: 2
,MCR mumple S

Notes: : S )

1. lncludes goodw:/l nef deferred rox ossefs ond cap:fchsed soffwore '

-2 The MCR ond cop;fol ‘base for rhe International msuronce busmess is calculated ona Slmllaf basis to the -
" Australian reguiatory reqwremem‘s ondmcludes rhe ccpnve rernsuronce busmess ond the operoﬂons m New ;
Zedland cmd Thorlcnd . L B . : o

’ The Group~'<:onﬁnues 10 provide MCR inforrhdtion‘. for both. the consolidated- Australian
operations ‘and for the Group. The calculation is bésed on applying in principle the APRA
standards for individual entities to the consolidated position, pending the publication by APRA
of a standard to determine prudential capital at a consolidated level.

» The data for the calculation is sourced from the AIFRS balance sheet.  The introduction of
AIFRS has not had a material effect on the MCR calculation. Reset preference shares. which
are now classified as an interest-bearing liability in the AIFRS balance sheet, continue o be
treated as Tier 1 capital for regulatory purposes. The other noticeable AIFRS adjustments are
in relation to goodwill and capitalised software, which are recognised as a benefit in the
refained earnings. However, this benefit was offset by an increase in the deductions made in
determining the capital base.

» The comparatives for December 2004 and June 2005 have not been restated to an AIFRS
basis.

»  The IAG Group multiple of 2.04x MCR as at 31 December 2005 remains above 1he Group's
current benchmark multiple of 1.55x MCR.

»  The Group's regulatory capital base, as defined by APRA, has increased from $3,492m fo
$3,658m during 1H0é due to:

e Strong earnings after tax for the period [net of final dividend paid in October 2005);

e  Reduction in net future income tax benefits, primarily due to unredlised gains from strong
investment performance;

s Anincrease in the Australian dollar value of the US dollar denominated term subordinated
debt {recognised as lower Tier 2 capital); and,

e A reduction in excess technical provisions. This was mainly due to an increase in the
premium liability relative to the unearned premium balance caused by lower pricing of
premium and the increased inflation assumptions in the NSW CTP portfolio.
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»

MCR Multiple (times)

The key elements of the Group’s MCR are as follows:

Concentration risk 100 200
Investment risk _ 555 520
1,744 1,793

The increase in the MCR is essentially due to the increase of $100m in maximum event
retention for the Group from 1 January 2006. This increase is partly offset by the reduction in
the insurance risk charge which is in line with the movement of the insurance provisions and a
reduction in the investment risk charge due to a decrease in the equity assets held by the
Group as a result of allocating investments to the surplus capital fund. This bears a lower
capital charge as it is primarily invested in high quality interest bearing securities.

The Group's capital as recorded in these schedules'does not include the $550m of contingent
capital held by the Group - see section B.5 below. .

3.00x -
2.50x - ) mpact of RES on MCR,
. if exchanged, brings
2.00% { poncrnX - the MCR to 2.35x
_MCR 1.60x- -
1.50x - e
: Benchmark
o MCR 1.55x -
1.00x o -
- 0.50x
0.00x ‘
30~Jun-03 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-05 31-Dec-05
m T1 Non-hybrid capital = T1 Hybrid @ T2 ORES
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B.2 Target capital mix

IAG Capital Mix

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%

FY02 FY03 FY04 FY05 1HO6 Target

m Ordinary equity m Hybrid capital r1 Debt
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B.3 Total capitalisation and debfas at 31 December 2005

Total Capitalisation

Asal : 30-Jun-05 31-Dec-05|
. e ;_-

Interest-bearing liabilities:
Senior

Subordinaied

Reset preference shares
Less: Capitalised transaction costs
Cross currency swob payable!
Total Interest-bearing liabilities

Sharehoiders’ equity
Equity attributable to holders of ordmory shares
Treqsury shares
Retained profits
Foreign currency trcnsso‘non reserve
Share based remuneration reserve
Hedging reserves
_Total shareholders equn‘y (exc| mmomy |nferes1s)

Total capitalisation

o e e

Earnings before interest ond tax (EBIT) . RO
_Earnings before lmerest tax, deprecncnon ond cmomsohon (EBITDA)
" Market-capitalisation:

- Ordinary shares {30.Jun.05: $6.01 per. share, 31 Dec 05 $5 42 per shcre)
-:Reset preference shore JAGPA & IAGPB)
ofcl market. copdalisahon - ; o .
Totol debt/{Tolal deb1+shoreholders equn‘y excludmg mnnomy ;merests)
" Total debt/(Total debt+totai market copnohschon)

" EBIT interest cover {times) 2
EBITDA interest cover {times) 2

Notes:

1. Cross currency swaps are used fo hedge the currency exposure from US$ denominated subordinated debt.
The cross curency swaps are revalued fo take info account movements in the US§/A$ exchange rate and
market interest rates and are reported as part of interest poying fiabilifies.

2. Excludes interest payable on RES which is offset by interest income.

3. For comparative purposes, the RPS have been ciassified as debt as at 30 June 2005. £BIT hos beeh
calculoted based on AIFRS for both periods.
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MEPRGE
AS ofinteresi Interes!
Currency equivalen! rate and rate &
principal  principal cross dividend
Maturity profile of Group debt and reset amouni amounl currency repricing  Maturity
preference shares Sm s) date Date

Long-term debt': .
NZ$50m senior fixed rate notes NZ$5C

Aug-08 Aug-08 AA

A$50m subordinated floating rate notes A$50 Nov-07 Nov-12 AA -
A$250m subordinated fixed rate notes A$249 Nov-07 Nov-12Z AA -
US$240m subordinated fixed rate notes? US$24C Apr-10 Apr-15 AA -
A$1.715m subordinated converible loan3 A$2 Perpetual Perpetual Not rated
Total debt '

Reset preference shares+

IAGPA A3$35C Jun-07 Perpetual A -
IAGPB A$20C Jun08 Perpetual A -
Total reset preference shares

Reset Exchangeable Securities {IANG)S A$550 Mar-10  Perpetual A-
Nofes:

1. Al long-terrn debt has been issued as either fixed notes, or hedged fo fixed rate with inferest rate swaps.
The yieids shown are pre- rox .
The A$ equivatent is shown ner of fhe re/cred cross currency swaps :
Fixed rate loan from the minority sharehoider of Mutual Community.General insurance Pty Limited.
. The dividend yields shown on the reset preference shares are the cash yields, excluding the value to
- Investors of the-attached franking credits.”

5. The reset exchangeable sécurties pay a floating rate quorferly interest payment. The mferest yle/d shown is
the cash vield for the cument interest period, excludrng the value fo investors of the attached franking

s _credrts

. B4 Reset Preference Shares '.' _— - SRR S L
» .. IAGPA and IAGPB were issued and listed on ASX in June 2002 and June 2003 respechvely

> The current coupon rates, as shown in the table obove were set at issue and are due for reset
five years after issue.

» They are considered as equity for tax purposes and pay a franked dividend. For accounting
purposes, the adoption of AIFRS has meant they are treated as debt. Meanwhile, APRA
continues to regard them as eligible Tier One capital provided that the propomon of these
and other hybrid securities does not exceed the limits set by APRA.

B.5 Resef Exchangeable Securities (RES)

> RES are perpetudl reset exchangeable notes with quarterly, floating rate interest payments
that are expected to be fully franked. They were issued in January 2005 and are a form of
contingent capital as the Group may, at any time, exchange RES for preference shares that
will pay non-cumulative, guarterly preferred floating rate dividends that are expected to be
fully franked. Preference shares, if issued, are expected to qualify as regulatory Tier 1 capital
according to their terms. The Group can, in certain circumstances, also convert either RES or
the preference shares to ordinary shares.

» The notes are backed by a portfolio of high quality, short dated, fixed interest securities which
is managed by the Group.

» The RES and the portfolio of assets which support the securities are set-off in the Group's
balance sheet with a net asset being recorded to the extent that the portfolio value is greater
than the RES redemption amount. Similorly. the interest income on the securities is set-off by
the interest distributions on the RES.
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’ During 1HO6 the Group expensed interest of $13m, amortised RES borrowing costs of $1m and
B generated $16m of income on the portfolio. The interest payable on the notes is less than the
interest earned on the portfolio, in large part because the interest payable on the notes is net

of an allowance for franking credits that attach to the interest distributions.

»  The RES cre listed on ASX as IANG.

> The following table sets-out the Group's pro-forma capital adequacy position based on the
Group's balance sheet as at 31 December 2005, adjusted as if preference shares were issued
in exchange for all RES onissue as at that date:

Ia%; R
Tier 1 Capital

Tier 2 Capital 628

Regulatory capitat base 3,658 .
Minimum capital requirement (MCR), 1,793

MCR Multiple L 2.04x -
Noftes:

1. RES are not recognised in the Group's capital adequacy position as they are not eligible to be freated as
regulatory capital until such time as preference shares are issued.

- 2. These amounts reflect the composition of the Group's capital adequacy position as:at 31 December 2005.

3. Assuming there has been no change in the Group's capital adequacy’ posmon at the nme of exchange
and alf RES transaction costs have been amortised previously. )

4, Assuming that the $550 mzlhon ininvestment assets have minimaf mvestment chorge ond no mofenot impact
< 1 onthe Group SMCR. - e oo B0 R VINETILG TN e cd

=
[

““““

o4

Bé Remsurance e e R R

» _The Group s cofosfrophe cover wos renewed effective “lddnuary 2006747 B

-« The ‘cafdstrophe event, limit cover purchased was rétained at $3.50n. * Although ex‘posu’r'e
across Australia and New Zeolond grew. by 8%, fhls growfh wos largely in areas which did not
‘ddd to the Group s "peak" risks; -+

> Based on the APRA minimum purchase requirement of a 1 in 250 years return period, the
Group's minimum required cover for regulatory purposes is $2bn. The $3.5bn of cover on the
same APRA baisis is equivalent to a return period of 1 in 430 years.

» From 1 January 2004, the retained catastrophe loss for a first event was increased from $100m
to $200m, dropping to $175m for a second event. The $200m Jimit moves the income
statement volatility from under 2% of net eamed premium to approximately 3.5%. The decision
to increase the retained single event loss was made as the cost of the coverage available in
the reinsurance market was such that the transaction proved to be capital inefficient
compared with retaining the risk against the Group's capital.

> The counter-party credit profile of the catastrophe programme has improved. The expiring
programme obtained cover for 70% of the limit from parties rated S&P ‘AAA/AA’ and the 2006
programme now stands af 75%. Furthermore, as in 2005, some of the limit is purchased on a
“coliateralised” basis, where reinsurers have deposited funds equivalent to their participation
in a trust fund. This is superior.protection relative to that generally available in the reinsurance
market.
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Return on equity

Annualised Return on Equity
30%

25%
20%
15%

10%
5%

0%

FYQ03 FY04 FY05 1HO6

- ROE (Actual) attributable to holders of ordinary shares
N ROE (Normalised) attributable to holders of ordinary shares

Note: Normalised calculotion wos based on two adjustments to actual NPAT to holders of ordinary shares:

1.
2.

3.

Exclusion of non-recumng items, eg profit on sale of ClearView.in FY04.
Sharehoiders' funds return cd;usted to be equ:vclent fo fhe do'!y cveroge rO—yeor bond rate for the year,
plus 4%. :

FY05 and T1HO6 ore stated based on A!FR» cccoums /FYOS hos been restcfed occordingly). The eomer

years remain on AGAAP

- The annuafised 1HO6 return on equity (ROE) to holders of - ord.nory shcres of 26.4% was driven by

a combingtion of sustained margins . delivered in the “insurance business, record high
performance in ’rhe AUSTFGIIOI‘I equn‘y morkef and the “alpha’ réturns generated. .

The ‘annudlised normohsed ROE was 18 2%. Normalised ROE is defermlned by replacing The'

actual eamings on core shareholders’ funds {ie -shareholders' funds excluding the surplus
capital fund monies) with the eamings that would have been generated using the 10-year
bond rate plus 4%. The tax expense is adjusted accordingly. This normalised profit is also used
in applying the Group's dividend policy.

The Group's target return on equity to holders of ordinary shares over the cycle is @ minimum
of 1.5 times WACC. The 1H06 ROE, both actual and normalised, is comforiably above this
target. However, it needs to be considered in terms of cycles and the general insurance
industry has experienced very favourable cyclical conditions in recent times.

Over the period since listing early in FY01, the Group's average reported ROE is 12.4%
(normalised 14.2%). The normalised ROE has progressively improved since listing.  This is
indicative of the consistent improvement in the underying business, which is supporting the
increasing return to shareholders necessary to cushion the impact of the volatility that occurs
in the market over investment, economic and insurance cycles.
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D. Dividends

D.1  Dividend policy and distributable earnings

»  The Group's interim dividend of 13.5 cents per ordinary share represents a 12.5% increase on
the T1HOS interim dividend of 12.0 cents. It brings the cumulative payout since listing to 62% of
cash earnings (i.e. pre-goodwill amortisation and post RPS dividends).

» The Group's dividend policy remains unchanged with a target of sustainable dividend growth
using o payout ratio of 50-70% of normalised profits, with an interim : final split of approximately
45 55. .

y  The Group's pace of growth is currently below its historical trend and medium to long-term
aspirations, while capital adequacy and profitability remain strong. In this context, it is possible
that the dividend pay-out ratio may exceed 70% of normalised earnings in the short-term as
the Group remains committed to its goal of sustaining double digit growth in annual dividends
over time.

» Sustaining this level of growth in the longer term will clearly require the Group to succeed in
generating significant growth in its business, as it has in the past. :

»  The distributable earnings of the parent enfity at 31 December 2005 were $607m. The interim
dividend payable on ordinary shares in April 2006 is $215m. To the extent that shareholders in
this dividend participate in the Group’s dividend reinvestment plan, it is intended that shares
be acquired on- mcarket for ThlS purpose.

»  All dividend payments, and.other dls’mbuhons to whlch frclnknng opphes made by the Group
have been fully franked. -At 31 December 2005, the fronkung balance was $581m. The interim

dividend on ordmory shares will absorb $92m “of ‘this. ° The remolmng $489m provides the

copocntyto fullyfronk$1 4lmofdlsfnbuhons e T L -

.-D.2 Dividend on ordinary shares ... - -.

SB00 y T T e

25. - : T

FYO1 - FY02 FYO03 FY04 FY05 1 H06
@ Interim dividend m Final dividend
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E. Sensitivity analysis

E.1 Investment market sensitivities

» The following table indicates the impact of an immediate change in the market value of

equities and changes in interest rates on the Group's net profit before tax at the specific
dates.

Sensitivity on NPBT
As at : 30-Jun-05 - 31-Dec-05

Investment sensitivities

Equity market values:
Australian equities +1%
Listed property trusts +1%
International equities . +1%
Hedge funds +1%
Interest rates '

Investment returns -1% or 100 bpts change

in interest rates
Qutstanding claims

-1% Change in net
discounf rcte :

- » . The increase in the sensitivity of investments to interest rates relohve fo 1he sensitivity of the

. Claims reserves is due to 1hf= growth in funds held under the surplus cop:tol mandate (mostly
_cash and fixed.interest).. o ‘ :

L

E2. Operahona! sensmwhes :-"; :

i Thls ’roble mdlcoTes the effecf of o 1% chcnqe in key element; of the msurcnce operchonel“’-'
performance on the Group's annual profit before tax for the respec’nve periods.

‘lnsurcrnce sensmvmes :

Loss ratio - Personal lines . -1%
Loss ratio - Commercial lines 1%
Loss ratio - intemational : -1%
Underwriting expenses ’ -1%
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Appendix A - Group strategy and sustainable returns

Group strategy

» The Group's strategy remains unchanged, although the longer term considerations now
include ir_wesﬁgoﬁon of merger and acquisition opportunities beyond Asia.

»  The strategic goals \rer_hcin to:
e Deliver top quartile shoréholder return;
¢  Earn areturn on equity of at least 1.5 times the Group's weighted average cost of capital;
¢  Establish an Asian foothold;
e Maintain an 80:20 mix of short-tail : long-tail premiums; and
s  Maintain a ‘AA’ category rating.

» The Group is clear that structuring its business to deliver these goals in a sustainable fashion is
more important than delivering on them in every financial year. For example, the Group's ROE
fell below 1.5 times WACC in 2003, while the CGU and NZI businesses purchased in January
2003 were being integrated, but these businesses have been key to delivering sharehoider
value since and, measured over the period since acquisition, have provided substantial
shareholder accretion.

» The Group measures ROE for this purpose using normalised earnings (ie earmings on core
shareholders’ funds are measured as the 10 year bond rate plus an equity premium) to
remove equiTy market volatility and provide focus on core eamings.

) Anoly5|s of entitigs that have dellvered ‘top quamle shareholder retumn measured historically

’ " ovér 10’ yedars, shoWs that they’ grow revenue'y’ ~eom1ngs ot obouf 20% per-annum, although
-not-evenly: . The-outcomes vary only slightly, depending Sn Wwhether one considers ASX listed
entities or international insurers. Délivering performance above the median involves growth in
excess of 14% per annum.

Yo Historic analysis 6f revenue grow‘fh inthe Ausfrchon and:New Zealand i msuronce markets shows 7

2.0 times gross domeshc produc'r Economlc expecfohons for Aus’rrollo and New Zealand do
“hot support annual average growth of 14-20%, so the Group, ‘having considered its options,”

resolved in 2002 to pursue offshore expansion in general insurance as the Group's market
. leading positions in Australia and New Zealand severely restrict local acquisitive opportunities.

» Depending on one’'s estimate of medium to long term growth in Australia and New Zealand,
and assuming no significant acquisitions in the local markets, successful execution of an
average growth rate of, say, 16% per annum over the 10 years from 2002 would result in
approximately 40% of the Group's revenue being sourced outside Australia and New Zealand.

» The Group's first priority has been to establish a foothold in Asia for reasons including:

- o The high growth rates anticipated in many Asian markets, both economically and,
leveraged to that, insurance penetration;

e The demand for skills which match those of the Group in personal fines insurance,
particularly underwriting in markets that have traditionally had tariff premiums;

e Potential for insurance industry deregulation and consoclidation; and
o The proximity of Asia and the relationships Australia has in the region.
»  This work is progressing (see section on International business).

» The Group has also commenced investigation of potential partners in other markets, which
would provide opportunities for substantial capital diversification and potential growth and skill
sharing. These opportunities may take time to develop, as the Asian opportunities did, so the
Group considers it important to start the research now.
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The Group remains conscious that ceding its ‘AA’ rating would release capital put, for the
present, considers retaining this rating is in the long-term interests of the shareholders in view of
the security it provides to lenders, reinsurers, policyholders and shareholders in an industry that
is, by its nature, subject to some risk and voldatility outside participants' control. Maintaining an
. 80:20 mix of short-tail to long-tail premium has been adopted as a goal for similar reasons of risk
mitigation.

Sustainable returns

»

S The msurer s cosf of copnol ‘and v

As with any other industry, general insurance must generate sufficient retums for shareholders
and other providers of capital to ensure the ongoing availability of capital. Also competitive
forces keep surplus returns from being sustained, unless there are barriers to entry in existence,
whether by regulation or indirectly due to industry structure (eg. access to distribution).

Affordability of insurance is also important to ensure that an economy is protected from the
disruption that occurs when businesses and individuals suffer major losses and are uninsured.

In the Group's view, the interpiay of these factors in the Australian and New Zealand markets,
“which are quite mature and relatively open, means that the industry's retum on capital will,
- over 7-10 year cycles, move towards 1.5 times the cost of capital. If one assumes a 10% cost
. of capital, this equates to a 15% retumn.

An individuatl insurér’s sustainable returns on capital (and the insurance margins underlying it)

N relo’nve to the morket will be influenced by:

g .0_;, Thei msurer s m:x of busmess

- o The exTenT of. dwers1f‘cchon/obsence of c ‘ncenf 1 nnor oggregoﬂon exposure in the

msurer s por’rfoho

s Theinsurer’s obm'ry w‘o genercfe scale beneﬁfs inits opercmng expenses relative to its peers.

‘ ‘Given the Group' s posmon relative to the ofher mcqor market participants in Australia and New
“ Zealand, the Group expects to be able to genercﬁe an overoge of obout 2.~ 3% obove the

general i insurance market average refurn on coplfol

How this translates into insurance margin expec'fc’nons depends on 1he copnol reqwred to
back the classes of busuness being written and the sustained adequacy of reserves, overlaid
by cyclical conditions. However, as noted above, the Group's curent ‘position in the
Australian and New Zealand markets gives it confidence that, measured over any reasonable
timeframe, its returns should exceed the market averages for a similar mix of business.

For example, if one assumes an industry average with:

s An 80: 20 mix of short-tail : iong-tail business; ‘

s A minimum premium/capital ratio of 40% for short-tail and 100% for long-tail;
* A targetsolvency of 1.5 times minimum tangible capital;

* A cost of capital of 10%;

e  Earnings on capital of 6%; and

e  Tax of 30%,

the industry average insurance margin required to generate 1.5 fimes the cost of capital
would be 12%. The margin required is quite sensitive to the assumptions. For example,
changing the target solvency to 1.4 times while keeping the other assumptions constant would
generate a required margin of 11.2% and changing the capital eamnings assumption to 5%
would increase the required margin to 12.8%.

In other markets, both the markets themselves and the Group’s position in them will be
different. What remains constant is the Group's commitment to ensure it participates in a
manner which should provide its shareholders with attractive sustainable returns over @
prolonged period.
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Appendix B - Product and Geographical Diversificaﬁon

This graph shows a history of 1‘he Group's growth in gross written premium and the lncreosed
d:versxf cation over an eight-year period.

Gross Written Premium by business ASbn

56% 57% 57%

% of premium generated
outside NSW and ACT

Fyg? " Fves FYge Fyoo ©ORYOT . L TRYO2Z FYO3 . FY04 ", FY0S. ' 1HO6

# Motor, ® Home M Health mOther Short-tail ® Short-tail Commercial W Liability 11 CTP/Motor liability:: Workers' Comp "

Nofes .
1. Includes GWP of ol busmpsses excepf Inwards Reinsurance, which is in run-off.

2. The health insurance business was sold in July 2003.
3. - Other short-tail primarily consists of other accident, extended wamanty and consumer credit businesses.

The Group's mix of short-tail and long-tail premiurh remains at 81 :1‘9.
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Appendix C - Statutory classes

Compuisory third party motor liability - market shcre‘af 31 December 2005

__| Riskstate (Privately underwritten)

. Non-risk state (Government underwritten)

_-QLD market .
share 2.4% . \

| NSW market J/
;. share 37.9% /

Market share
in ACT 100%

_.| Riskstate (Privately underwritten)

' . Non-risk state (Government underwritten)

market share
_ 31% ‘ ! NSW Market  §
% | ~ Share21%

f ° ‘Market share in
l C o ACT 22%

‘Market share in
VIC 32% Market share

24%
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Appendix D - Key ASX releases =

This schedule contains only a summary of the announcements made to the ASX since July FY0S. It does not include
announcements of changes in Directors' interests nor the issue of shares upon exercise by employees of share rights.
Reference should be made to a copy of the ASX announcements should further information be required. These are

available on www.iag.com.au

13 February 2006

8 February 2004

13 January 2006

22 December 2005

Increased stake in Thailand Safety Insurance

IAG through its Thai investment holding company, NHCT Limited, acquired an additional
16.7% interest in Safety Insurance on Friday 10 February 2006, taking its existing 21.6%
shareholding. acquired in October 1998, to 38.3%.

The Group announced it was seeking to further increase its interest through a general
tender offer to all Safety Insurance shareholders. The tender document was published on
the Stock Exchange of Thailand on 20 February 2006. The ocutcome of the tender process
will be known by the end of March 2006. The offer price implies a value of approximately
$87m for 100% of the company. .

Changes to IAG executive team

IAG announced changes to its executive team including the rotation of responsibilities for

some existing executives and .the promo'ﬂon of two senior managers to the executive

team. .

The key changes include: . Tt e

= David Issa, currently: Group Execuhve, Technology Servuces will take up the role as
CEO., Personal Insurance. He will continbe to have respons:blmy for the Group's
Technology services.

« . Rick Jackson, cumrently CEO, Personoi Insurance, will take on the newly created role
CEQ, Asset Management, Reinsurance and Group Strategy.

. Dovud Smith, currently CEO, IAG New Zedaland, has decided to leave New Zealand

g ¢ds a result, IAG. Nick Hawkins, formerly Head of Asset Management and

Genércl Manager, Group Finance, will take on the role of CEQ, IAG New Zealand.

.. " Jacki Johnson, -currently Head of Rlsk Monagemem Services, will join the execuhve

team, as.CEO, Business Portnershlps G aemes L

i fA” other. execuhves Jemain jm their. curent: posmons ond Justin; Breheny “will join The
- executive as planned i .

in Morch as_ CEO Asia...

. IAG signs memorandum..of. .undersicmdmg (MOU) with Chino Pacrf‘ ic Property Insurance S
- Co, limited -and Chiga Pacflic lnsutance:(Group) Co, Limited .
~ IAG annolinced it hod signed an exclusuve MOU semng out key terms of a proposed

investment in China Pacific Property Insurdnce Co; Lfd (CPIC Property}, with a vxew of
signing binding agreements as soon as practical.

CPIC Property is the second largest general insurer in China, with a market share of
approximately 12%. Under the terms of the MOU, IAG will negotiate with CPIC Property to
purchase an initial 24.9% interest, as well as an option fo increase its ownership to 40%
subject to certain reguiatory approvals. The price will be determined following the
completion of an audit under Hong Kong accounting principles.

The investment in CPIC Property is in line with 1AG strategy to build a portfolio of insurance
assets in Asia to supplement its business in its home markets of Australia and New Zealand.

Progress of approvals for Investment in AmAssurance

IAG announced it had been granted approval from the Malaysian Minister of Finance to
acquire an jnifial stake of 30% in Malaysian insurer, AmAssurance. The only outstanding
approval before se'mement could proceed was that of Malaysia's Foreign Investment
Committee.

Appointment of New Executive

IAG announced the appointment of a new Executive with the responsibility for managing
the Group's expanding Asian operations. It was advised that Mr Justin Breheny would join
IAG's executive team as Chief Executive Officer. Asia, and be based in IAG's regional
office in Singapore. He would have the responsibility for managing the Group's existing
business interests in China, Thailand and Malaysia, while driving the Group’s planned
regional expansion.

It was advised that Mr lan Brown would refire as Deputy CEC and Heod of International
and Reinsurance at the end of December 2005.
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Malaysian Acquisition

IAG announced that it had agreed to acquire an initial 30% strategic interest in Malaysian
insurer AmAssurance Berhad subject to regulatory approvals. It was advised that the
purchase price was A$69m. AmAssurance generates approximately A$272m in annual
gross written premium.

Change in substantial holding for Commonweatth Bank of Australia
CBA announced it had decreased its holding in IAG ordinary shares from 7.50% voting
power 10 6.49%. ‘ ‘

Amendment to IAG constitution
IAG announced that it had amended its constitution relating to the nomination period for
the election of directors, following approval af the Annual General Meeting.

IAG confirms business momentum, releases 2005 Sustainability Report at AGM

IAG confirmed that the Group was on track to achieve full year guidance of an insurance
margin between 13.5% and 16.3%. The business was performing in line with expectations,
and was boosted by strong equity market performance.

IAG released its Sustainability Report at the AGM, detailing the Group’s performance in
relation to a number of indicators, including IAG's efforts to reduce risks most common to
its customers and the reduction of its environmental impact.

. Annual General Meeting Poll Results

It was confirmed that Mr John Astbury, Mr Geoffrey Cousins and Mr Rowan Ross were re-
elected as directors of IAG.

The motion to increase the maximum aggregate Directors' remuneration was passed.

_.The motion to amend the article 12.7 of the Group's Constitution was passed, and the
Compcny's Remuneraticn Report for the year ended 30 June 2005 was adopted.

' IAG granted approval to en'er dlscussions to invest m a Malaysian insurer

|IAG announced that it had received approval from’ the MalGysian regulator to enter info

. -discussions. to_invest.in .AmAssurance Berhad, Malaysia's second largest.motor insurer.
,-Hovrng obfcnned this :approval, 1AG conﬁrmed it would commence discussions to

purchase a minority stake. e e

. Changes. to IAG's Dividend Reinvestment Plan . . .
~...Jhe |AG board cpproved cmendmems 10 1he company's Dividend Rexnvestmenf Plan, -
- The pnncspol chcmge relcmng to DRP rules wos 1he removol of the 200 share m|n|mum 3

“ 7 participation level.

Pricing of Shares fo be allocated under dividend reinvestment plan.

" The ordinary shares allocated under dividend reinvestment plan (DRP} will be priced at
'$5.3762 per share for the 2005 final dividend. The DRP price was based on an average

market price for-the ten trading days from 19 September 2005 to 30 September 2005
inclusive.

Under the DRP, approximately 10.6 mitlion ordinary shares were purchased on-market and
allocated to participating sharehoiders on 17 October 2005.
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30 September 2005 Warning to IAG shareholders in relation 16 Mr David Tweed
|AG dlerted shareholders that a company associated with Mr David Tweed, Direct Share
Purchasing Corporation Pty Ltd, had launched another unsolicited offer for IAG shares.

24 September 2005 2005 Annual Report and notice of Annual General Meeting released to the market

22 September 2005 Dividends payable on Reset Preference Shares
‘ The Board of IAG declared fully franked dividends on IAGPA at a rate of 5.80% per annum
{with $2.9079 payable per $100 share) and on IAGPB at a rate of 4.51% per annum (with
$2.2612 payable per $100 share), payable on 15 December 2005.

14 September 2005 Change in substantial holding for Commonwealth Bank of Australia
CBA announced it had increased its holding in 1AG ordnnory shares from 6.46% voting
power to 7.50%.

12 September 2005 " Warning to IAG shareholders in relafion to Mr David Tweed
IAG calerted shareholders that a company associated with Mr David Tweed, National
Share Purchasing Corporation Pty Litd, had launched another unsolicited offer for IAG
shares. ' '

19 August 2005 Announcement of Full Year results - 30 June 2005 and declaration of a fully franked final
dividend of 14.5 cents per ordinary share payable on 17 October 2005
IAG announced a net profit after tax of $760 million for the twelve months ended 30 June
2005 (30 June 2004: $645 million).

28 July 2005 B IAG announces changes to Executive Team
' ' ©IAG cnnounced changes to its Executive Team, mcludmg the creation of a new role to
Lo support |nfernohonol expansion and the planned retirement of the Deputy CEO, Mr lan
St e prown: It wds advised that the final phase: of the restructure of the business along
customer Imes was underwoy, and thot Doug Peorce would leave IAG on 31 Augusi
2005' -

e YRV . Y -

'_-Change in subsfant di holding for Commonweuhh Bank of Austratia T
- CBA had onnounced it had mcreosed its holdlng in IAG ordinary-shares from 5 43% vonng
power 1o 6.46%. - :

- 2uly 2008

. Change m substanhal holdmg from Barclays Global Invesfors Australra I.rmlted o
?~Everclcys Globcﬂ ‘investons Australio Lid onnounced it-had- reduced its= holdrng«m‘lAG T
_,ordmory shores by 0: 13%, ceasing 16 be 0 substenhcl shcrreholder . i

12 Juty 2005
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Appendix E - Share Price Trends & Top 20 Registered Holdings

A. Performance of IAG ordinary share price relaﬁve to benchmark indices

IAG Relative Share Price Performance
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» The first issue reset preference shares (IAGPA} listed on 5 June 2002. The shares are expected
to pay a six-monthly fully franked dividend, currently fixed ot 5.80% per annum.

»  The second issue of reset preference shares (IAGPB} listed on 23 June 2003. They are expected
to pay a six-monthly fully franked dividend, currently fixed at 4.51% per annum.

» - The RES {IANG) listed on 12 January 2005. Interest is payabie quarterly. The rate for the quarter
to 14 March 2006 is 4.7880% per annum, fully franked.

» The performance of the IAGPA, IAGPB and IANG prices can be expected to be more directly
influenced by the interest rate environment than the performance of IAG's business or the

equity markets and the timing of payment of dividends.
»  The NRMAD7 spread to swap represents the ‘10 non call ' year domestic subordinated note
issued in November 2002 and maturing on 28 November 2012
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C . Ordinary shareholders (IAG) as at 31 December 2005

Number of % of issued

Rank investor - Shares Capital
1 J P MORGAN NOMINEES AUSTRALIA LIMITED 176,335,127 11.07
_2°NATIONAL NOMINEES'LIMITED .. - . : . - B . 128,385,531 8.06
3 WESTPAC CUSTODIAN NOMINEES unmao 91,367,203 5.73
4 CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED. : L : 41,729,074 - . 262
5 ANZ NOMINEES LIMITED <CASH INCOME A/C> 35,438,614 2.22
. 6" COGENT.NOMINEES PTY-LIMITED. - - . moe T . 20,792,138 1.30
<PIPOOLED A/C> 17,642,558 1.11
: X - <CES'WSLE GEARED SHR FND A/C5 . . 16,855,932 1.06
3 RBC GLOBAL senvnces AUSTRAUA NOM mses PTY um ITED <BKCUST AIC> 16,468,953 1.03
10 AMP LIFE LIMITED, i e e e e ©o . 15,507,244 0.97
11 CITICORP NOMINEES prv LIMITED <CFS WSLE 452 AUST SHARE A/C> 14,231,553 0.89
- 12, QUEENSLAND INVESTMENT CORPORATION. - i - S o ... 14,202,268 0.89
13 WESTPAC FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED 10,651,983 0.67
14'1AG SHARE PLANS NOMINEE PTY LIMITED... - - <IAG PARUNALLOCATED AIC> - - . - 9,220,181 0,58
15 HSBC CUSTODY NOMINEES (AUSTRAUA) LIMITED-G SIECSA 9,038,744 0.57
16.PSS'BOARD .. - .. : . o s G e ee o B086155 . 051
17 COGENT NOMINEES PTY LIMITED <SMP ACCOUNTS> 6,271,785 0.39
18 HSBCICUSTODY. NOMINEES (AUSTRALIA) LIMITED - Dow el TR d e T Lt 6,242,659, 0.39
19 CSS BOARD 5,981,193 0.38
.20 ARGO INVESTMENTS LIMITED - .~ -+ . L T T BAT3333, 0.32
Total Top 20 Holders 649,622,228 40.76

D Reset preferencé (IAGPA) Shareholders as at 31 December 2005

Number of % of Issued

Rank Name Shares Capital

1 J P MORGAN NOMINEES AUSTRALIA LIMITED 457,165 13.06

f , A Lh L 249,200 0 . 742

) ’ . .226,500 S X
- dedlper il 19288600 oo 561

el e e oo T 1380730 0 386

B NATIONAL NOMINEES LIMITED .. s - Lo 126937 3.63

7'CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED . ) . - © 118775 3.39

e <PRIME BROKINGAIC> " | o 118563

8.UBS NOMINEES' PTYLTD» S

9 COGENT NOMINEES PTY LIMITED - 7" <SMP ACCOUNTS> " 76,867
10 SHARE DIRECT NOMINEES PTY 1D ST TUCNATIONAL N - .56,000 1L
11 ANZ NOMINEES LIMITED : R . - 45246 - - 129

* 12 CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED . <CFSIL CWLTH SPEC 5 AIC>. . 37,868 1.08
13 ARGO INVESTMENTS LIMITED , 30,800 0.88
14 CAMBOQYAPTY LIMITED " L 30,680 0.88
15 BRENCORP NO 11 PTY LIMITED 22,500 0.64
. 16 CITICORP NOMINEES PTY.LIMITED . : <CMIL CWLTH INCOME FUND A/C> * . 20,000 0.57
17 M F CUSTODIANS LTD o . ' 19,350 0.55

18 ANZ EXECUTORS AND TRUSTEE COMPANY LIMITED ' : Lo A 77 [ I 0.49
19 UBS PRIVATE CLIENTS AUSTRALIA NOMINEES PTY LTD 16,182 0.46

.'20' PERPETUAL TRUSTEE COMPANY LIMITED T .o L S 14,331 0.41
2.006.303 57.31

Total Top 20 Holders
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» Rank Name

Reset Preference (IAGPB) Shareholders as at 31 December 2005

k Name
J P MORGAN NOMINEES AUSTRALIA LIMITED
AMPLIFE LIMITED
SHARE DIRECT NOMINEES PTY LTD
COGENT NOMINEES PTY LIMITED
CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED
UBS NOMINEES PTY.LTD
ANZ NOMINEES LIMITED
CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED
NATIONAL NOMINEES LIMITED
'PERPETUAL TRUSTEE-COMPANY LIMITED
GOLDMAN SACHS JBWERE CAPITAL MARKETS LTD
RBC GLOBAL SERVICES AUSTRALIA NOMINEES PTY LIMITED
UBS PRIVATE CLIENTS AUSTRALIA NOMINEES PTY LTD

MRS FAY CLEO MARTIN-WEBER
' FORTIS CLEARING NOMINEES P/L
WESTPAC CUSTODIAN NOMINEES LIMITED
. BRENCORP'NO 11 PTY LIMITED "
UNIVERSITY OF CANBERRA
BRENCORP NO 11 PTY LTD

Total Top 20 Holders .

-1 J P MORGAN NOMINEES AUSTRALIA LIMITED

RBC GLOBAL SERVICES AUSTRALIA'NOMINEES PTY LIMITED -

<NATIONAL NOMINEES A/C>

<SMP ACCOUNTS>

<PRIME BROKING AIC>" -
<CASH INCOME A/C>

~ <CFSIL CWLTH.SPEC 5 AIC>

<HYBRID PORTFOL!O AC>

<MLCI AJIC>

<JHENIP A/C>

<SETTLEMENT A/C>

Number of
Shares

491,138

199,374

150,000

' 123,914

78,510
73,436
71,831
56,722

51,910
36,824 -

31,744
. 21,497
20,770

: 720,400

20,000
148,176
17,300
16,000
10,000
9,000

1.518,546

% of Issued
Capital
24.56

9.97
7.50

6.20

3.93
3.67
3.59
2.84
2.60
1.84
1.59
1.07
1.04
1.02
1.00

- 0.91

~ ' 2 UBS PRIVATE CLIENTS AUSTRALIA NOMINEES PTY. LTD ! 2 343,737
"3 NATIONAL NOMINEES LIMITED : ) 325,500
"4 ANZ NOMINEES LIMITED -* -+ - - - <CASHINCOME A/C> 122,149
-5 RBC GLOBAL SERVICES AUSTRALIA NOMINEES PTY LIMITED “<MLC! AIC> 72,351
-6 SUNCORP CUSTODIAN SERVICES PTY.LIMITED T CAFTE Pt T 69,344
. 7 CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED ~ <CESIL cwuu s.esc 5. AIC> . = 69,320
~" '8 SUNCORP CUSTODIAN SERVICES PTY: LIMITE e <ACT>. .. Lo 52,845 .-
9 COGENT NOMINEES PTY LIMITED 7 =~ =¥ "n = oo 50,000
10 UCA CASH MANGAGEMENT: FUND LTD, ’ R T RIS 50,000
11 CRYTON INVESTMENTS NO 9PTYLTD <GARNER NUMBER 1 A/C> 48,000 .

. 12.BRENCORP PTY:LIMITED:. ) ‘<BRENCORP:NO 11 RTY LTD A/C> 40,000 0.73
13 RBC GLOBAL SERVICES AUSTRALIA NOMINEES PTY LIMITED <ssJBw A/c> 36,250 0.66
14'SR CONSOLIDATED PTY'LTD" : RS J 730,300 - 0,55
15 AUSTRALIAN EXECUTOR TRUSTEES LIMITED 25,678 0.47

<16 ’ARGO INVESTMENTS LIMITED -7 - .27 25,000 0.45
17 CLYCUTPTY LTD 23,464 0.43
18 CAMBOOYA PTY LIMITED: : 20,250 0.37
19 AUSTRALIAN NATIONAL UNIVERS!TY 20,000 0.36
20 MARBEAR HOLDINGS PTY LIMITED .. -+ 20,000 0:36

Total Tcp 20 Holders 2,228,810 40.53
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Appendix F - A Snapshot of IAG

Australian Personal . Australian Commercial .
) : . International
Insurance Operations 8 Insurance Operations

Our Australian personal
insurance . business develops,
underwrites - and  distributes’
personal insurance products,
and manages claims  and
assessing - services. It is the
largest insurance underwriting
and claims and assessing
operation in Australia  and
represents approximately 61%
of our business.

Our personat insurance
products are sold primarily
under our NRMA Insurance

brand in NSW, ACT,
Queensland and Tasmania.
SGIO is our primary brand in
-Western Australia, and SGIC in
South Australia. In Victoria, we

" distribute home, motor and

other  insurance products
through RACV. Products are
distributed through our
branches, call -centres and .

representatives. In additicn, we™

sell a range, of personal

Personal’ Insurance.... producrs
distributed nationally by CGU
are generally  sold by
(msurcnce
ogems) :
business - partners (f‘ncncml
institutions and aliances). -
Short-tail Insurance

¢  Motor vehicle

¢ Home and contents

. Niche ‘insurance, such as
pleasure “craft, veteran
and classic car, caravan,
and travei insurance.

Long-tail Insurance
s Compulsory third party.

- underwrites and

-Qur commercial
. products are sold primarily under

L. retail - brapds - NRMA -1 )
- -SGIO and . SGIC. Thesé ore lorgely

commercial
develops,
distributes
insurance products for businesses.

insurance

Qur Australian
insurance  business

our CGU Insurance brand through
a network of more than 1,000
intermediaries (insurance brokers

* and agents).

We are a leading provider of

workers' compensation services in -
Australiac and opercate in every

State and Tenitory where there is
a private involvement. In NSW,
Victoria and South Australia we
collect premiums and manage
claims . on behalf of -the
Government. In Western

Australia, Tasmania, ACT and the
Northern Temitory, we undemwrite
policies and manage claims.
Comprehensive risk management
, ; services. are available to-all .our
employer customers.

targeted at sole operators. and
sm@mer busunessesN o

Commercuol properts/ 3T

s " Commercialmotsr and ﬂeet R

motor

s Constructionand

engineering
Farm, crop and livestock
Marine

Long-tail Insurance

Public and products liability
Professional indemnity
Directors' and officers’
Home warranty

Workers' compensation

¢« & & o o

NEW ZEALAND

Our New Zealand business is the leading
insurance provider in the country in the
direct channel and a leading msurer in
the intermediated channel.

We hold approximately 37% of the New
lealand market, and are strongly
positioned in all geographic markets.
We provide insurance products directly
to customers under our State brand and
through insurance brokers and agents
under our NZi brand. Our personail lines
and simplified commercial products are

' also distibuted through agents and

under the thid party brands by our
corporate pariners, who include large
financial institutions.

" Short-tail Insurance

Motor vehicle

Home and contents

Commercial property

Commercial motor and fleet motor
Construction and engineering
Niche insurance, such as pleasure
craff, boat, caravan, and ’rrovel.

- Rurol ond homculfurol-~-' P

Long taul lnsurcmce )

v . Surgicabs - .-
-7 .Personal-fiability -
;‘mcome pro1ecnon
v Commercxol Incbulny

ASIAN INTERESTS .

IAG has. inferests in:four businesses in
Asia - 100% ownership of the Beljing
Continental  Automobile  Association
(CAA) roadside assistance venture in
Ching; a controlling economic interest
in IAG Insurance Thailand (from July
2005); a 30% share of AmAssurance
Berhad {from February 2006) and a
strategic  383%  shareholding  in
Thailand's Safety Insurance. A tender to
acquire the remaining shares in Safety
insurance opened for one month in late
February 2006.

Our Brands:

NEMA SGIO SGIC

1
Insurance RBRROAES

1. Not owned by IAG

2
S Wi stae | g RATCE: ] #O

2. Owned in joint ventures (approximately $0% held by IAG)

2

insurance Australia Group Limited - ABN 60 090 739
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Appendix G - Glossary

Australia
Group

A\

The following is a glossary of the terms used in this report including terms commonly used in the

insurance industry.

'AASB:
ABS:
AIFRS:
APRA:

Business Volume:

Combined Ratio:

CTP:

__- VEx)Ch'ong_evRi_g.hf: . o

" “Expense Ratio:- = ¢ -

_Fire services Levy (FSL):

Australian Accounting Standards Board.
Australian Bureau of Statistics.
Australian equivalents of International Financial Reporting Standards.

Australian Prudential Regulation Authority.

this measures the volume of business at a point in time. The basis of
the measure depends on the class of business. In personal lines class
of business, the relevant volume measure is risks in force. Meanwhile,
in commercial classes the volume measure is “policies in force”. The
difference in the definition is required to capture the distinct nature
of IAG’s business mix.

repre.sems the totai of Net Claims Expense incurred and Underwriting
Expenses, as a percentage of Net Eamed Premium. It is equivalent
to the sum of the Loss Ratio and Expense Ratio.

compulsory third party insurance, which is liability cover that motorists
are obhged to purchose

the nghf that IAG has 'ro Exchonge RES for Preference Shcres at any

time occordmg to clause 8 of the RES Terms.

~ thetratio of ‘Underwrifing Expenses to Net Earned Premium. Expenses
- aretsplitinto. odmrnnsfroﬂon ‘and comimission, with rates cclculc?ed on
.. the same basis:: N T S N :

FSL is a tax on insurers to osswf governmenf fundlng for fire services.

" FSLs.an expense:of the insurer, rather than govermment charges
_ directly: uporithose msured The insurer-is responsible for paying the _.
. FSL, usually in arrears., The amount. pcld by the-insurer does noi~
" depend on the . omoum‘s collected from those insured-in relation to

» the levy.
. Gross Written Premivm (GWP):

Group:

Insurance Margin:
Insurance Profit:
ISA:

Long-tail:

Loss Ratio:
MCR.. .
Net Claims Expense:

Net Earned Premium (NEP):

the total premiums relating to insurance policies underwritten by an
insurer or reinsurer during a specified period, before deduction of
Reinsurance premiums.

IAG and its controlied entities.

the ratio of Insurance Profit to Net Earned Premium.

Underwriting Result plué investment income on Technicgl Reserves.
Insurance Statistics _Aus’rrc:lio Limited

classes of insurance {such as CTP and workers' compensation
insurance) with an average period between the time when
premiums  are - received and final settlement of claims which is
generally greater than 12 months.

the ratio of Net Claims Expense to Net Earned Premium.
minimum capital requirement as defined by APRA,

insurance claim losses incured plus clcnms handling expenses minus
Recoveries.

Gross Written Premium plus/minus the decrease/increase in
uneamed premium less the reinsurance expense applicable to that
period/premium.
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Probability of Adequacy
(POA): :

RACYV:

Recoveries:

Reinsurance:

RES:

RPS:

Risks in Force:

-~ S&P:

" Technical Reserves:

Underwriting:

Underwriting Expenses:

Underwriting profit/(loss):

Underwriting Result:
Unearned Premium:

WACC:

= Shareholders' Funds: ™~ -

s an {e
Australia
Group

is the estimated probability that the amounts set aside to settle
claims will be equal o or in excess of the amounts eventually paid in
respect of those claims. This estimation is based on a combination of
prior experience and expectations, actuarial modelling and
judgement. APRA’s prudential standard GPS 210 requires general
insurers to maintain a minimum probability of adequacy of claims
reserves of 75% for the purpose of assessing solvency under the
insurance Act 1973 (as amended).

Royal Automobile Club of Victoria (RACV) Limited.

the amount of claims recovered from reinsurers, third parties or
salvage. -

the practise whereby one party {the Reinsurer), in consideration for a
premium paid to it, agrees to cover certain pre-agreed liabilities of

“ancther party (the Reinsured) arising from insurance policies issued

by that Reinsured.

Reset Exchongeoble Securities issued by IAG Finance (New Zealand)
Limited and quoted on ASX as IANG. The issuer is a wholly owned
subsidiary of IAG.

Reset preference shares issued by 1AG in two tranches and listed on
ASX as IAGPA and IAGPB.

risk refers to the subject matter than an insurance policy or contract

~protects (for example, number of vehicles, houses, employees). An

insurance policy may cover one risk or many risks, depending on the

-~ terms of the policy. -Risks.in force are a measure of the fofal number
.., ofrisks covered: By-anirsurance compony at g pointin time. - -

the investment portfolio other than Techricar Reserves.” it Essentially ™
represents the shoreholders copnfol that’is not being utilised in day-

to-day operohons

generally less than 12 months.

: Standard- & Poor's Rcmng Services or S’rondcrd & Poor 5 |nvesfmen1

Services.

the investments held to back provisions for outstanding claims
(including incurred but not reported and incurred but not enough
recorded) and Uneamed Premium, net of Recoveries and premium
debtors.

the process of examining, accepting or rejecting insurance risk, and
classifying those accepted, in order to charge an appropriate
premium for each accepted risk.

those expenses incurred as a result of Underwriting activities,

- including risk assessment, commission expenses and other acquisition

expenses.
see Underwriting Result.

Net Earned Premium less Net Claims Expense less Underwriting
Expenses.

the portion of premium written applicable to the unexpired portion
of a policy.

weighted average cost of capital.
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Appendix H -~ Reconciliations to previous basis of reporting

The following tables provide reconciliations to the Group's previous basis of reporting for 1HO5 and
2HOS for each segment. These adjustments arise from the adoption of AIFRS and the Group’s
decision to re-classify the results of its captive reinsurer, IAG Re. '

The most significant differences relating to the change to AIFRS arise from:

» Recognising the movement in the financial position of the defined benefit superannuation
plan rather than cash contributions; and

’ Capitalising and amortising software development ~ previously the requirements meant that
the Group expensed all costs as incured.

The profit eamed by the captive from reinsuring the Group's consolidated operations has been
allocated back to those businesses on a basis, which reflects the profits eamed from those
businesses. This has been done by adjusting the reinsurance expense in each business for 2H04
onwards. :

For comparative periods, the aggregate of the Group's three segments differs slightly to the
consolidated result due to rounding differences.

Australian Personal Lines

N . AGAAPexcl. . AIFRS  Capfive AIFRS incl.
Half-year ended Dec 04 Captive Adjustments  Adjustment Captive

Gross written premium

' Gross earned premium - - ... 1.986 Co
. Reinsurance expense e (106} ' =
Net premium revenve - - - - o . 880 X &
Net claims expense - o ) S . {1.262) (4]
.. Commisionexpense : - (gt
e .:,.Undewvnlrigg;iehse R [€77) S V)
" .Underwriting profit B R R N (I
Investment income on technical reserves 158 -
._Insyrance profit for personal lines 340 o (18).

AGAAP excl. AIFRS Captive AIFRS incl.
Hall-year ended Jun 05 Captive  Adjustments  Adjustment  Captive

ST

Gross earned premivm

Reinsurance expense {109}

Net premium revenue 1,841 -
Net claims expense (1.279) (4}
Commission expense (116} -
Underwriting expense - (337} ' {1)
Underwriting profit 109 (5)
Investment income on technical reserves J 145

Insurance profit for personal lines 254 (5)
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Group

Australian Commercial Lines .

AGAAP excl. AIFRS Captive AIFRS incl
Adjus

Half-year ended Dec 04

Gross written premium

Gross earned premium ; 831 -
Reinsurance expense ~(100) -
Net premium revenue 731 -
Net claims expense (518) {6)
Commission expense (90) -
Underwriting expense ' {132) (15)
Underwriting profit . ‘ ) £) {21
investment income on technical reserves 93 ‘ -
Insurance profit ’ 84 (21)
Profit from fee based business - 11 -
Total commercial lines result 95 (21)

AGAAP excl. AIFRS Captive AIFRS incl.
Captive Adjustments Adjustment Captive
; S B SFREEE kil

Holf-year ended Jun 05

Gross written premium

Gross earned premium

" © Relnsurgnce expense e

. Net premium.revenve . . e 703 -
2z : - . Net claims expense - = -~ S 7100) R R0 )
"~ Commission expensé - e
. _...-Underwriting expénse - (138)

Investment incomie ontechriical

‘lnsurance proft - <
Profit from fee based business. -+ - - -+ - . -

“Total commerciai linesresult-- =~ S
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Group

International

AGAAP excl

Half-year ended Dec 04 Capfive

Gross written premium

AIfRS incl.
Captive

AIFRS
Adjustments

Captive

Gross earned premium 494 -
Reinsurance expense 4
Net premium revenye 498 -
Net claims expense (287}
Commission expense {49)
Underwriting expense (80} -
Underwriting profit 82 -
Investment income on technical reserves 12 -
Insurance profit 4 94 -
China Automobile Association (2)

-_Total international result 92 -

AGAAP excl.

Half-year ended Jun 05 Captive

Gross written premium

AIFRS incl.
Captive

AIFRS
Adjustments

Captive
Adjustment
R

Gross earned premivm
Reinsurance expense

- - Netpremium revenue -

~in 0 Netcloims expense -t &
~ Commission expense

- Underwriting .expense- =

Uﬁdeljvi_;riﬁng profit -

“fAvestment income ontechnical réserves.

“Insurance profit
China Automobile Association

Total international result

Insurance Australia Group Limited - ABN 60 090 739
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INSURANCE AUS TRALIA GROUP LIMITED

APPENDIX 4D - HALF YEAR REPORT 31 DECEMBER 2005

RESULTS FOR ANNOUNCEMENT TO THE MARKET

Up/down % change $m
Revenue from ordinary activities Down -1% 4,234
Profit from ordinary activities after tax Down -1% 461
attributable to shareholders
Net profit attributable to shareholders of Down -1% 461
Insurance Australia Group Limited :
Dividends — ordinary shares Amount per share Franked amount per share
Interim dividend 13.5 cents 13.5 cents

~ . The record date of the dividend s-8-March-2006. The dividend.is to be paid on 10 April 2006. The last date for the
‘receipt of an election notice for'participation in the company’s Dividend Reinvestment Plan is 8 March 2006.-

C i e e

Page 1
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APPENDIX 4D — HALF YEAR REPORT 31 DECEMBER 2005

OTHER INFORMATION

During the half year the Insurance Australia Group held an interest in the following joint ventures:

% Held
NTI Limited ﬁ 50

The company’s aggregate share of profits of these entities is not material.

" Page 2




INOURANLE AUS I RALIA ODROUUF LIMITED

APPENDIX 4D — HALF YEAR REPORT 31 DECEMBER 2005

APPENDIX 4D COMPLIANCE MATRIX

Appendix 4D disclosure requirements

Insurance Australia Group Appéndix 4D

Page
Number

Note
Number

1. Details of the reporting period and the
previous corresponding period. '

All financial data headings

2. Key information in relation to the
following.  This information must be
identified as “Results for announcement
to the market”.

2.1 The amount and percentage change up
~or down from the previous corresponding
period of revenue from ordinary activities.

2.2 The amount and percentage change up
or down from the previous corresponding
period of profit (loss) from ordinary
activities after tax atiributable to
members,

2.3 The amount and percentage change up or
down from the previous corresponding
period of net profit (loss) for the period
attributable to members.

2.4 The amount pe_r'sécurity and franked

.amount per security of final and interim | -
dividends or a statement that it is not

proposed to pay dividends.

25 The record date for _-determining
' ~éntitlements to the dividends (if any). ..
2.6 A brief explanation of any of the figures in

2.1 to 2.4 necessary to enable the figures
to be understood.

“Results for announcement to the market” page 1
Appendix 4D

3. Net tangible assets per security with the
comparative figure for the previous
corresponding period.

Attachment A: Half year financial report 31
December 2005:
¢ Notes to the financial statements

- Net tangible assets.

P.43

Note 13

4. Details of entities over which control has
been gained or lost during the period,
including the following.

4.1 Name of the entity:
4.2 The date of the gain or loss of control.

4.3 Where material to an understanding of
the report — the contribution of such
entities to the reporting entity’s profit from
ordinary activities during the period and
the profit or loss of such entities during
the whole of the previous corresponding
period.

Attachment A: Half year financial report 31
December 2005:
o  Notes to the financial statements
- Changes in the composition of the
consolidated entity

P.41

Note 11
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APPENDIX 4D — HALF YEAR REPORT 31 DECEMBER 2005

Details of individual and total dividends or
distributions and dividend or distribution

Attachment A: Half year financial report 31
December 2005:

payments. The details must include the | «  Notes to the financial statements _
date on which each dividend or - Dividends note P.35 Note 8
distribution is payable and (if known} the

amount per security of foreign sourced

dividand or distribution. '

Details of any dividend or distribution | Attachment A: Half year financial report 31

reinvestment plan in operation and the | December 2005:

last date for the receipt of an election | «  Notes to the financial statements

notice for participation in any dividend or - Dividend note P.35 Note 8

distribution reinvestment plan.

Details of associates and joint venture
entities  including the name of the
associate or joint venture entity and
details of the reporting entity’s percentage
holding in each of these entities and -
where material to an understanding of the
report - aggregate share of profits
(losses) of these entities, details of
contributions to net profit for each of
these entities, and with comparative

figures for each. of these disclosures for .

the previous corresponding period.

“Other information” page 2 Appendix 4D

. -For.. foreiénw ehti:ties"-;::---w‘hich--:—--set - o%- -
accounting standards is used in compiling: o
the report (e.g. Internationa‘lgﬁ_cgoy‘n_t_ing" e

Standards).

e e L o L s

For all entities, if the accbuntswéréu subject 1

to audit dispute or qualification, a
description of the dispute or qualification.

Not ahpiicable: N

Page 4
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APPENDIX 4D — HALF YEAR REPORT 31 DECEMBER 2005

ATTACHMENT A

INSURANCE AUSTRALIA GROUP LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

HALF YEAR FINANCIAL REPORT 31 DECEMBER 2005 -
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Insurance Australia Group Limited is a publicly listed company limii:ed by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. Its
registered office and principal place of business is level 26, 388 George Street, Sydney, NSW 2000.

This half year financial report does not include all of the notes normally included in an annual financial report. Accordingly, this
report is to be read in conjunction with the annual report for the year ended 30 June 2005 and any public announcements made by
Insurance Australia Group Limited during the half year reportmg period in accordance with the continuous disclosure requirements of
the Corporations Act 2001,
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INSURANCE AUSTRALIA GROUP LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors present their report together with the consolidated financial report of Insurance Australia Group Limited (“IAG” /
“Parent” / “Company’’) and the entities it controlled (“IAG Group”) for the half year ended 31 December 2005 and the review report

thereon.

Directors

The Company’s Directors in office at any time during or since the end of the half year are as follows. Directors were in office for the
entire period unless otherwise stated.

Mr JA Strong (Director since 2 August 2001), Ms YA Allen (Director since 10 November 2004), Mr JF Astbury (Director since 25
July 2000), Mr GA Cousins (Director since 25 July 2000), Mr ND Hamilton (Director since 19 June 2000), Mr RA Ross (Director
since 25 July 2000), Mr BM Schwartz (Director since 1 January 2005) and Mr MJ Hawker (Director since 1 December 2001).

Operating and financial review

Operating result for the year

The IAG Group’s net profit after tax for the half year was $513 million (2004 - $524 million). After adjusting for outside equity
interests in the IAG Group result, net profit attributable to shareholders of the Company was $461 million (2004 - $467 million).

The current period result has been determined based on the adoption of the Australian equivalents of the International Financial
Reporting Standards and where applicable, the prior period information has been updated to reflect this change. Notes 1 and 2 of the
financial statements provide detailed information on the accounting policies applied and the resultant impact on the prior period
financial performance and financial position.

Underwriting result - LT o o _ N

" ""The.TAG .Group produced an underwriting-profit-before.investment -income:on -technical reserves of $274 million (2004 - $219. ... .
million). The-underwriting profit is affected by interest rate movements which change the discount rate applicable to claims-reserves.
-~ In 2005, this resulted in a decrease in claims expense by $16 million compared to an expense of $65 million in 2004. This resulted in
a decrease in the loss ratio to 63.8% (2004 — 66.9%) and the combined ratio to 91.2% (2004 = 93.0%). Excluding the impact of the

*~ movement ifi interest rates on claims expense, the underlying loss ratio unproved modestly to 64.4% (2004 - 64.8%) whilst the

combined ratio was negatively impacted by an increase 16'91.7% (2004 - 90.9%) as a result of an increase in the expense ratio. The
increase in the expense ratio to 27.4% (2004 ~ 26.1%) was mainly attributable to an adverse fire service levy adjustment and an
increase in advertising costs. .

The insurance profit of $469 million (2004 - $482 million), which is considered to be a sound insurance trading result, equated to an
insurance margin of 15.1% (2004 - 15.5%).

The following discussion of underwriting result by business segments, being the Australian personal and commercial lines and the
New Zealand insurance operations, incorporates an allocation of profit from the IAG Group’s Captive reinsurer. This allocation was
based on the net contribution of the business segments to the Captive result.

(a) Australian personal lines insurance operations

The personal lines insurance operations produced an insurance margin of 13.1% for the financial perlod (2004 — 18.3%). The decline
in the insurance margin is attributable to the competitive price pressures in all segments, an increase in claims reserves in the NSW
CTP portfolio to reflect an increasing trend in average weekly earnings in NSW, additional fire service levies and an increase in
advertising costs. Despite these pressures and the reduction of insurance margin, the strength in the underlying performance was a
result of the continued focus on adhering to underwriting discipline and risk selection.

Gross written premiums decreased by 3.3% to $1,936 million (2004 - $2,002 million), due to strong competition.
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(b) Australian commercial lines insurance operations

The commercial lines insurance operations produced an insurance margin of 18.5% for the financial period (2004 — 9.2%). The
significant increase in the margin over prior period was due to claims reserve releases reflecting the recognition of tort law reform on
both prior year reserves and current year claims experience. This was partially offset by additional fire service levies and an increase
in frequency of large fire related losses in the short-tail commercial portfolio.

Gross written premiums decreased by 8.0% to $761 mllhon (2004 - $827 million) due to strong competition in a softening rate
environment,

Fee based income produced a profit of $2 million (2004 - $11 million). The profitable performance from premium funding activities
and the non-risk workers’ compensation scheme in Victoria was offset by further provisioning required in the NSW workers’
compensation business arising from the reassessment of the fee income relating to prior periods.

(c) International insurance operations

New Zealand insurance operations: '

The New Zealand insurance operations produced an insurance margin of 18.6% for the financial period (2004 - 15.0%). The
improved result is despite slowing economic growth, strong competition amongst consolidated players and increasing capital capacity
from foreign players éntering the New Zealand market. In ordeér.to maintain market.share and-margins, JAG New Zealand has
implementzsd a number of sales and service initiatives focused on delivering improvements in underwntmg, product development and
partnering with distributors to enhance processmg and product delivery. to customers. . : .

Gross written premxums decrcased by 1. 0% to $494 mﬂhon (2004 $499 mﬂhon) Wthh mcludes a negatlve 1mpact of $5 mxlhon or, ‘
1% from unfavourable exchange rate movements in the current financial penod e - : '

Thailand insurance operations: - . . - ' L
The IAG Group acquired IAG Insurance (Thaxland) Ltd (formerly Royal and Sun Insurance Alliance (Thaxland) Ltd) ong July 2005. -

B Gzoss wrltten prermum for the perlod to 31 D mbcr 2005 was $16 mdhon w1th a combmed ratlo of 7. 7% :,,",,:\,v,‘_ e

Captzve remsurer

penod This was mamly drwen by hxgher ete txo . évels by

in the form of reset exchangeable’ secuntles by the IAG Group m January 2005 resultmg in lower prermums bemg earned by the A,
Captive.. As previously discussed; the Captive’s financial performance has been allocated to the Australian personal and commermal N
lines and the New Zealand insurance operations.

(d) Corporate and investments

Investment income on corporate and equity holders’ funds (net of investment expenses) increased by 16.7% to $342 million. The
increase was due to the strong investment performance by all the major asset classes, particularly Austrahan equities, in the current -
financial period. . :

The net corporate expenses have increased by $22 million (40%) to $77 million. This increase was mainly attributable to:

» increase in borrowing costs-by $17 mllhon in the current financial period due to the reclassification of reset preference
shares as debt under AIFRS; and

e increase in head office corporate expenses by $3 million to $18 million in the current financial period due to the
implementation of the international growth strategy. .

Review of financial condition

(a) Financial position

Assets:
The total assets of the IAG Group as at 31 December 2005 are $16,894 million (30 June 2005 - $17,102 nulhon)

The decrease is mainly attributable to a general decrease in growth of gross written premium during the ﬁnancxal period, reﬂectmg
the decrease in insurance balances held at 3] December 2005.
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Liabilities:

The total liabilities of the IAG Group as at 31 December 2005 are $13,125 million (30 June 2005 - $12,599 million) with the major
component being general insurance liabilities of $10,366 million (30 June 2005 - $10,426 miliion). The increase is attributable to the
reclassification, under AIFRS, of reset preference shares to interest-bearing liabilities (from equity) and of unitholders’ funds to

liabilities (from minority interests) from 1 July 2003.

Equity:
Total equity decreased by $734 million mainly due to the reclassification, under AIFRS, of reset preference shares ($539 million) to
mnterest-bearing liabilities (from equity) and of unitholders’ funds ($421 million) to liabilities (from minority interests) from 1 July

2005. Total equity has also being impacted by the following activities during the year:

Increase: :
e  Net profit of $461 million.

Decrease:
s  payment of dmdends of $231 million.

b) Cash from operations

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash inflows from operatmg activities have decreased by $267 million 10 $164 million.

The decrease is mainly attributable to:

an increase in claims costs paid; -
_higher income taxes paid;

higher finance costs paid due to the reclassification of reset preference shares; and
. an increase.m other operating payments (such as. fire services levies and advertising costs as. mentroned in. underwntmg A
... .results above); and . L e e Ce e e ——_—

_The. decrease was offset to some extent by the: - SR

. e increase in remsurance and -other recovenes recewed and
‘e anincrease in other operating recelpts

Cash ﬂows Jrom investing activities:
Cash inflows from investing activities have increased by $616 million to $592 million.

The increase is largely attributable to the higher level of redemption of investments to cash to fund the surplus capital fund as a result
of a reduction in cash generated from operating activities (refer details above). This fund is used for income tax and dividend
payments and other capital transactions. In addition, there was a net redemption of trust units in the IAG controlled trusts by third

party unitholders.

Cash flows from financing activities:

Cash outflows from financing activities have increased by $116 million to $482 million.
This increase is attributable to the:

*  repayment of $46 million of NZ senior term notes which matured in August 2005; and
¢ net redemptions of trust units in the IAG controlled trusts of $161 million in the current financial period compared with net
redemption of $76 million in the prior period.

(c) Capital adequacy / minimum capital requirements

The IAG Group minimum capital requirement (“MCR”) multiple, calculated by applying APRA standards for individual licensed
insurers to the relevant consolidated results, is 2.04 times as at 31 December 2005 (30 June 2005 — 2.00 times). The multiple remains
above the IAG Group’s current benchmark multiple of 1.55 times MCR.

Further information on the IAG Group’s result and review of operations can be found in the 31 December 2005 Investor Report on
the Company’s website, WWW. iag.com.au.
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Lead auditor’s independence declaration under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001

The lead auditor’s independence declaration is set out on page 5 and forms part of the directors’ report for the half year ended 31
December 2005.

Events subsequent to reporting date
Details of matters subsequent to the end of the financial period are set out in note 14. These include:

e a drvrdend declared of 13.5 cents per ordinary share The Dividend Reinvestment Plan will operate using shares acquired on
market with no discount applied;

e on9 December 2005, the IAG Group announced that it had agreed to acquire a 30% interest in a general insurer in Malaysia,
AmAssurance Berhad (“AmAssurance”). Approval for the acquisition was received from the Malaysia Ministry of Finance
on 16 January 2006. The acquisition is still however subject to final regulatory approval from Malaysia’s Foreign
Investment Committee.

e on 7 February 2006, the IAG Group announced it had signed an exclusive memorandum of understanding regarding a
proposed investment in China Pacific Property Insurance Co, Ltd (CPIC Property), a China based general insurance
business. The IAG Group will negotiate with CPIC Property to purchase an initial 24.9% interest, as well as an option to
increase its ownership to 40% subject to certain regulatory approvals.

e on 10 February 2006, the IAG Group acquired an additional 16.7% interest in Safety Insurance Public Company Limited
(“Safety Insurance”), taking its existing 21.6% shareholding to 38.3%. The IAG Group announced on 13 February 2006
that it intends to further increase its interést in"Safety Insurance through a general tender offer to all Safety Insurance
shareholders. :

e on 23 February 2006, IAG announced it would return $200 million to shareholders by 30 June 2006:.

Dividends - = " . L

Eh Roundlng of amounts A

i'—“Unless otherwise: stated, amonnts in ?thc financial report- and;=Drrectors, fepoit have:been rounded fo the nearest mrllron dollars The '
'Company is of a kind referred to in the class order 98/100 dated 10 July 1998 issued by the Australian Securities & Investments :
Commission. All roundmg has been conducted in accordance with that class order. :

- Signed at Sydney this 23rd day of February 2006 in accordance with a resolutron of the Dll‘CCtOI‘S S
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LEAD AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION UNDER SECTION 307C OF THE
CORPORATIONS ACT 2001

To: the directors of Insurance Australia Group Limited

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the review for the half year ended 31 December 2005 there have
been:

(a) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the review;
and '

(b) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the review.

KPMG
' ¥ -,
y lidries‘B"‘v;I'e“rb'l‘alvxché S h i e e L SRR T
“ Partner - - o7 - e o ;

-23rd February 2006 .
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

ewe CONSOLIDATED
31 Dec 31 Dec
Notes 2005 2004
$m - 3m
Premium revenue 3(a) © 3,320 3,311
Reinsurance expense (209) {202)
Net premium revenue (i) 3,111 3,109
Claims expense (2,245) (2,361)
Reinsurance and other recoveries 3(a) 259 282
Net claims expense (ii) - (1,986) (2,079)
Acquisition costs (542) (533)
Other underwriting expenses (186) (191)
Fire service levies 123) &N
Underwriting expenses _(iii) {851) (811)
Underwriting profit (i) + (ii) + (iii) 274 219
Investment income on technical reserves 3b) 202 270
Investment expenses on technical reserves ) (7
Insurance profit 469 482
Investment income on equity holders’ funds 3(b) 352 . 299
Other income 3(c) 101 v, 109
Finance costs ‘ » » o _ @45 ke (28)
Net income attributable to minority interests in unitholders’ funds- =~ ™" "~ i ARy 7ol e
.. Corporate, administration and other expenses ' Ln (133) -
" Profit before income tax . B3
Income tax exXpense . - e e T 220)

... -Proficforiheperiod . . oo - oo o

Profit for the period attributable to:

Equity holders of the Parent 461 467
Minority interests 52 57

" Profit for the period 513 524

31 Dec 31 Dec -

2005 2004

cents cents

Basic earnings per ordinary share 7 29.06 28.54
Diluted earings per ordinary share 7 ‘ 28.89 28.35

The above consolidated income statement should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSE FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2005

CONSOLIDATED
31 Dec 31 Dec
2005 2004
$m $m
Initial recognition of AIFRS adjustments directly to retained eamings at 1
“July 2005, net of tax
- Adjustment to valuation of investments 1 -
- Amortisation of reset preference shares transaction costs (6) -
- Accrual for distribution on reset preference shares 8)) -
- Net tax impact of AIFRS adjustments to retained earnings - -
Initial recognition of AIFRS adjustments directly to reserves at 1 July
2005, net of tax
- Recognition of hedging reserve 3. -
Net AIFRS adjustments at 1 July 2005 ’ (11 -
Actuarial gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans, net of tax 8 -
Net exchange difference on translation of foreign operations ‘ 3 1
Movement in hedging reserve, net of tax “ -
Net income recognised directly in equity , . ) M.
Profit for the period 513 _ 524
Total recognised income and expense for the period ' 509 .- 523
_Total recogmsed income and expense for the perlod attrlbutable to: - D C » Ce e
. 'Equxty holders ofthe Parent o o _ S o o » ' 458~ o ‘4'6“6_ T
Minority interests - T,, R » e T Tt o = - 57 :
Total recognised income and expense for the period- - 77 T o oo - 509 523

Other movements in equity arising from transactions with equity holders acting in their capacity as equity holders are set out in note
10.

The above consolidated statement of recognised income and expense should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial
statements. .



INSURANCE AUSTRALIA GROUP LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
- CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2005

-CONSOLIDATED
31 Dec 30 Jun
Notes 2005 2005
$m $m
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - o 733 456
Investments 10,075 10,375
Premium receivable ' 1,592 1,710
Trade ancl other receivables : 700 657
Current tax assets - 4
Reinsurarnice and other recoveries receivable 999 1,053
Inventories 2 ' 2
Prepayments 21 38
Deferred levies and charges - 118 105
Deferred reinsurance expense ' 143 194
Deferred acquisition costs - 601 621
Property, plant and equipment : ] 252 259
Deferred tax assets ' 118 131
Investment in joint ventures and associates ' ) ‘ 2 3
Intangible assets , ‘ 50 - 31
Goodwill 1,488 1,463
Total assets o : 16,894 17,102
Liabilities , . .
Trade and other payables . . ... .o e e e AT L P2
Reinsurance premiums payable. .. . .o.oomooim s mosmn o o mmmmnnemms =50 1130 - te P 195
Restructuring provision = = C T SR §
Current tax liabilities . -~ = =~ & T T T e B e 747193
UneXpired rlSk llablhty B N A - 3 PP AR T
“"Unearned prémium hablllty . 3,487 T

* Lease provision =~ .ovcmes o0 e e S 5 B

~ “Employee benefits provxslon e 1807 228 L
- Minority interests in-unitholders™ funds L s : - : e 205 - E T e e e
Deferred tax liabilities - : 40 24
Outstanding clairns liability ’ _ 6,876 6,840
Interest-bearing liabilities SRR 9 ) 1,295 779
Total liabilities o 13,125 12,599
Net assets 3,769 4,503
Equity .
Share capital 10(a) 3,263 3,802
Treasury shares 10(b) s 34)
Reserves ’ 10(c) 4 7
Retained earnings : 10(d) 375 142
Parent interest 10(d) 3,597 3917
Minority interests | ' C . 10¢e) 172 586
Total equity - 10 3,769 4,503

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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INSURANCE AUSTRALIA GROUP LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

“CONSOLIDATED
31 Dec 31 Dec
Note 2005 2004
_ $m $m
Cash flows from operating activities
Premium received 3,325 3,347
Reinsurance and other recoveries received 327 237
Claims costs paid (2,223) (2,095)
Reinsurance expense paid (181) (123)
Dividends received 58 . 55
Interest and similar items received 239 244
Finance costs paid (59) (32)
Income tax refund 7 9
Income tax paid (313) (259)
Other operating receipts 657 532
Other operating payfnents- (1,673) (1,484)
Net cash provided by operating actmtles 164 © 431
Cash flows from investing actlvmes , _ :
Net cash flows on acquisition of a subsidiary _ i1 29) oo-
Proceeds from disposal of investments and property, plant and equxpment ' 9,757 11,057
Outlays for investments and property, plant and equlpment acquued (9,105) (11 ,036)
Repayment of prémium funding loans - B 229 180
Advances of premlum ﬁmdmg loans ~ (260) (225)
“Net cash prov1ded by/(used in) mvestmg acnvmes S Y 592 (24)
Cash flows from ﬁnancmg actmtles - ' k el ST
" Proceeds from issués of trust units - ) T 446 468
“Outlays for redemption of trust umts i ©on - (544)
Proceeds from borrowings - o ‘ L e
~Repayment of borrowmgs T (46). e

“Dividends paid to TAG' equ1ty holde B i TUesny S
Dividends paid to minority interests N C L) R (52)
Net cash used in finahcing activities ‘ . (482) | - (366)
Net increase in cash held 274 41
Effects of exchange rate changes on balances of cash held in foreign
currencies 3 -
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July 456 424
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December ¥ 733 465

Notes:

(i) Cash and cash equivalents represents cash on. hand and m banks, deposits ‘a_t call and money market investments readily

convertible to cash within two working days, net of bank overdraft.

The above consolidated cash flow statement should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies

This general purpose financial report of Insurance Australia Group Limited (“IAG”) and the entities it controlled (“IAG Group”) for the
half year reporting period ended 31 December 2005 has been prepared in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 134 Interim

Financial Reporting, the Corporations Act 2001 and the Australian Stock Exchange Listing Rules. This general purpose financial report

of the 1AG Group was authorised by the Board of Directors for issue on 23rd February 2006.

This half year financial report does not include all of the notes normally included in an annual financial report. Accordingly, this report
is to be read in conjunction with the annual report for the year ended 30 June 2005 and any public announcements made by IAG during
the half year reporting period in accordance with the continuous disclosure requirements of the Corporations Act 2001.

The half year financial report would normally include only those significant accounting policies that are different to those applied in the
preceding annual financial report. To assist readers in understanding the significant accounting policies of the IAG Group under the
new Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (“AIFRS”), refer below for a complete set of significant
accounting policies.

(a) Basis of preparation of half year financial report

For all periods up to and including the year ended 30 June 2005, the IAG Group prepared financial reports in accordance with
Australian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“Australian GAAP”). From 1 July 2005, the IAG Group is required to prepare
financial reports in accordance with AIFRS effective for the half year ended 31 December 2005 and the full year ending 30 June 2006.
For the IAG Group, the date of transition to AIFRS was 1 July 2004, which is the start of the comparative period. The principal
accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out below. ' The presentation currency used for the
preparation of these financial reports is Australian dollars. The balance sheet is prepared using the liquidity format in which the assets
and liabilities are presented broadly in order of liquidity.

Reconciliations and éxp]anations of the impact of the transition from Australian GAAP to AIFRS on the IAG Group’s financial position,
financial performance and cash flows are provided in note 2.

The:accounting-policies adopted in the preparation-of.this-financiak report- have been- consnstently applied-by. all entities in the IAG; R

- Group. The policies have been applied consistently-to all periods-presented-in the financial report and in preparing-the opening AIFRS -
- - - balance sheet at-1- July 2004 for the:purposes of transition to ATFRS, except for the standards discussed below-for which’ comparatlvesi S

* have not beeii restatéd. Thesé financial statements have been’ prepared on the basis of histotical Cost principles, as modified by certain
». exceptions noted in the finaricial report, Wwith the principal exceptions being the measurement of all investments -and derivatives at fair

valug and the measurement of the outstanding claims liability 4t present value: -Certain items have been reclassified from the prior 7

pCHOd s ﬁnancml reports to. conform o the currenit 10d’8

the value of the interest rate swap formmg part of the hedge on the US subordinated term notes prev1ously disclosed as a payable is now
disclosed together with the liability (reclassification as at 30 June 2005 of $2 million), the net value of corporate treasury derivatives
previously offset against payables is now included in trade and other receivables (reclassification as at 30 June 2005 of $3 million), and
reinsurance premiums payable previously included within trade and other payables is now presented separately on the balance sheét.

Compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards

International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) refer to the overall framework of standards and pronouncements approved by the
International Accounting Standards Board. IFRS forms the basis of Australian Accounting Standards adopted by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board, being AIFRS. This half year financial report of the consolidated entity complies with IFRS.

First time adoption of AIFRS

This half year financial report is the first IAG half year financial report to be prepared in accordance with AIFRS. AASB | First-time
Adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards has been applied in preparing these financial
statements. There are several recognition and measurement differences between Australian GAAP and AIFRS. Preparation of this
AIFRS compliant half year financial report has required amendment of certain accounting policies, changes to certain valuation
methodologies, and reporting of certain information in a different manner than was the case under the previous Australian GAAP
financial reports. Comparative figures have been restated to reflect these adjustments except for several exceptions noted below. There
was also ar impact on the cash flow statement with the distributions on the reset preference shares, previously presented as dividends
paid, in financing activities, now presented as finance costs paid, in operating activities.

In preparing this half year financial report, the IAG Group has elected to take advantage of certain transitional provisions within AASB
1 which offer exemption from presenting comparative information or applying AIFRS retrospectively. The most significant impact
arises from the exemption from presenting comparative information in accordance with AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation,
AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and AASB 1023 General Insurance Contracts. Comparative
information for financial instruments and insurance contracts has been prepared on the basis of the IAG Group’s previous accounting
policies. The differences between the accounting policies applied are provided below in notes 1(h), 1{(m), 1{o) and 1(x) with additional
information presented in note 2.

§7 presentatlon capltahsed transactlon ‘costs on mterest—beannngablhtles c
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation of half year financial report (continued)

Upon transition to AIFRS the general principle is that the financial reports must be prepared as if the new standards had always been
applied. However, in addition to exempting companies from the requirement to restate comparatives for particular standards, AASB 1
grants certain exemptions from the full requirements of AIFRS. The [AG Group has made the following first time adoption elections:

Business combinations — The IAG Group has not restated the accounting for business combinations transacted prior to 1 July 2004.
Share based payments — The IAG Group has not retrospectively applied the AIFRS expense treatment to share based payments granted
prior to 7 November 2002 and/or that vested prior to 1 January 2005. ‘
Property, plant and equipment — The 1IAG Group has used the fair value of the property held as at 30 June 2004 as the deemed cost of
that property but has continued with original cost for plant and equipment.

Foreign currency translation reserve — The IAG Group has not reset the foreign currency translation reserve to zero.

Insurance contracts — The IAG Group will not apply certain disclosure requirements to prior periods.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments — The IAG Group has not applied the first time adoption relief from the retrospective
application of ‘Day One’ recognition requirements, ‘
Financial instruments options —~ The IAG Group has used this option to designate financial instruments to the various classifications
available under AIFRS as follows:

¢ Investments - classified as ‘fair value through profit or loss’;
e Receivables - classified as ‘loans and receivables’; and
* Payables and interest-bearing liabilities - classified as ‘amortised cost’.

The IAG Group will be required to prepare the first annual financial report prepared in accordance with AIFRS in compliance with each
of the standards that are effective at the reporting date, whether mandatorily or by election. Further standards and interpretations may be

issued between preparation:of this financial report- and- preparation. of -the. 2006-annual financial report which may impact.on the ﬁrst -

annual ﬁndnc.al report ,;repared under AIFRS, and- s0 may impact on the financial-#nformation presented in this report _

Critical accountmg Judgements and estimates : - '
- In the process of applymg the IAG Group ] accountmg pohcles various Judgements and esnmates are made

The preparanon of the ﬁnancml statements requxres the use. of certain critical accounting. es timates and assn_mptlons The areas- where“ :
assumptlons and ‘estimates-involve ‘a high- degree of judgment; or co:nplexlty and are cons1dered ‘significant to the financial statements - .
are: -

Outstanding claims liability;

Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable;
Goodwill and intangible assets impairment testing;
Defined benefit post-employment obligations; and
Share based remuneration expense.

The estimates and related assumptions are based on experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the resuits of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised, and
the future periods if relevant. The key changes in accounting estimates for the current half year reporting period are those-made in the
normal course of reserving for general insurance contracts (refer note 1(e)).

The accounting judgements made during the year that did not involve estimations are considered to have had no significant impact on
the amounts recognised in the financial report (2005 ~ none).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) ‘
(a) Basis of preparation of half year financial report (continued)

Australian accounting standards issued but not yet effective v
 As at the date of this financial report, there are a number of new and revised accounting standards on issue with mandatory application
dates after the end of this current reporting period. Many of the standards are permitted to be early adopted. Each of the standards
applicable to IAG that were able to be early adopted and applied for the half year financial report have been early adopted and applied.
We note the following standards that have only a disclosure impact that will be relevant for the first time to the 2006 annual financial
report: ‘
o AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures applicable for the first time to the 30 June 2008 financial report. It is anticipated
this standard will be early adopted for the 2006 annual financial report together with AASB 2005-10 which makes a number of
consequential amendments to other standards arising from the issue of AASB 7.

e  AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures issued in December 2005 \ahd the amendments made b}./ AASB 2004-35Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards for which application of the standard is mandatory for the 2006 annual financial report.

Voluntary changes in accounting policies - :
There have been no voluatary changes in accounting pohcres made during the current half year penod other than those relating to the
transition to AIFRS as disclosed in note 2.

(b) Principles of consolidation

Subsidiaries are those entities controlled by IAG. Control-exists when the Company has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the
. financial and operating policies of an.entity so as, to obtain benefits from its activities. Control is presumed to exist when more than half
. of the voting power of an entlty is owned elther dxrect]y or mdlrectly In assessmg control ,potential voting nghts that. presently are
he consohdated_ ginanmal report mcorporates the assets and« habx_lmes jof all

. subsidiaries as at_ orting dat all.subsidia I ’ s
to be. controlled_ dr g the. financial year the results are mcluded only from the date control commenc_ed or up 1o, the date control“ o
ceased. The balances and effects of transactions between group entities are eliminated on consohdatxon e G S

L A
The ﬁnancral statements of aTl subsrdlarxes are prepar 'f 5
‘11c1es The ﬁnancml statements of entisie

Where a <ubsrdrary 1s less than wholly-owned the equrty interests held by extemal partres are dlsc]osed as minority interests and shown
separately in the consolidated financial statements. : - :

Significant accounting policies related to general insurance contracts

All of the IAG Group’s general insurance products and reinsurance products on offer, or utilised, meet the definition of an insurance
contract (a contract under which one party, the insurer, accepts significance insurance risk from another party, the policyholder, by
agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event, the insured event, adversely affects the policyholder) and
none of the contracts contain embedded derivatives or are required to be unbundled. This means that all of the IAG Group’s general
insurance products are accounted for in the same manner. ‘

() Premmm revenue

Premium revenue comprises amounts charged to policyholders including fire service levies, but excluding stamp duties and taxes
collected on behalf of third parties. Premium is recognised as eamed from the date of attachment of risk over the period of the related
insurance contracts in accordance with the pattern of the incidence of risk expected under the contracts. The pattern of the risks
underwritten is generally matched by the passing of time. Premium on unclosed business (business written close to reporting date where
attachment of risk is pn'or to reporting date and there is insufficient information to accurately identify the business) is brought to account
based on previous years’ experience with due allowance for any changes in the pattern of new busmess and renewals. The uneamned
portion of premium is recognised as an unearned premium liability on the balance sheet.

Premium receivable is stated at the amount due and is normally settled between 30 days and 12 months. The recoverability of premium
receivable is assessed and provision is made for doubtful debts based on objective evidence and having. regard to past default
experience.,
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Outwards reinsurance

Premium ceded to reinsurers is recognised as an expense in accordance with the pattern of reinsurance service received. Accordingly, a
portion of outwards reinsurance premium is treated as a prepayment and disclosed as deferred reinsurance expense in the balance sheet
at the reporting date.

(e) Claims .

The outstanding claims liability is measured as the central estimate of the present value of expected future payments relating to claims
incurred at the reporting date with an additional risk margin to allow for the inherent uncertainty in the central estimate. The liability is
measured based on the advice of the Group’s Approved Actuary. The expected future payments include those in relation to claims
reported but not yet paid or not yet paid in full, claims incurred but not reported (“IBNR”), claims incurred but not enough reported
(“IBNER”) and the anticipated direct and indirect claims handling costs. In determining the liability, allowance is made for future
investment earnings by discounting future payments to present value using a risk free rate.

Claims expense represents claim payments adjusted for movement in the outstanding claims liability.

The estimation of the outstanding claims liability involves a number of key assumptions and is the IAG Group’s most critical accounting
estimate. The IAG Group takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has appropriate information regarding its claims exposures.
However, given the uncertainty in establishing the liability, 1t i8 Irkely that the final cutcome will be different from the original 11ab111ty

established.

(f) Reinsurance and other recoveries -

Remsurance and other recoveries on paid claims, reported clauns not yet pald IBNR aud IBNER, are recogmsed as revenue.

-+ Recoveriées recelvable are: measured as the present value-of the expected future recéipts calculated on the same basis as:the” outstandtng

claims’ habtlrty, and are disclosed net of : any prowsmn for doubtful debts 'Provision is made for. doubtful debts | based on, objectrve o

evidence for md1v1dua1 recetvables S

(2) Acquisition costs - o - Lo e R o : : G e

.. Costs, assomated w1th obtammg and recordmg general msurance contracts are. referred to as aCGUISltIOI‘l costs.” These costs include
s advertlsmg expenses, commissions: of, brokerage patd o agents or brokers, prennum collectton costs, risk. assessment costs and other -
administrative costs. Such costs are capitalised where they relate to unearned premium. The caprtalrsed costs, disclosed -as deferred

acquisition costs, are amortrsed on the same basis as the earning pattern of the premium over the period of the related insurance
contracts. )

(h) Liability adequacy test

The liability adequacy test is an assessment.of whether the carrying amount of the unearned premium liability is adequate. If current
estimates of the present value of the expected future cash flows relating to future claims arising from the rights and obligations under
current general insurance contracts, plus an additional risk margin to reflect the inherent uncertainty in the central estimate, exceed the
unearned premium liability less related intangible assets and related deferred acquisition costs, then the unearned premium liability is
deemed to be deficient. The test is performed at the level of a portfolio of contracts that are subject to broadly similar risks and that are
managed together as a single portfolio. Any deficiency arising from the test is recognised in the income statement. Recognition of a
deficiency impacts the balance sheet, first through the write down of any related intangible assets and then the related deferred
. acquisition costs, with any remaining balance being recognised in the balance sheet as an unexpired risk liability.

Prior to 1 July 2005 (refer to note 2 for further details)

Prior to the introduction of the liability adequacy test effective from 1 July 2005, a recoverability test was performed on the carrying
amount of deferred acquisition costs. Deferred acquisition costs were measured at the lower of cost and recoverable amount through the
conduct of a loss recognition test such that when the sum of the expected future claims and associated settlements costs, in relation to
business written to the reporting date, exceeded related uneamed premium, the deferred acquisition costs were written down to
recoverable amount and the write down was recognised as an expense. This test was conducted at the reporting entity level. The
conduct of the test did not result in a write down of deferred acqutsltlon costs for the pnor financial years ended 30 June 2004 and 30
June 2005.
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(i) Levies and charges

Levies and charges, for which the amount paid does not depend on the amounts collected, as is the case with fire service levies in
Australia, are expensed on the same basis as the recognition of premium revenue. The portion relating to unearned premium is treated
as a prepayment and disclosed as deferred levies and charges. A liability for levies and charges payable is recognised on business
written to the reporting date. Other levies and charges that are simply collected on behalf of third parties are not recognised in the
income statement.

Significant accounting policies applicable to other activities

(j) Fee baued revenue

Fee based revenue is brought to account on an accruals basis being recognised as revenue on a straight line basxs in accordance with the
passage of time as the services are provided.

(k) Leases

All leases entered into by the IAG Group are operaling leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits
of ownershlp of the leased items. The lease payments are recognised as an expense on a stra1ght line basis over the term of the lease

The IAG Group is predommantly the lessee in these arrangements but does act as lessor under certain sub-lease arrangements for which
the lease payments are recognised as revenue on a straight line basis over the term of the lease,

Lease incentives relating to the agreement of a new or renewed operating lease are recognised as an integral part of the net consideration
agreed for the use of the leased asset. Operating lease mcentlves recexved are mmally recogmsed as a lxabllxty, are disclosed as, trade
and other payables, and are subseque tly” ied thr > i
expense (lease payments ar" allocated
the lease -

(l) Taxatio*n _' ‘

(1) Income lax - ST ‘ .
Income tax -on’ the proﬁt or loss for the lyear compns"'

Current tax expens‘e is the expected tax payable on the taxable' income for the year, using tax rates for each jurisdiction, and any’

adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous financial periods. Deferred tax expense-is the change in deferred tax assets and
liabilities between the reporting periods. -

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised using the balance sheet method for temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes, except in the following
circumstances when no deferred tax asset or llablhty is recognised:

¢ temporary differences if they arose in a transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the transaction did not
affizct either accounting profit or taxable profit or loss; v

e temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of mvestments in sub51d1ar1es where it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

e temporary differences relating to goodwill that is not deductible for tax purposes.

The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at reporting date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised.

(ii) Tax consolidation

Insurance Australia Group Limited (“JAG”) and its Australian resident wholly-owned subsidiaries adopted the tax consolidation
legislation with effect from 1 July 2002 and are therefore taxed as a single entity from that date. The head entity within the tax-
consolidated group is IAG. ’
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

() Taxation (continued)

(ii) Tax consolidation (continued)

Current tax expense/income and deferred tax assets and habllmes arising from temporary differences of the members of the tax-
consolidated group are recognised in the separate financial statements of the members of the tax-consolidated group using the ‘separate
taxpayer within group’ approach by reference to the carrying amounts in the separate ﬁnanmal statements of each entity and the tax
values applying under tax consolidation.

Any current tax liabilities (or assets) and deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses of the subsidiaries are assumed by the head

entity in the tax-consolidated group and are recognised as amounts receivable / (payable) from / (to) other entities in the tax-.

consolidated group in conjunction with any tax funding arrangement amounts (refer below). Any difference between these amounts is
recognised by IAG as an equity contribution or distribution.

IAG recognises deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses of the tax-consolidated group to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits of the tax-consolidated group will be available against which the asset can be utilised.

Nature of tax funding arrangements and tax sharing arrangements »

The head entity, in conjunction with members of the tax-consolidated group, has entered into a tax funding arrangement which sets out
the funding obligations of members of the tax-consolidated group with respect to tax amounts. The tax funding arrangements require
payments to/from the head entity equal to the current tax liability / (asset) assumed by the head entity and any tax-loss deferred tax assets
(associated with tax losses of the wholly-owned subsidiaries) assumed by the head entity. This results in the head entity recognising an
intercompany receivable / / (payable) equal in amount to the tax llablhty / (asset) assumed. The intercompany amount receivable /
(payable) is at call. . : : :

-Contributions to fund the current tax liabilities are payable as per the taX funding arrangement and reﬂect the timing of the head-entity’s

obhgauon to make payments for tax lrabtlmes to the relevant tax authontxes T e e . -

- = - C R . ERPEY =

The head entxty, in conjunctron wrth members of the tax-consolidated group, has also entered into a tax sharing agreement. The tax
- sharing agreement provides for the determmatlon of the allocation of income tax-liabilities between the entities of the tax consolidated

group should the head entity default on its tax payment obligations. "No amounts have- been recogmsed in the ﬁnancral statements m o

o respect of thrs agreement as payment of any amounts under the tax sharmg agreement 1s C«

(m) Goods and services tax » ‘ '
Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (“GST”), except where the amount of GST
incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (“ATO”). In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the
cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of GST. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as
part of other receivables and payables in the balance sheet. Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis. The
GST components of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities, which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are
classified as operating cash flows. : :

(m) Investments

Investments comprise assets held to back insurance liabilities (referred to as technical reserves) and assets that represent equity holders’
funds. The IAG Group maintains segregated portfolios for those assets. All investments are managed and performance evaluated on a
fair value basis for both external and internal reporting purposes in accordance with the IAG Group’s documented risk management
strategy.

Investments are initially recorded at fair value (being the cost of acquisition excluding transaction costs) and are subsequently
remeasured to fair value at each reporting date. Changes in the fair value from the previous reporting date (or cost of acquisition
excluding transaction costs, if acquired during the financial period) are recognised in the income statement as realised or unrealised
investment gains or losses. Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on a trade date basis, being the date on which the IAG
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Transaction costs for purchases of investments are expensed as incurred and disclosed in
the income statement as investment expenses on technical reserves and corporate, administration and other expenses. Investments are
derecognised when the rights to receive future cash flows from the assets have expired, or have been transferred, and the IAG Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Investments (continued)

For securities listed in an active market, fair value is determined by reference to current bid price quotations. For unlisted securities, and
for securities listed in a market that is not active, fair value is determined using valuation techniques based on current economic
conditions and with reference to observable market data. For trust securities this generally means using the redemption price provided
by the trustee. The most common valuation technique used for other unlisted investments is reference to the fair values of recent arm’s
length transactions involving the same instruments or other instruments that are substantially the same. An alternative valuation
technique that is used for a small number of investments is discounted cash flow analysis.

Investment income, comprising dividends, trust distributions and interest, is brought to account on an accruals basis. Income on
investment in equity securities and property trusts is deemed to accrue on the date the dividends/distributions are declared, which for
listed equity securities is deemed to be the ex-dividend date.

Prior to I July 2005 (refer to note 2 for further details)
Prior to 1 July 2005, all investments were initially recorded at fair value (bemg the cost of acquisition including transaction costs) and
were subsequently remeasured to net market value at each reporting date. Changes in the net market value from the previous reporting

date (or cost of acquisition, if acquired during the financial period) were recognised in the income statement. This included all

derivatives used in relation to investment activities. Market values were determined using last sale price information.

(n) Investment in subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries are initially recognised-at cost and are subsequently carried'in the Company’s financial statements at the lower
of cost and recoverable amount. Income from these investments, comprising dividends and trust distributions, are brought to account on
an accruals basis. Dividends are accrued on the date they are declared.

(0) Denvatlves ’.' 15—'-" S

st

- The IAG -Group uses a vanety of denvatrves for the'sole' purpose of managmg 1ts nsk exposures Deriuatives are not held for
- speculative purposes e o S

_ Denvatwe&. are mmally recogmsed at fauvalue (generally, thetransactlon pnce the fau' value of the r‘onsrderatlon gwen'

e B : RIS s ’.L‘t

The method of recogmsmg the resultmg gain or Toss depends on whether Lhe denvatlve is désignated as a hedgmg instrument, and if so,
- the nature of the item being hedged.. Transaction costs for purchases of derivatives are expensed as incurred and disclosed in the income
statement as investment expenses on technical reserves and corporate, administration and other expenses.

. (i) Investment operations

All of the derivatives managed in conjunction with the investment operations are recognised on the balance sheet (disclosed together
with the underlying investments) at fair value with movements in fair value being recorded in the income statement as part of investment
revenue, None of the derivatives are designated -for hedge accounting. This matches the accounting for the derivatives with the

‘accounting for the underlying investments.

The fair value is determined by reference to current market quotes or generally accepted valuation principles. Derivatives used in
investment operations include share price index futures equxty swap agreements, exchange traded options and bank bill and bond
futures. »

(i) Corporate treasury operations _
There are various derivatives used by the IAG Group to hedge exposure to foreign currency and interest rate movements in relation to

corporate treasury transactions, including borrowings. While the IAG Group has a number of economic hedges in place, only a small

number of these transactions have been selected for hedge accounting. Those derivatives for which hedge accounting is not applied are
recognised on the balance sheet at fair value with movements in fair value being recorded in the income statement. The derivatives are
classified as assets and disclosed as receivables when the fair value is positive, or as liabilities and disclosed as payables when the fair
value is negative, except for cross currency swaps relating to borrowings, which are disclosed together with the borrowings. The
treatments for some of the instruments for which hedge accounting is not applied are as follows:

Cross currency swaps - The IAG Group enters into cross currency swaps to hedge foreign currency borrowings. Interest receipts and
payments on the swaps are charged to the income statement on a daily basis over the term for which the swap is effective as a hedge of
the underlying borrowing and are included within the interest expense on borrowings. Revaluation gains and losses are recognised in
the income statement against the revaluation losses and gains of the underlying hedged items.
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(0) Derivatives (continued)

(i1) Corporate treasury operations (continued)
Forward foreign exchange contracts — The IAG Group enters into forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge foreign currency

exposures recognised on its balance sheet. The forward foreign exchange contracts are recognised in the balance sheet at fair value
being the net amounts receivable or payable under the contracts and the associated deferred gains or losses. When recognised, the net
" receivables or payables are translated using the foreign currency exchange rate current at reporting date.

Anticipated transactions — The 1AG Group uses derivatives in relation to anticipated transactions. Transactions are designated as an
economic hedge of an anticipated transaction (typically a business combination), only when they are expected to reduce exposure to the
risks being hedged, are designated prospectively so that it is clear when an anticipated transaction has or has not occurred, and it is
probable the anticipated transaction will occur. Gains or losses on the derivative arising up to the date of the anticipated transaction,
together with any costs arising at the time of entering into the derivative, are deferred and included in the measurement of the
transaction. Any gains or losses on the derivative after the transaction date are included in the income statement. If the transaction does
not occur as anticipated, the costs are immediately expensed.

(iii) Hedge accounting

Where derivatives are designated for hedge accounting, they are classified as either; (i) hedge of the change in fair value of recognised
assets or liabilities or firm commitments (“fair value hedge”);. (ii) hedge of the variability in highly probable future cash flows
attributable to a recognised asset or liability, or a forecast transaction (“cash flow hedge™); (iii) hedge of a net investment in a foreign
operation (“net investment hedge”). Hedge accounting may be applied to derivatives designated as hedging instruments provided
certain criteria are met. The IAG Group has desxgnated certain transacnons as cash flow hedges and net investment hedges

To qualify for hedge accounting, at the mceptlon of the hedge and throughout 1ts life, each hedge must be ‘expected to be highly effective

(prospective effectweness) - Actual.effectiveness’ (retrospeetwe ef"ect-\ eness) in the range of 80 per cerit'to 125-per cent must.also be ' = -

. ~demonstrated on an ongoing basis. It is TAG: Group policy to document at-the inception of a hedgmg relationship, the relationship
. between the- ‘hedging instruments and hedged items, as.well as its.risk management objective and.strategy for undertaking the hedge.

. -Cash ﬂow hedge “The effective portion. of changes in the fair value of denvatlves that are demgnated and qualify as cash flow hedges is

recogmsed in reserves. as part of equlty Any gam or 1oss re[atmg to ani 've po"uon is recogmsed nnmedlately m the income . -

AI_nQunts accumulated in equity are recycled to the income statement in the periods in which the hedged item impacts profit or loss.
However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, the
gains and losses previously deferred in equlty are transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the asset
or liability.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or
loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity until the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the income statement.
When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately
transferred to the income statement.

Net investment hedge - Hedges of net investments in foreign-operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges. Any gain or
loss on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognised in equity while the gain or loss relating to the
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement, Gains and losses accumulated in equity are included in the
income statement on the disposal of the foreign operation.

Prior to 1 July 2005 (refer to note 2 for further details)
Prior to 1 July 2005 instruments subject to hedge accounting under AIFRS were previously accounted for on an accruals basis under
Australian GAAP.

(iv) Embedded derivatives (accounting policy applicable from 1 July 2005)

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or other non-financial host contracts are treated separately when their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair value with movements
. recorded through the income statement. Where an embedded derivative is required to be separated, it is measured at fair value.
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(p) Trade and other receivables

Trade andl other receivables are stated at the amounts to be received in the future and are disclosed net of any provision for impairment.
The balance is not discounted because the effect of the time value of money is not material. The recoverability of debts is assessed on
an ongoing basis and provision for impairment is made based on objective evidence and having regard to past default experience. The
impairment charge is recognised in the income statement. Bad debts are written off as incurred.

(q) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is initially recorded at cost which is the fair value of consideration provided plus incidental costs directly
attributable to the acquisition (for land and buildings held as at 30 June 2004, the fair value at that date is used as the deemed cost as
allowed upon first time adoption of AIFRS). All items of property, plant and equipment are carried at the lower of cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Items other than land are depreciated using the straight liné method at
rates based on the expected useful lives of the assets taking into account estimated residual values. Depreciation rates and residual
values are reviewed annually for appropriateness. The depreciation rates used currently for each class of asset are as follows:

Buildings ' 2% - 5%
Motor vehicles 12.5% - 20%
Office and other plant and equlpment 6.67% - 40%

The carrying amount of each class of property, plant and equipment is revnewed each repomng date by determining whether there is an
indication that the carrying value of a class may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the item will be tested for impairment by
comparing the recoverable amount of the asset or its:cash generating unit to the carrying value.- An impairment loss is recognised
whenever the carrying value exceeds the recoverablé -amount: - Impairmentlosses are:recognised. in the income statement and may be
reversed vshere there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount

P DN SRS . o e e e . . . .
Ly e.ui».. “’l: .;,-ﬁ" 3 b ‘L-’__.u, Lo 2 . S

and ‘other expenses associated w1th the. dxsposal B R TIPS

" Lease provision - - .
7 Certain of the-operating: Aeases: or” pro requ
. .- -however;:the related operating lease- payments de “luide n_element for the. cost: this- wrll;mvolve ~~The present Value of the ]
estimated futare cost for the plant and’ equipment’ to be removed and the premises to be returned-to the lessor i in its original condmon are
recognised as a lease provision when the relevant alterations are made to the premises. The costs are capitalised as part of the cost. of
plant and equipment and then depreciated over the useful lives of the assets.
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(r) Intangible assets

(i) Acquired intangible assets

Acquired intangible assets are initially recorded at their cost at the date of acquisition being the fair value of the consideration provided
plus incidental costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised on a straight line basis
over the estimated useful lives of the assets being the period in which the related benefits are expected to be realised (shorter of legal
duration and expected economic life). The amortisation periods are subject to review annually.

The carrying amount of intangible assets with finite useful lives is assessed each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication that the carrying value of an item may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
determined using the present value (using a pre-tax discount rate) of the prOJected net cash flows. For assets with indefinite useful lives,
the recoverability of the carrying value of the assets is reviewed for impairment at each reporting date, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying value exceeds the
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement and may be reversed where there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.

(1i) Internally generated intangible assets .

Internally generated intangible assets consist of software development expendlture Software development expenditure that meets the
criteria for recognition as an intangible asset is capitalised on the balance sheet and amortised over its expected useful life, subject to
impairment testing. Costs incurred in researching and evaluating a project up to the point of formal commitment to a project are treated
as research costs and are expensed as incurred. Only software development projects with total budgeted expenditure of more than $2
million are considered for capitalisation. Smaller projects and other costs are treated as mamtenance costs, bemg an ongomg part of
mamtammg effective computer systems and are expensed as- mcurred R :

. . < . GRS

' Only software development expendrture mcurred after b July 2004 the IAG Grou_p 'S AlFRS transition date has been consxdered for

- vcaprtalrsatron All software development expendrture mcurred pnor to-that daté was expensed under Australran GAAP L

Al such capltahsed costs are deemed to have an expected useful life of 3 years unless it can be clearly demonstrated for a Sp'eéi'ﬁ'é’

.

project that the net benefits are to ‘be. generated over a longer period. The caprtalrsed costs are amomsed ona strarght lirie' basis over the

s ; ;ipenod followmg completlon of a projector unplementatron of part ¢ ofa a prOJect The recoverabrhty of the carrymg amount of the asset is
assessed in the same manner as for acqun‘ed mtanglble assets Wlth ﬁmte useful lrves S : -

(s) Goodw111

Acquisitions, of a subsrdrary or busmess are accounted for using the acqmsmon method. Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase
consideration plus incidental costs over the fair value of the net identifiable assets and contingent liabilities acquired, irrespective of the
extent of any minority interest, and is carried net of any impairment losses. Goodwill arising on acquisitions dated prior to 1 July-2004
has been carried forward on the basis of its deemed cost being the net carrying amount as at 1 July 2004 measured in accordance with
the accounting standards relevant at that time (refer to note 2 for further details). :

Goodwill is allocated to cash generating units (the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets) for the purpose of impairment testing. The recoverability of the
carrying value of the goodwill allocated to each cash generating unit is reviewed for impairment at each reporting date, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, by determining the present value (using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects the current market assessments of the risks specific to the cash generating unit) of projected net cash flows
based on the five year business plans approved by management. Net cash flows beyond the five year period are extrapolated based on
growth rates which are consistent with long-term industry averages.. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying value
exceeds the recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement and cannot be reversed.

At the date of disposal of a business, attributed goodwill is included in TAG’s share of net assets in the calculation of the gain or loss on
disposal.- »

With investments in joint ventures and associates, the goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment in the joint venture
and associate, rather than being disclosed as a separate asset.

Where the initial accounting for a business combination is determined only provisionally by the first reporting date after acquisition
date, the business combination is accounted for using those provisional values. Any subsequent adjustments to those provisional values
are recognised within twelve months of the acquisition date and are applied effective from the acquisition date.
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(t) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are carried at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services v

received. The balance is not discounted because the effect of the time value of money is not material.

(u) Restructuring provision

A restructuring provision is recognised for the expected costs associated with restructuring where there is a detailed formal plan for
restructure and a demonstrated commitment to that plan. The provision is based on the direct expenditure to be incurred which is both
directly and necessarily caused by the restructuring, including termination benefits, decommissioning of information technology systems
and exiting surplus premises, and does not include costs associated with the on-going activities of the IAG Group. The adequacy of the
provision s reviewed regularly and adjusted if required. Revisions in the estimated amount of a restructuring provision are reported in
the period in which the revision in the estimate occurs. The provision is discounted where the effect of the time value of money is
material.

(v) Employee benefits

(i) Wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries (including bonuses), annual leave and sick leave are recognised at the nominal amounts unpaid at the
reporting date using remuneration rates that are expected to be paid when these liabilities are settled, including on-costs. A liability for
sick leave is considered to exist only when it is probable that sick leave taken in the future will be greater than entitlements that will
accrue in the future.

(i1) Long service leave )
A liability for long service leave is recognised as the present value of estrmated future cash outflows to be made for services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. The estimated future cash outflows are discounted using interest rates.on national government

-guaranteed securities"which have terms to maturity. that match as closery as possfﬁle the es‘umated future® eash nutﬂows Factors whrch—

“affect the estrmated future cash’ outﬂows such as expecte
) '_serv1ce are mcorporated in the measurement ‘

'(111) Share based incentive arrangements -~ . o e S e R

equity settled share based;; payments Equity.settled share b payments are measured at fair'value at grant date (the date-at:=which th

: The -TAG Group provides share based remuneratlon"m dlfferent‘ forms to ehglble employees and dxrectors All of the arrangements are*?- i

. IAG Group and-the: emptoyee have a shared- understandmg of the-terms -and condmons of the arrangemeint) usifig a" vaiuatlon model with

the- total value, adjusted for non-market hurdles, then bemg expensed through the income statement over the period during which the
related employment services are provided. At each reporting date the total accumulated expense is adjusted through the ifcome
statement based on the latest estimate of the number of equity instruments that will vest, considering only employee turnover, and taking
. into account the expired portion of the vesting period. The expense is matched by a credit to an equity reserve. Upon exercise of the
relevant instrument, the balance of the share based payments reserve relating to those instruments is transferred within equity.

The vesting conditions for the various plans are different with only the Performance Award Rights (“PARs”) Plan incorporating a
market based vesting condition. If equity instruments do not vest because the participant ceases to be employed by the IAG Group then
the expense charged in relation to that participant will be reversed. If equity instruments in the PARs Plan do not vest only because the
market condition is not met, then the expense will not be reversed.

Arrangements granted prior to 7 November 2002 (refer to note 2 for further details)

The IAG Group has not retrospectively applied the AIFRS expense treatment to share based payments granted prior to 7 November
2002 and/or that vested prior to 1 January 2005 as permitted under the transitional provisions for first time adoption of AIFRS. This
means that the new requirements have not been applied to the Performance Share Rights Plan or issues under the Employee Share
Reward Plar: prior to 30 June 2005. The AIFRS expense treatment was applied to all issues under the PARs Plan and issues under the
Non-Executive Director Share Plan made after the transitional dates.

To satisfy the IAG Group’ s obligations under the various share based remuneration plans, shares are generally bought on market at or
near grant date of the relevant arrangement and held in trust. Previously under Australian GAAP the cost of acquiring the shares was
recorded as & prepayment and then expensed in full, generally over the period during which the employees provided related services.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(v) Employee benefits (continued)

(iv) Superannuation

The YAG Group contributes to various superannuation plans, both defined contribution and defined benefit plans, in accordance with
their governing rules and recommendations from their respective actuaries, which are designed to ensure that each plan’s funding -
provides sufficient assets to meet its liabilities over the longer term.

For defined contribution plans, obligations for contributions are recognised as an expense in the income statement as they become
payable. For defined benefit plans, the net financial position of the plans is recognised in the balance sheet. The movement in the net
financial position is recognised in the income statement, except for actuarial gains and losses (experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions), which are recognised directly in retained eamings.

(w) Provision for dividends

Provision for dividends is made in respect of all types of share capital where the dividends are declared on or before the reporting date
but have not yet been distributed at that date.

(x) Interest-bearing liabilities and finance costs

Interest-bearing liabilities are initially recognised at fair value less transaction costs that are directly attributable to the transaction. After
initial recognition the liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Finance costs include interest, which is accrued at the contracted rate and included in payables, amortisation of transaction costs which

are capitalised, disclosed together with the borrowings, and amortised over the life of the borrowings or a shorter period if appropriate,

and amortisation of discounts or premiums (the difference beiween the proceeds, net of transaction costs, and the settlement or

. redemption of borrowmgs) over the term of the 11ab11mes Where mterest paymcnts are hedged they are recogmsed as ﬁnance costs net - -
- of any effect of the hedge L SR = :

- Prior to 1 July 2005 (refer to note Zforfurther details) - ST S e .
" Prior to 1 July-2005, the reset preference shares, now clasmﬂed as interest- bearmg l'abxhtxes were treated as equity and fonned part of
¢ _the IAG Grouip’s share capital. - The transaction costs assocxated with the capltal raising were recogmsed directly in equity as a reduction .

" ini the proceeds of the mstruments The dlsmbutxons now treated as’ mterest were treated as. d1v1dends and 50 recogmsed only when R

declared. S T _ R e - _

(y) Foreign currency

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial records of each of the IAG Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian
- dollars, which is the Parent’s and the IAG Group’s functional and presentation currency.

(i1) Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency for each of the IAG Group's entities using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities recognised in foreign currencies by the IAG Group at
reporting date, are translated to Australian dollars at rates of exchange current at reporting date. Resulting exchange differences are
brought to account in the income statement except for those relating to controlled foreign operations and hedging transactions as per (iii)
and (iv) beiow.

(iii) Translation of controlled foreign operations

The financial position and performance of controlled foreign operations with a functional currency other than Australian dollars are
translated into the IAG Group’s presentation currency for inclusion in the IAG Group’s consolidated financial report. The assets and
liabilities are translated using reporting date exchange rates while equity items are franslated using historical rates. Items from the
income statement are translated using weighted average rates for the reporting period. Exchange differences arising from the
translations are recorded directly in equity in the foreign currency translation reserve. Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

On the disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange differences deferred in the foreign currency translation
reserve relating to that foreign operation is recognised in the income statement.

(iv) Hedge transactions
Derivatives are used to hedge the foreign exchange risk relating to certain transactions. Refer to note 1(0)(iii) for details of the relevant



o - right of set-off and it is the TAG- Group s intention that the Portfolio

INSURANCE AUSTRALIA GROUP LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(z) Earnings per share

(1) Basic eamnings per share

Basic eamings per share is determined by dividing the earnings attributable to equity holders of the Company, excluding any costs of
servicing equity other than ordinary shares, by the weighted average number of shares of the Company on issue during the reporting
period, excluding treasury shares.

(11) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is determined by dividing the amount used in the calculation of basic earnings per share, adjusted by the after
income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares, by the Werghted average number
of ordinary shares and dilutive potential ordinary shares. :

(aa) Treasury shares

Ordinary shares of TAG that are controlled for accounting purposes by share based remuneration trusts that are consolidated by the IAG
Group, are referred to as treasury shares. They are measured at cost (total amount paid to acquire the shares including directly
attributable costs), and are recognised as a deduction from equity until they are otherwise dealt with. No gain or loss is recognised in the
income statement on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of treasury shares. The balance of treasury shares at a reportmg date
represents the cumulative cost of acquiring shares that have not yet been drstnbuted to employees as share based remuneration.

Shares held in equity remuneratlon trusts are derecognised as treasury shares when the shares vest to the partxcrpant

(bb) Reset exchangeable securrtres

Reset exch angeable securities- (“RES ) are mrtr;tlly measured at face value less transactron costs incurred i in 1ssumg the securrtres In the
‘balance sheet; the RES liability. is-offset, against the investments, pur hased,(“Portfolr ) from the proceeds of RES, ,as there is a legal .

-

- costs:are; capltahsed, disclosed together wrth interest-bearing lrabrlmes, and are amortrsed over-5.years. from. the daté S iésue Interest - -
_... .expense on.the RES ‘is brought to account on an accruals basis.and. payable quarterly subject to.the terms of issue. In the mcome
-8 statement the mterest expense-on.RES, i is offset agamst the-interest ingome generated from the Portfolro -

-the RES liability would be settled srmultarre usly T anSactmn i n
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INSURANCE AUSTRALIA GROUP LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

Note 2. Explanation of transition to Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

(b) Total equity

Reconciliation of total equity under Australian GAAP to that under AIFRS. The adjustments shown for each date are cumu]atwe of all
adjustments up to and including that date.

CONSOLIDATED
1July 30 June 31 Dec 1 July
Notes 2005 2005 2004 2004
$m $m $m $m
Total equity under Australian GAAP as reported in the 4,440 4,440 4,305 4,224
2005 half year and annual financial reports
Adjustments applicable from 1 July 2004
Adjustments to retained earnings
Reversal of goodwill amortisation (D) 92 92 . 46 ‘n/a
Recognition of defined benefit plans (ii) (23) (23) 8 - .57
- Adjustment to share based remuneration expense (1i1) 5 5 2 » 2
Capitalisation of software development costs W) 24 24 9 n/a
Reversal of market value movement on property {vi) 8) (8) 2 n/a
Recognition of depreciation on buildings - (vi) 1) 1 - - n/a
Recognition of lease provision amortisation i) (an .. {1y ao. .. 8
Net tax impact of AIFRS adjustments ) 6 6 2) (16)
Adjustment for minority interests (1) @ (1 (3)
— T 83 83 50 32
% Adjustments to reserves - _
“Recognition of share based p@yment reserve Gi) . 13 13 9 . 5 -
“Adjustments.to treasury shares T T LT L -
Consohdatxonof share based remuneratxon usts . . '_(ij{'). S (34) - (34) T"‘?.M‘r (34 @D _
Adjustments to mmonty mterests N R ' o CHeen TR S e
Net adjustments impacting minority interests ' 1 1 1 3

Adjustments to retained earnings

Adjustment to valuation of investments (viii) . 1 - pn/a n/a n/a
Amortisation of reset preference shares transaction costs (vii) (6) /a n/a . n/a
Accrual for distribution on reset preference shares (vii) (1) n/a n/a n/a
Net tax impact of AIFRS adjustments x) - ©on/a n/a /a
Adjustment for minority interests 1 n/a n/a . n/a
(5) n/a . na n/a
Adjustments to reserves
Adjustment for cash flow hedge accounting (ix) N na - n/a n/a
Net tax impact of AIFRS adjustment (x) 2 n/a n/a n/a
: (5) na n/a n/a
Adjustments to share capital .
Reclassification of reset preference shares (vii) (550) n/a n/a n/a
Reclassification of reset preference shares transaction costs ~ ({vii) - 11 n/a n/a n/a
(539) n/a n/a n/a
Adjustments to minority interests
Reclassification of minority interests in.unitholders’ funds (xi) 421) n/a n/a n/a
Net other adjustments impacting minority interests (1) /a n/a n/a
(422) /a n/a n/a

Total equity under AIFRS 3,532 4,503 4,331 4,243




INSURANCE AUSTRALIA GROUP LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

Note 2. Explana.tio_n of transition to Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards'l {continued)

(¢) Profit

Reconciliation of profit under Australian GAAP to that under AIFRS for the year ended 30 June 2005 and half year ended 31 December
2004. '

CONSOLIDATED

. Year ended Half year ended

Notes . 30 June 2005 31 Dec 2004

© $Sm $m

Profit for the period as reported under Australian GAAP ' 879 504
Reversal of goodwill amortisation (i) 92 46
Movement in defined benefit plans (i1) (80) : 47)
Adjustment to share based remuneration expense (ii1) 3 2
Capitalisation of software development costs ) 24 9
Reversal of market value movement on property (vi) : 8) (2
Recognition of depreciation on buildings - (vi) _ ' 1) ' ' -
Recognition of lease provision amortisation (vi) ' 3) . )
Net tax impact of AIFRS adjustments (x) 22 . 14

Profit for the period under AIFRS 928 4
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INSURANCE AUSTRALIA GROUP LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

Note 2. Explanation of transition to Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (continued).
{e) Notes to the reconciliations for sections (a) to (d) above

(i) Goodwill

The elimination of the requirement to amortise goodwrll under AIFRS resulted in the reversal of the goodwill amortisation expense for
the half year to 31 December 2004 of $46 million and for the year to 30 June 2005 of $92 million. There was a corresponding increase
in goodwill of $46 million as at 31 December 2004 and $92 million as at 30 June 2005 in the balance sheet.

(i1) Defined benefit plans

Under AIFRS the relevant net position of defined benefit plans is recognised in the balance sheet. The movement in the net position is
recognised in the income statement, except for actuarial gains and losses, which are recognised directly in retained eamings. This is the
result of an accounting policy selection made by the IAG Group.

The TAG Group has five arrangements that qualify as defined benefit plans under AIFRS. These consist of a defined benefit
superannuation plan in Australia, two defined benefit superannuation plans in New Zealand, and two pension schemes, both of which are

_unfunded. The net position of the three defined benefit superannuation plans was previously not recognised in the IAG Group’s balance
sheet under Australian GAAP. The present value of each of the two unfunded pension liabilities was previously recognised in the IAG
Group’s balance sheet, however the measurement and accounting treatment under AIFRS is different.

All cumulative actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans have been recognised in equity at the date of transition to AIFRS.

The adjustments required to recognise the defined benefit plans upon transition to AIFRS involved an increase in retained earnings and a
reduction in employee benefits provision as at 1 July 2004 of $57 million. Recognising the movement in the net positions of the plans
for the half year to 31 December 2004 involved recognition of an expense through the AIFRS income statement of $47 million, a
reduction in retained eamings, dxrectly of $2 million as at 31 December:2004 and a reduction in employee benefits provrsron of §8
4,m11hon as at 31 December 2004. The’ ‘adjustments for the year to 30 June2005 involved recognition of: an expense through the AIFRS
income-statement for the year to 30 June 2005 of $80 million, with corre,spondmg imipact to retained earnings which was rounded to
zéro as at 30 June 2005 and an increase in. employee benefits provision of $23 million as at 30 June 2005 ‘The net result of all: of these '
changes wasa reducuon of $23 mrlhon in retamed earmngs as at 30 June 2005 .. T S

) (111) Share based remuneratlon .o
- The IAG Crroup acqurres TAG; shares, on-marlfet and hiolds’ them in'trust to satlsfy future obhgatlons for. share based remuneranon The
shares are purchased on-or, near. grant date.at- the then market pnc
““was- recorded as a prepayment and-then- expensed in full gene y:
" services. | e

r the penod—_unng WhJCh the employees provrded related ‘

- Under AIFRS the fair value at grant date of the equity instruments granted as share based remuneration is expensed over the relevant
period rather than the actual cost of acquiring the shares to support the arrangements. The fair value is expensed over the period from
grant date until the equity instruments vest fully to the employee. For equity settled share based payments, an equity reserve is created
as the expense is recognised. At each reporting date the total accumulated expense is adjusted through the income statement based on
the latest estimate of the number of equity instruments that will vest, considering only employee turnover, and taking into account the
expired portion of the vesting period. The AIFRS accounting policy has not been retrospectively applied to share based payments
granted prior to 7 November 2002 and/or that vested prior to 1 January 2005 as permitted under the transitional provisions for first time
adoption of AIFRS.

A transitional adjustment for the IAG Group was made to increase retained eamnings as at 1 July 2004 by $2 million representing the
accumulated reduction in-the expense up to that date. Adjustments for the IAG Group were made to retained earnings for the half year
to 31 Decernber 2004 of $2 million and for the year to 30 June 2005 of $5 million representing the accumulated reduction in the expense
up to those dates. The adjustments involved the recognition of a share based remuneration reserve in equity of $5 million as at 1 July
2004, $9 million as at 31 December 2004, and $13 million as at 30 June 2005.

(iv) Consolidation of share based remuneration trusts :

The equity based remuneration trusts used to manage the share based remuneration arrangements are consohdated by the IAG Group
under AIFRS. Two trusts are consolidated directly by the Parent while one trust is consolidated directly by a subsidiary. The amount
previously recognised as a prepayment in relation to the share based remuneration plans has converted into an investment in subsidiary
under ATFRS which eliminates against the unitholders’ funds in the trusts upon consolidation. The IAG Group recognises the
consolidated IAG shares, the major asset of the trusts, as treasury shares. The treasury shares are measured at cost (total amount paid to
acquire the shares), and are shown as a deduction from equity. The shares controlled by the trusts as at 30 June 2005, were acquired on
different dares at a total cost of $34 million for the IAG Group (31 December 2004 - $34 million, 30 June 2004 - $21 million). When
the relevant rights are exercised, the IAG Group will effectrvely reissue the shares, which will be recognised as equity measured at the
net expense incurred in providing the shares.

<P vmusly under Australian GAAP the cost of acqumng the shares: -
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Note 2. Explanation of transition to Australian eq‘uivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards/(¢ontinued) ‘
(e) Notes to the reconciliations for sections (a) to (d) above (continued)

(v) Intangible assets

Certain software development expenditure has been capitalised as an intangible asset under AIFRS that was previously expensed under
the application of Australian GAAP. Only software development expenditure incurred after 1 July 2004, the IAG Group’s AIFRS
transition date, was eligible for capitalisation under AIFRS. The adjustments relating to software development expenditure were a net
reduction in the expense for the half year to 31 December 2004 of $9 million (capitalised expenditure of $9 million with no
amortisation) and for the year to 30 June 2005 of $24 million (capitalised expenditure of $24 million less an amount of amortisation
which rounded to zero). There was a corresponding increase in intangible assets on the balance sheet for the same amounts.

(vi) Property, plant and equipment

All of the property within the IAG Group is classified as owner occupied property under AIFRS. Prior to transition to AIFRS, all land
and buildings were carried at fair value with movements in fair value recognised in the income statement. Under AIFRS, land and
buildings are measured at cost with the cost of the buildings being depreciated over their useful life. The carrying value of land and
buildings is subject to impairment testing. For land and buildings held as at 30 June 2004, the fair value at that date is used as the
deemed cost as allowed upon first time adoption of AIFRS. This required reversal of the movement in the market value of the property
recognised in the reported profit for the half year to 31 December 2004 of $2 million and for the year to 30 June 2005 of $8 million.
There was a corresponding decrease in property, plant and equipment on the balance sheet of the same amount.

Deprecratron of the bulldmgs introduced a depreciation expense for the half year to 31 December 2004 Wthh rounded down to zero,

and an’ expense for the year to 30 June 2005 of $1 mrllron

Certain of the operatmg leases for property requrre that the 1and and/or burldmg be returned to ‘the lessor in its ongmal condltlon This

means, that ‘at a future date when a lease is exited, costs wrll be mcurred in removmg plant and- equipment from the prermses and_
: returmng ‘the property to ‘its or1g1na1 condition. The related operatmg lease payments do not include an element for the cost this will
“involve. Under AIFRS, the present valte of the estimated future cost for the plarit and’ equ1pment to be removed and the premises to be,

' returned to the lessor in its original condition are recognised as a éase provision when the relevant alterations aré made to the premises,. -

- capitalised as-part of the cost of plant and equrprnent and depreclated over the useful hves of the asset3~

wUnder Austrahan "GAAP, these ‘costs_were not recogmsed untll 1t ‘was, probable that the expendrture would be mcurred generally ‘
‘referrmg to when a decision was made o cancel or not renéw a Tease. e P

At 1 July2004, a lease prov1sron of $21 million was recogmsed for the IAG Group with a correspondmg increase in property, plant and
equipment. The net carrying amount of this provision remained the same at 31 December 2004, 30 June 2005 and 1 July 2005. The
initial recognition of the addition to property, plant and equipment was accompanied by a depreciation expense of $8 million up to 1
July 2004 as a reduction to-retained earnings. The net balance capitalised as part of property, plant and equipment upon AIFRS
transition at 1 July 2004 was $13 million. The net balance capitalised as part of property, plant and equipment fell to $11 million as at
31 December 2004 and $10 million as at 30 June 2005 as a result of additional depreciation expense recognised for the half year to 31
December 2004 of $2 million and for the year to 30 June 2005 of $3 million.

(vii) Reset preference shares (applied from 1 July 2005)

The IAG Group’s reset preference shares (“RPS”) were presented as equrty under Australian GAAP as they are not considered a
mandatory convertible instrument, are perpetual, and there is no obligation to pay distributions. The RPS are classified as debt under
ATFRS because there are circumstances under which the holder can demand conversion of the instruments, and are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Thrs involved a reclassification of $550 million from share capital to interest-bearing liabilities
as at 1 July 2005.

The transaction costs incurred from the issuance of the two tranches of RPS, totalling $11 million, were recognised directly in equity
under Australian GAAP as a reduction in the proceeds .of the instruments. With the RPS classified as debt under AIFRS those
transaction costs are capitalised, disclosed together with the related liability, and recognised on an effective yield basis (amortised over
the period to the first reset date). This required an adjustment as at 1 July 2005 of $11 million to recognise the capitalisation of the
transaction costs, and a reduction in retained earnings of $6 million representing the portion of the transaction costs that have been
effectively amortised up to that date.

Distributions on the instruments made after 1 July 2005 are treated as interest rather than dividends and so have a negative impact on
reported profit. With the distributions treated as interest under AIFRS, the distributions are recognised on an accruals basis, which is
different to the previous policy of recognising a provision for the distributions only when the distributions were declared. The
adjustment to recognise the interest payable as at 1 July 2005 was a decrease in retained earnings of $1 million.
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Note 2. Explanaticn of transition to Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (continued)
{e) Notes to the reconciliations for sections (a) to (d) above (continued)

(viii) Investments (applied from 1 July 2003)

Upon transition to AIFRS, the IAG Group has continued to measure all investments at market value with movements in market value
being reported in the income statement. This is the result of an accounting policy selection made by the JAG Group. This includes all
derivatives used in relation to investment activities. This has basically been a continuation of previous practice with small adjustments
for disposal costs (Australian GAAP used net market value rather than gross market value) and a change in market price determination
(Australian GAAP used last sale price rather than bid/offer price). The net adjustment for the change was a $1 million increase in
investments with a corresponding increase in retained earnings as at 1 July 2005.

(ix) Derivatives (applied from 1 July 2005) ,

All of the derivative contracts selected for hedge accounting as at 1 July 2005 qualify as a cash flow hedge. The adjustment required to
recognise the application of cash flow hedge accounting under AIFRS for these transactions involved an increase in the measurement of
the derivatives recognised on the balance sheet of $7 million ($8 million increase in interest-bearing liabilities and a $1 million increase
in trade and other receivables) with a corresponding net decrease to an equity reserve.

(x) Taxation :
The transition to AIFRS involved two types of tax ad]ustments There were adjustments arising from the different methodology used for
the determination of tax adjustments discussed here. There were also consequential tax impacts arising from the different recognition
treatments of certain assets and liabilities under AIFRS that are discussed below. Income tax is calculated based on the “balance sheet
approach” replacing the “income statement approach” previously used. The AIFRS treatment focuses on the closing balances rather
than the movements for the period. This method recognises deferred tax balances when there is a difference between the carrying value
of an asset or liability, and its tax base (being the amount attributed to an asset or liability for tax purposes) rather than for differences
between accounting and taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax assets under AIFRS are recognised based on a ‘probable’ criterion rather
~ than thé “béyond reasonable doubt” cntenon, or v1rtually certain’ cntenon for unused taxlosses, unider Australian GAAP; In addition,
‘current and deférred taxes attributable to .amounts recogmsed dxrectly in equlty are recogmsed in equify. Defeérred tax balances continue
~ to-be undiscounted under AIFRS This change in methodology. had .a neghglble nnpact on the recognition .of tax related assetsand -
liabilities. However, the tax effect of the AIFRS transition adjustments relatmg to items that were recogmsed dlrectly in equ1ty were
. .also. recogmsed in equity which would not have been inaccordance: : .

: recogmtlorL treatments ‘of certain asseis 'and liabilities under AIFRS " These cémequentxal tax -Lrﬁbacts involved a net’ reduction ‘in
retained earnings at 1. July 2004 of $16 million and at 31 December 2004 of $2 million and a net increase in retained earnings at 30 June
2005 of $6 million and at 1 July 2005 of $6 million. There were also some tax amounts recognised directly in equity.

(x1) Minority interests in unitholders’ funds (applied from 1 July 2005)

The consolidated IAG Group includes IAG Asset Management Wholesale Trusts in which the IAG Group has a controlling interest for
accounting purposes. Previously, when consolidating the trusts, an amount was recognised in equity for the minority interest in the
trusts, being the value attributable to unitholders outside the IAG Group Under AIFRS, the residual interests in the trusts qualify as a
liability on the balance sheets of the trusts and is not recognised as equity. Therefore, upon consolidation of the trusts under AIFRS, the
value attributable to unitholders outside the IAG Group is recognised as a liability on the balance sheet of the IAG Group and not in
equity as a minority interest. The change has also resulted in the distributions from the trusts to those unitholders, previously shown as
net profit attributable to outside equity interests, forming part of the profit for the period. The change has no impact on the equity
attributable to equity holders of IAG. :

These changes required a reclassification of $421 million as at 1 July 2005 from minority interest presented as equity on the balance
sheet to minority interest in unitholders’ funds presented as a liability on the balance sheet. The adjustment also impacts on the
treatment of net income attributable to minority interests in unitholders’ furids in the income statement wh1ch is applicable for the first
time for the six months ended 31 December 2005 and involves no prior period adjustment.
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CONSOLIDATED
31 Dec 31 Dec
2005 2004
$m Sm
Note 3. Income
(a) General insurance revenue
Direct gross written premium 3,206 3,329
Movement in unearned premium reserve 113 (17)
Direct premium revenue 3319 3,312
Inwards reinsurance premium revenue 1 (1
Premium revenue 3,320 3,311
Reinsurance and other recoveries 259 282
Total general insurance revenue : 3,579 3,593
(b) Investment income
Dividend revenue ' 47 48
Interest revenue 192 197
Trust revenue 12 6
- . 251 251
- Changes in fair values of investments” . & v o e T L D LT S e
- - realised net gains o T e L I L 44 44
- ---unrealised net gains ~ - evv- . L oo T T 289 . o - =274
Total investment income . ... . - . ] “‘ ' 554 569
" Investmienit income on technical reserves - - . .. . e T 02 T 270
Investment income on equity holders’ funds , ' 352 299
' : ' : : 554 . 569
(c) Other income
Fee based revenue . 101 106
Net gain from disposal of property, plant and equipment* - 3
Total other income _ 101 109
- .
Total income , ' 4,234 4,271

* Under AIFRS the definition of income includes both revenue and gains. Gains are determined on a net basis (proceeds less the carrying amount
and/or costs of achieving the proceeds). Under Australian GAAP these items were presented on a gross basis.
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B A I

CONSOLIDATED
31 Dec 31 Dec
2005 2004
$m $m
Note 4. Analysis of total expenses
Expenses as disclosed in the income statement:
Reinsurance expense : 209 202
Claims expense . 2,245 2,361
Acquisition costs 542 533
Other underwriting expenses 186 191
Fire service levies L , 123 87
Investment expenses on techaical reserves 7 1
Finance costs 45 28
Net income: attributable to minority interests in unitholders’ funds* N R ’ -
Corporate,v administration and other expenses o ' 133 _ 133
Total expenses 3,501 ] 3,542
Analysis of expenses by function:
General insurance business expenses 3,305 13,374
Corporate and admmlstratton expenses : 196 168" -
Total expenses S s ' - 3,501 3 542

"~ *This item.has béen-treated dtf,ferently in the Current. reporting-period fol]owmg the’ [AG Group S clectlon to not rcstate eomparatlves for certain’ accountmg standards as
i allowed upon- ﬁrst time adoptxonpf AIFRS Refer to note 2 for funher detalls . = : - : LT
‘ o . k

: e s1gmﬁcant items. dlsclosure of WhJCh lS relevant'
the results of the IAG Grou : .

Expenses : : : oL . . . S
" Insurance pxotectlon tax levxed by the NSW State Government L T 11 . L 10"
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CONSOLIDATED
31 Dec 31 Dec
Note 2005 2004
‘ cents cents
Note 7. Earnings per share
Basic earnings per ordinary share (1) 29.06 28.54
Diluted earnings per ordinary share _ 28.89 28.35

(i) The basic earnings per ordinary share shown above exclude the treasury shares from the denominator of the calculation, but include
the earnings attributable to those treasury shares in the numerator, to comply with AASB 133 Earnings per Share. If the amounts
relating to those treasury shares are excluded from both the numerator and denominator, the basic eammgs per ordinary share for the
half year period ended 31 December 2005 would be reduced to 28.90 cents (2004 —28.41 cents).

31 Dec 31 Dec
2005 2004
$m $m
(a) Reconciliation of earnings used in calculating earnings per share
Profit for the period ' - 513 524
Profit attributable to minority interests , ' (52) (87
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Parem _ ; o 461 467
~._Proﬁt attri butable to reset preference shargs g b — R © *nfa (15 .
Eammgs used i in calculatmg basic and diluted earmngspenshar o ‘:. _'L,,,,4.61 - '4-52 ERRE

GAAP (refer to note 2-for-further detalls) “When- 013551ﬁed as-equitys- a separate eammgs per share- calculation ‘was conducted for the reset prefcrence shares: and the -
. distributions on the shares was deducted from the profit. attributable to equity. holders of the Parent prior.to.calculation of the eamings per share for ordinary shares.

o ;»From 1- Ju]y 2005 onwards thc distributions-are treated 4§ financé costs and ‘in this reconc1hat1on for the half year to-31-December- 2005 are included-in:profit for the™ ' ™

The welghted average number of ordmary shares 'outstanding during the financial period used in calcultion of the basic earﬁing‘é per .
share was 1,585 million (2004 - 1,585 million), being the total number of ordinary shares on issue excluding treasury shares.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial period used in calculation of the diluted eamings per
share was 1,595 million (2004 — 1,595 million). This amount included the weighted average number of dilutive potential ordinary
shares relating to the rights issued under the Performance Share Rights Plan of 0.5 million shares (2004 — 2 million) and other unvested
share based remuneration rights supported by treasury shares of 9 million (2004 — 7 million). At 31 December 2005, there remained 0.2
million vested Performance Share Rights on issue.

The following matters are relevant to the determination of the weighted average number of ordinary shares:

e  The reset preference shares are not considered to be dilutive potential ordinary shares even though they may convert into
ordinary shares because the contingent conversion conditions were not met at the reporting date.

o The reset exchangeable securities (“RES”) on issue by IAG Finance (New Zealand) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
IAG, are not considered to be dilutive potential ordinary shares as at 31 December 2005 (2004 - not applicable) because the
. contingent conversion conditions were not met at the reporting date.

(c) Reset preference shares

While for accounting purposes the reset preference shares are classified as debt from 1 July 2005 onwards, they were previously
classified as equity under Australian GAAP (refer to note 2 for further details). When classified as equity, the reset preference shares
had a basic earnings per share for the six months ended 31 December 2004 of 267.27 cents based on distributions paid or payable for
the six month period of $15 million and a weighted average number of reset preference shares outstanding during the period of 5.5
million shares.
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Tax rate for
Cents Total franking credit  Percentage
_per share  amount Payment date tax rate franked
$m '
Note 8. Dividends
(a) Ordinary shares
Recognised in half year ended 31 December 2005 :
2005 final dividend 14.5 231 17 October 2005 30% 100%
Recognised in year ended 30 June 2005
2005 interim dividend 12.0 191 18 April 2005 A 30% '100%
2004 final dividend - 14.0 222 18 October 2004 30% 100%
413

It is standard practice for the IAG Group to declare the dividend for a period after the relevant reporting date. In accordance with the
relevant accounting policy (refer note 1(w)) a dividend is not accrued for until it is declared and so the dividends for a period are
generally recognised and measured in the financial reporting period following the period to which the dividend relates.

The dividend paid for the half year to 31 December 2005 included $1 million (year to 30 June 2005 - $2 million) paid in relation to
treasury shares held in trusts controlled by the IAG Group.
(b) Dividend remvestment

The Company operates a Dividend Reinvestment Plan (“DRP”) which allows equlty holders to elect to receive therr dividend

. egtitlement in the form of IAG shares. The price of DRP shares is the average share market price; less a discount if any (determined by =~
._-the Directors) calculated over the pricing period (which is at least five trading days)-as determined by the Diréctors for each dividend _
. payment date. The price of DRP shares in 2005 includes no discount (2004 ~ no discount).- The i0.6 million shares.allocated to equity -

- holders pamcrpatmg in'the DRP for the half year ended 31 December 2005 were: purchased on- market (year ended 30 June-2005 - 20, 0"-- ‘
million shares) R v R Iy et .

“(e) Dmdend not recogmsed at reportmg date .

In addition to’the above dividénds, the following dividend was declared after the reportmg date but before finalisation’ of tlus half year 3
financial report and has not been recognised in this financial report.

Cents Total Expected payment Tax rate for Pe"rcen‘tage
per share  amount : date franking credit franked
. $m
2006 interim dividend — ordinary shares 13.5 215 10 April 2006 30% 100%

The dividend was declared on 23 February 2006. The last date for the receipt of an election notice for participation in the dividend
reinvestment plan in relation to this interim dividend is 8 March 2006. The DRP will operate using shares acquired on-market with no
discount applied. :

Distribution
percentage  Total Percentage
per annum  amount o Payment date franked
$m
(d) Reset preference shares
Recognised in half year ended 31 December 2005 - *n/a *n/a o *n/a *n/a
Recognised in year ended 30 June 2005 : ‘ ,
First issue June 2002 - IAGPA - 5.80% 20 15 June 2005 and 15 December 2004 100%
Second issue June 2003 - IAGPB ’ 4.51% 9 15 June 2005 and 15 December 2004 100%
29

* This item has been treated differently in the current reporting period following the IAG Group s election to not restate comparatives for certain accounting standards as
allowed upon first time adoption of AIFRS. Refer to note 2 for further details.

All of the distributions paid in relation to the reset preference shares for the current half year reporting period and the previous annual
reporting period were fully franked at 30%.
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CONSOLIDATED

31 Dec 30 Jun
Notes 2005 2005
$m $m
Note 9. Interest-bearing liabilities
Unsecured
NZ senior term notes (i) 46 91
Subordinated term notes (i) 299 299
US subordinated term notes (iii) - 327 315
Derivatives related to US subordinated term notes (i11) 89 88
Reset preference shares @iv) 550 -
Perpetual subordinated loan - (V) 2 2
Less: capitalised transaction costs ' (18) {16)
1,295 779
Half year Year
ended 31 ~ ended 30
Dec 2005 " Jun 2005
$m $m
(a) Reconciliation of movements )
Balance at the end of the previous financial penod » 779 .. T186

AIFRS transition adjustments . .. oo
- Reclassification of reset preference: ehares,
s Reclasslﬁcanon of capltahsed transactxon éosts *

2 “Foreign exchange movement on cash flow hedge o ‘.7

‘Balance ‘at the-] begmmng of the financial penod ST i
_ Foreign-exchange movement on US'subordinated term notesf v

Other fair-value movement on'cash flow hedge .
Repayment of tranche of NZ senior term notes
Foreign exchange movement on NZ senior term notes

Transaction costs capitalised during the period . ” - (12)
Amortisation of capitalised transaction costs ; : 3
Balance at the end of the financial period 1,295 779

* These reconciliation adjustments arose from the 1AG Group’s election to not restate compamuvm for certain accounting standards as allowed upon ficst time adoption
of AIFRS. Refer to note 2 for further details. :

The transaction costs capitalised during the year to 30 June 2005 of $12 million relate to the issuance of the reset exchangeable
securities which are held off balance sheet and so not included in interest-bearing liabilities (refer note 1(bb) for further details).

(b) Significant terms and conditions

(i) The NZ senior term notes were issued through IAG (NZ) Holdings Limited’s medium-term note programme. NZ$100 million of
notes were issued at a discount, with NZ$50 million that matured and was fully repaid in August 2005 and NZ$50 million to mature in
August 2008. This programme is denominated in New Zealand dollars and translated into the equivalent Australian dollars using the
reporting date exchange rate. The primary difference between the Australian dollar equivalent of the face value of the notes at inception
and the carrying value is due to foreign exchange rate movements. :

(i1) The subordinated term notes have a face value of $300 million and were issued at a discount through Insurance Australia Limited’s
debt issuance programme with $250 million at a fixed rate and $50 million at a floating rate. The notes mature in November 2012,
however, they may be redeemed at par at the issuer’s option from November 2007 onwards, subject to the approval of the Australian
Regulation Prudential Authority (“APRA™). If the notes are not redeemed in November 2007, all notes become floating rate notes with
an interest rate of the three month Bank Bill Swap Rate plus a margin of 1.58% per annum. The notes quahfy as Lower Tier 2 capital
for the purposes of Insurance Australia Limited’s APRA regulatory capital position.
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Note 9. Interest-bearing liabilities (continued)
(b) Significant terms and conditions (continued)

(iii) The US subordinated term notes have a face value of US$240 million and were issued at par by NRMA Insurance Funding 2003
Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Insurance Australia Limited). They are fixed rate notes with the principal and interest flows
denominated in US dollars, which are hedged with cross currency swaps and an interest rate swap. Cash flow hedge accounting is
applied for this hedge arrangement. The notes mature in April 2015, however, they may be redeemed at par at the issuer’s option from
April 2010 onwards, subject to the approval of APRA. If the notes are not redeemed in April 2010, all notes become floating rate notes
with an interest rate of the three month London Inter-Bank Offer Rate plus a margin of 2.04% per annum. The notes qualify as Lower
Tier 2 capital for the purposes of Insurance Australia Limited’s APRA regulatory capital position.

(iv) The reset preference shares (“RPS™) are a hybrid security with characteristics of both debt and equity. The securities were issued in
two tranches referred to as JAGPA (issued June 2002) and IAGPB (issued June 2003) with the first reset date for each tranche.being 15
June 2007 and 15 June 2008 respectively. The Company may, prior to any reset date, make changes to certain terms (such as the next
reset date, the market rate, the margin and the frequency and timing of the dividend payment dates) which will apply from the day after
the relevant reset date. The RPS rank in priority to ordinary shares for the payment of dividends and in the event of a winding up. In a
winding up, all RPS will rank equally for return of capital behind all other creditors of IAG, and ahead of ordinary shares. The RPS do
not carry voting rights at general meetings, except in limited circumstances.

The RPS entitle the holder to a preferred, but not cumulative, distribution (currently 5.8% per annum for [AGPA and 4.51% per annum
for IAGPB). The distributions are payable semi-annually in arrears on 15 December and 15 June and are able to be franked. IAG
expects the distributions to be fully franked and if a distribution is unfranked or partially franked, the distribution will be increased to
compensate for the unfranked component. . Because of the hybrid nature of the securities, distributions on the RPS are not the same as
interest payments and may not always be paid, as there are a number of conditions that must be met before a distribution can be paid. If

" distributions are.hot paid.on the RPS; no drvzdends can be paid and no- retums of caprtal can be made on -ordinary sl'ares unless IAG
o takes certain actrons L L ~ :

.- The RPS may be exchanged by IAG or the holder on a: reset date by the holder upon a specrﬁed tngger event (such as change in control -

~.- . of IAG by a takeover bid); orby TAG-on a tax event (such as a more than insignificant increase in taxation costs), tegulatory event (such
ceoas not-all’ of the RPS: bemg entitled to be.treated. as Tier 1 aprtal for regulatory reporting pu‘poses) or following certain: takeovers or . .
== - schemes~of-arrangements. Whrle the ‘holder ‘may’ initiate~an exchange 1AG is able to-select’ themethod of exchange bemg -either— -~
~—--conversion into ordinary: shares;- arrangmg for a third party to acquire the shares-for- their face value, or to redeem, buy—back or cancel .

“the shares (subject to. APRA approval). The RPS convert into ordinary shares that would rank equally in all respects with all other

ordinary shares. All conversions into ordinary shares, other than a holder requesting conversion on a reset date, wrll recerve a discount
of 2.5% of the ordinary share price used in calculating the number of ordinary shares to be issued on conversion.

(v) The perpetual subordinated loan is between Mutual Community General Insurance Proprietary Limited, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the IAG Group, and the minority interest equity holder in that company. The loan is interest bearing.
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CONSOLIDATED CONSOLIDATED

Half year Year - Half year Year
ended ended ended ended
31 Dec 30 Jun 31 Dec 30 Jun
2005 2005 2005 2005
Number Number
of shares of shares
Note 10. Reconciliation of total equity S million million $m $m
(a) Share capital
Ordinary shares '
Balance at the beginning of the financial period 1,594 1,591 3,263 3,263
Shares issued under Performance Share Rights Plan 1 . 3 - -
Balance at the end of the financial period ' 1,595 1,594 3,263 3,263
Reset preference shares . -
.Balance at the end of the previous financial period 6. -6 539 539
AIFRS transition adjustments ' o : ‘
- Reclassification of reset preference shares _ (6) - (550) -
- Reclassification of capitalised transaction costs ® . o - .- 11 I
Balance at the beginning and end of the ﬁnancialvp’e_riOd. : - 6 - 539
Total share capital at the end of the finangial period.i‘: - 3,802
(b) Treasury shares
Balance at the begmnm of the fmancxal penod SRy

ACC]UlSlthIl ofshares SO S
Dnsmbutmn of shares e _

: u"““(c) Reserves 8

F orezgn currency translatzon reserve

Balance at the beginning of the financial i)énod a V;' ) . ' ’ » ' ©) 6
Net exchange difference on translation of forelgn operatlons ' S 2 (1)
Hedge of net investment in a subsidiary o 1

Balance at the end of the financial period - . . (3) (6)
Share based remuneration reserve ‘

Balance at the beginning of the financial period 13 5
Recognition of equity settled share based remuneration 13 8
Transfers from the reserve upon vesting of rights/shares (10) -
Balance at the end of the financial period ’ ' 16 13

Hedging reserve _
Balance at the end of the previous financial period : - -
AIFRS transition adjustments

- Recognition of cash flow hedges, net of tax 5) -
Balance at the beginning of the financial period : | A 6)) -
Movements in fair value of derivatives forming hedge ' O] -
Balance at the end of the financial period (9) -
Total reserves ' 4 7

* The amount was less than 0.5 million and thus rounded down to zero.



INSURANCE AUSTRALIA GROUP LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

Note 10. Reconciliation of total equity (continued)

(d) Retained earnings

Balance at the end of previous financial period
Net total ATFRS transition adjustments (refer to note 2 for reconciliation)

Balance at the beginning of the financial period
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Parent
Actuarial gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans, net of tax

Dividends declared and paid

Balance at the end of the financial period

Parent interest

(e) Minority interests

Balance at the end of previous financial period

AIFRS transition adjustments

- Reclassification of mmorlty mtq‘rests in unitholders’ funds

CONSOLIDATED
Half year Year
ended ended
31 Dec 30 Jun
2005 2005
Sm $m
142 (259)
(5) 32
137 227
461 - 811 -
8 -
(231) (442)
375 142
3,597 3917 -
586 686 '
. (421) -

- Net impact of other AIFRS transition adjustments @ 3
Bilaiice at the beginning of the ﬁnancxal period” ‘ 164 ~689
Profit attributable to mifority interésts™ 52 17

" Distributions to:minority interests ” -~ , (44) o (120) - ..

Other movements mumtholders funds . ° ) P - (100).

",Ba]ance at the end of the ﬁnanc1al perlod : 172 586 N
Comprising:
- Share capital 124 124
- Retained profits 48 41
- Unitholders’ funds - 421

Balance at the end of the financial period 172 586

_Total equity 3,769 4,503

® These reconciliation adjustments arose from the IAG Group’s election to not restate comparatives for certain accounting standards as allowed upon first time adoption

~ of AIFRS. Refer to note 2 for further details regarding the transition adjustments. Refer to note 9 for further details regarding the instruments.

@ prior to 1 July 2005 the distributions on reset preference shares were included as dividends. From 1 July 2005 onwards the distributions are treated as finance costs
and in this reconciliation are included in profit attributable to equity holders of the Parent. Refer to note 2 for further details.

(f) Notes to sections (a) to (e) above

(i) Share capital

All ordinary shares on issue are fully paid and bave no par value. Ordinary shares entitle the holder to a vote at a general meeting of the
Company and participate in the dividends and the proceeds on winding up the Company in proportion to the number of, and amounts
paid on, the shares held. Dividends, if declared, are subject to there being distributable profits available and not breaching APRA
capital adequacy requirements. Reset preference shares rank before ordinary shares in the event of the Parent being wound up and
distributions on reset preference shares are paid in priority to any dividends on ordinary shares.
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Note 10. Reconciliation of total equity (continued)
(f) Notes to sections (a) to (e) above (continued)

(ii) Treasury shares

The IAG Group provides share based remuneration in different forms to eligible employees and directors. To satisfy the IAG Group’s
obligations under the various share based remuneration plans, shares are generally bought on-market at or near grant date of the relevant
arrangement and held in trust. Upon consolidation of the trusts, the shares held are recognised as treasury shares, as described in note
1(aa).

Shares purchased in relation to the dividend reinvestment plan are purchased on behalf of the equity holders using the equity holders’
_dividend income and so at no time do the ordinary shares used as part of the dividend reinvestment plan qualify as treasury shares.

(i1i) Nature and purpose of reserves

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve records the foreign currency differences arising from the translation of the financial position
and performance of entities in the IAG Group that have a functional currency other than Australian dollars.

Hedging reserve
The hedging reserve is used to record gains or losses on derivatives that form part of hedging relationships which have been demgnated
as cash flows hedges or net investment hedges, as described in note 1(0).

a

. Share based remuneration reserve
The share based remuneration reserve is used to recognise the fair value at grant date of equity-settled share based remuneration over the
vesting period, as described in note 1(v). :
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Note 11. Changes in composition of the IAG Group

31 December 2005

During the half year ended 31 December 2005, fhe TAG Group acquired ordinary shares in IAG Insurance {Thailand) Ltd (formerly
Royal and Sun Insurance Alliance (Thailand) Ltd) effective 4 July 2005. The entity is a subsidiary for accounting purposes. At the date
of acquisition, the acquired entity was involved in general insurance underwriting in Thailand.

31 December 2004

During the half year ended 31 December 2004 the consolidated entity acquired 50.1% of Mike Henry Travel Insurance Limited on 6
July 2004 with a contractual obligation to purchase the remaining equity on or before 1 July 2006. As this acquisition was not material,
no further information was provided.

Details of the 2005 acquisition are as follows:

CONSOLIDATED
31 Dec
2005
$m
Purchase price: . ‘
Cash paid ‘ ' ' 34
Direct costs associated with acquisition 1
Total purchase consideration 35
ﬂ@» — -
Fair value of niet identifiable assets acquired: s CLa ,
" Cash and cash equivalents L : o - » ’ 6
ClnvestmentsT o e T S
" Receivables L o SO 2 S
- Deferred acquisitioncosts™ ™~ - - I T T e T 1
" Property; plant and equipment T " e T T S SR S
Payables =~ T T o e R S ¢ ) DA
Curret tax fiabilities -+~ T Ui T e T T gy
Unearned premium liability . o ' )
Outstanding claims liability (14)
Net identifiable assets acquired 10
Goodwill | 20
Intangible ' 5
: 25

The goodwill is attributable to the synergies expected to arise after the acquisition. The fair value of assets and liabilities are based on
discounted cash flow models. No restructuring provisions were created.

While there are other intangible benefits that have been acquired as part of the traxisaction, these benefits have not been recognised
separately from goodwill because they were not separately recognisable and/or were not able to be reliably measured.
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Note 11. Changes in composition of the IAG Group (continued)

The net cash flow in relation to the acquisition is as follows:

CONSOLIDATED

31 Dec

- 2005

$m

Cash consideration paid - ‘ ' 35
Cash balance acquired . _ ©)
Net outflow of cash 29

Contribution from the acquired business:

Income : . 37
Profit before income tax o - : : : 1

" The contribution from the acquired business is recognised for the period from 4 July 2005 (date of acquisition) to 31 December 2005.

Note 12. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

There have been no.material changes,in contingent liabilities or contingent assets since 30 June 2005....

1 #CONSOLIDATED: -+
S e o _ 31 Dec A AR RN I 30]1111
- T Netes - 2005 - 2005

1+ Net tanigible assets per ordinary sharé™~ "

Net tangible assets per reset preferénce share ~ ) (ii) n/a 100.00

(1) Net tangible assets per ordinary share has been determined after adjusting for minority interests, goodwill and other intangible assets
and the value of reset preference shares on issue (only for reporting date at 30 June 2005, refer (ii) below for further details).

(i) While for accounting purposes the reset preference shares were previously classified as equity under Australian GAAP, they are
classified as debt from 1 July 2005 onwards (refer to note 2 for further details) and hence the net tangible assets disclosure is not
relevant. When classified as equity, the net tangible assets per reset preference share were reflected at the face value of $100, as the
entitlement to the net assets in all circumstances is limited to the face value of the reset preference shares.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

Note 14. Events subsequent to reporting date

As these transactions occurred after reporting date and did not relate to conditions existing at reporting date, no account has been taken
of them in the financial statements for the half year ended 31 December 2005.

(a) Interim dividend

On 23 February 2006 an interim dividend of 13.5 cents per share, 100% franked, was declared by the Company. The Dividend
Reinvestment Plan will operate using shares acquired on-market with no discount applied. The dividend is to be paid on 10 April 2006.

(b) Acquisition of a Malaysian based composite insurance business

On 9 December 2005, the IAG Group announced that it had agreed to acquire a 30% interest in a general insurer in Malaysia,
AmAssurance Berhad (“AmAssurance™). AmAssurance underwrites both general and life insurance business and generates
approximately A$350 million in annual gross written premium (based on unaudited management accounts prepared in accordance with
Malaysian generally accepted accounting principles). The final regulatory approval required in Malaysia hss been received and
completion is expected in March 2006. ‘

(c) Memorandum of understanding with a China based general insurance business

On 7 February 2006, the IAG Group announced it had signed an exclusive memorandum of understanding regarding a proposed
investment in China Pacific Property Insurance Co, Ltd (CPIC Property). The IAG Group will negotiate with CPIC Property to
purchase an initial 24.9% interest, as well as an option to increase its ownership to 40% subject to certain regulatory approvals. CPIC
Property is part of the China Pacific Group and is the second largest general insurer in China. CPIC Property generated gross written
premium of approximately A$2.2 billion in the period,from January to October 2005 (based on unaudited management accounts
prepared in accordance w1th Chinese generally accepted accountmg prlncxples) o B, - e

(d) Increasmg interest in Thadand s Safety Insurance Public Company Limited' =~ e

- . 0On.10. February 2006, the IAG Group- acqmred an addmona} 16:7% interest in Safety JInsurance.-Public - Company Lumted (“Safety
- Insurance”), taking its existing 21.6% shareholding to 38.3%. The IAG Group announced on 13- February 2006 that it mtends to ﬁmher".v..,r. -
..increase its mterest 1n Safety Insurance through a. general tender offer to all Safety Insurance shareholders. - s AR

' Safety Insurance is Thaxland’s 7th largest general insurer and Sth largest motor insurer, and has been listed on the Stock Exchange of

Thailand since 1977 and currently generates approximately A$100 million gross written premium per annum.
(e} Return of capital

On 2>3 February 2006, IAG announced it would return $200 million to shareholders by 30 June 2006. The form of the return will be
determined in due course with a buy-back or special dividend being considered. ,
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INSURANCE AUSTRALIA GROUP LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

In the opinion of the Directors of Insurance Australia Group Limited:

(a) the financial statements and notes, set out on pages 4 to 43, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(1) giving a true and fair view of the financial position of the IAG Group as at 31 December 2005 and of its performance, as
represented by the results of its operations and its cash flows, for the half year ended on that date; and

(i1) complying with Accounting Standard AASB 134 Interim Financial Reporting and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and
(b) there are reasbnable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

This declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to be made to the Directors in accordance with section 295A
of the Corporations Act 2001 for the half year ended 31 December 2005, - o

- Signed at Sydney this 23rd day of February 2006 in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.
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Independent Review Report to the shareholders of Insurance Australia Group Limited
Scope '
The financial report and directors’ responsibility

The financial report comprises the consolidated interim income statement, balance sheet, statement of recognised income and expense,
cash flows statement, accompanying notes 1 to 14 to the financial statements, and the directors’ declaration for the Insurance Australia
Group Limited Consolidated Entity (“the Consolidated Entity”), for the half-year ended 31 December 2005. The Consolidated Entity
comprises Insurance Australia Group Limited (“the Company”) and the entities it controlled during that half-year.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with
the Corporations Act 2001. This includes responsibility for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal controls that
are designed to prevent and detect fraud and error, and for the accounting policies and accounting estimates inherent in the financial
report. The directors are also responsible for preparing the relevant reconciling information regarding adjustments required under the
Australian Accounting Standard AASB 1 Ftrst-T ime Adoption of Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting
Standards.

Review approach

We conducted an independent review in order for the Company to lodge the financial report with the Australian Securities and
Investments Commission. Our review was conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards applicable to review
engagements, ; ‘ '

We performed procedures in order to state whether on the basis of the procedures described anything has come to our attention that
would indicate the financial report does not present fairly, in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, Australian Accounting
Standard AASB 134 Interim Financial Reporting and other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia, a view which is
consistent with our understanding of the Consolidated Entity’s financial position, and of its performance as represented by the results of
its operations and cash flows.

We formed our statement on the basis of the review procedures performed which were hnnted pnmanly to:
] enqumes of company personnel; and - e . . , S T e Z
® analytical procedures apphed to the ﬁnancral data

~ While we considered the effectrveness of management s mtemal controls over financial reporting when determmmg the nature and -
'Vextent of our procedures our review- was-not desrgned to prov1de assurance on mtemal controls R

e e e e bcmes o ——

vt I P

aud1t We have not performed an audit and, aceordmgly, we- donot express an audrt opinion.. -
A review cannot guarantee that all material misstatements have been detected. '
Statement

Based on our review, which is not an audit, we have not become aware of any matter that makes us beheve the ha]f—year financial report
of Insurance Australia Group Limited is not in accordance with:

a) the Corporations Act 2001, including:

i. giving a true and fair view of the Consolidated Entity’s financial position as at 31 December 2005 and of its performance for
the half-year ended on that date; and

ii. complying with Australian Accounting Standard AASB 134 Interzm Financial Reporting and the Corporatlons Regulations
2001; and

b) other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia.

s

KPMG

,

DrAndries B Terblanché A | ‘ , Sydney
Partner , 23rd February 2006



w&-mm

FACT SHEET IAG

23 February 2006 Insurance
Australia
Insurance Australia Group results for Group
the six months to 31 December 2005
Record half-year profit in a competitive market
Summary information
6 months to 6 months to 6 months:
31 Dec 2004* | 30 June 2005* | 31.Dec:2
$m $m
Gross written premium (GWP) 3,328 3,345
Net eamed premium (NEP) - 3,084 3,007
Underwriting profit 219 219
Investment income on technical reserves . 263 246
Insurance; profit . . 482 465 |™
Investment income on shareholders® funds 285 170
Net profit after tax attributable to holders of ordinary shares 452 328
____ - Group combined ratio- 1 929%921% h
Immunised Group combined ratio L 90.8_% ' 919‘y -
Group insurance marg-iiil R : 156% %
.- =] Dividends per share (ceis, fully franked) 12,00 |

tiohal Financial-Réporting Standards.

I JWE oty

L XRESTlLS havé-been restated in accordarnce: with Austialinh equivalents of: A

soenmarETRLR L LD\ LR

Group highlights 7 '

e Record half year profit achieved, confirming the soundness of the Group’s strategy to strike a
balance between risk-based pricing, maintaining our leading market position and keeping premiums
affordable for customers, despite a challenging operating environment.

¢ Record interim dividend of 13.5 cents per share, up 12.5% on the corresponding period, and above
the Group’s commitment to deliver 10% dividend growth for the financial year.

e 3200 million capital return to shareholders planned by 30 June 2006, based on the strength of the
Group’s financial position. At 31 December 2005, the Group had around $870 million in capital surplus
. to that required to maintain its internal benchmark of 1.55x APRA’s minimum capital requirement.

e Progressed international expansion strategy, allowing the Group to further diversify its risk
portfolio geographically and generate new revenue streams in some of the world’s fastest growing
insurance markets. Successful completion of current initiatives will enable IAG to participate in
companies with annual gross written premium of more than $3 billion, of which the Group would
have an interest in more than $800 million.

* Record revenue generated from investment income: the pre-tax return on shareholders’ funds
increased 21% from $285 million to $345 million. The Group’s portfolios outperformed the benchmark
by 55 basis points, contributing an additional $52 million to the Group’s pre-tax result.

¢ Premiums kept affordable, with NSW CTP prices more affordable than they were 10 years ago and
motor insurance premiums Just over half of one week’s average earnings.

Page 1 of 2




Divisional highlights (for the six months ended 31 December 2005)

Australian personal insurance

The Group’s Australian personal insurance operations includes motor, home, compulsory third
party (CTP) and niche insurance, sold under the NRMA Insurance, SGIO and SGIC brands, as
well as business sold through financial institutions and other distribution partners under the CGU

and Swann Insurance brands. Australian Personal Insurance - Portfolio mix
% of GWP

e  Gross written premium:  $1,936 million
¢  Net earned premium:; $1,880 million

. i Motor vehicle (48%
e  Insurance margin: 13.1% (48%)

mHome (31%)
Compulsory third party (16%)
Other'Short—tail (5%)

Australian commercial insurance

The Group’s Australian commercial insurance operations includes fire & industrial special risk (ISR),
commercial property, commercial motor, rural and horticultural, marine, home warranty, public
liability, professional indemnity and workers’ compensation insurance, sold predonunantly under the
CGU brand.

Australian Commercial Insurance - Portfolio mix
. . - % of GWP

e  Gross written premium: ~ $761 million %ol G
s  Net earned premium: - $738 million

. . Insurance margm o 186%

& Short-tail Commercial (62%).

Llablhty( 23%) '

Internatlonal operatlons o o ‘ _
The Group’s international operauovs compnsed the New Zealand busmess (which sells personal and -
commercial insurance under the State, and NZI brands) and Asian interests. »

New Zealand Operations - Portfolio mix

e  Gross written premium:  $509 million % of GWP

Net earned premium: $467 million
¢ Insurance margin: . 18.4%

i Motor (29%)
m Home (27%)
Short-tail Commercial (38%)

. - Other Short-tail (6%
Outlook and sustainable returns ‘ 16%)

For the full year, the Group expects to:

e Deliver an insurance margin of between 14%-16%;

o Deliver 10% dividend growth; and

e  Work to complete the Asian investments currently underway and pursue other international
expansion opportunities.

Longer term, the Group expects to be able to generate a return on equity from its Australian and New
Zealand businesses of about 2%-3% above the insurance market average, given the Group’s position
relative to other major participants in these markets. In offshore markets, the Group remains committed
to generating attractive, sustainable returns for shareholders.

Page 2 of 2
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Financial results |
Half year ended 31 December 2005

Michael Hawker, Chief Executive Officer
George Venardos, Chief Financial Officer

23 February 2006

o , - B o e i Austratia Group Limited
NEMA SGio  saic -%u & N4 ABN 0 000 7R 82
TN L R [ ] ‘

INSURAKCL
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"'-.:,Good MOrRIng.™ Weloome to the' Insurance Australia. Group results bnefmg 0N OUr-..." ™
results for the six months ended 31 December 2005. , .

... . - Copies-of-all the. matenals we“ar'e usmg ‘here this morning are: ’alr
.%-..-..and an archive of this- ion.will be published later today..

o “Rs usiial, we'd liké 16 @iplete the presentation before. taking-questions from those of_,:'j,j."'
IR ~youhere with us in person this morning and from those on the phone“llnes -

d')"/"bn our webSife

Before handing over to Mike Hawker, I'd like to draw your attention to the fact
that these results have been prepared using the Australian equivalents of
International Reporting Standards (‘AIFRS’). The comparative information for
the 2005 financial year has been restated under AIFRS. Information for financial
periods prior to FY05 have not been restated as the information is not readily
available. The materials lodged with ASX today include reconciliations between
the old and new bases.
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Michael Hawker
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Record interim profit and dividend with (l})
capital return - Ci/

Insurance

* Net profit to holders of ordinary shares increased to $461m fustraie
— Arecord half-year result
-~ Increased by 2% relative to 1HO5 and 40.5% on 2H05

+ Continuing to generate strong margins coupled with record returns from
the equity markets

» Insurance margin of 15.2%, in line with guidance
~ Maintained underwriting discipline despite increased competition
~ Several factors influencing claims but relatively benign overall
~ Administration costs contained

+ Increased eamings on shareholders’ funds of $345m (pre-tax)

+ Interim dividend increased by 12.5% from 12.0cps to 13.5¢ps

+ Surplus capital being utilised ~ dividends, Asian expansion and a $200m
capital return

All amounis for 1H05 & subsequent periods restated under AIFRS

N?;‘I:EA sGjo ggic @ e @ N4 . Insurance Australia Group Limited ABN 66090739923 4 »

nnnnnnnn m——

- Good morning. B

| am pleased to be reportlng another record proft this persod based on a comblnatlon of

. sustaining margins:in-our insurance operations and another very strong period for equity

market returns. The reported profit for shareholders of $461m is 2% and 40.5% higher than

" the equivalent half-year profits to December 2004- and June. 2005, respectively.

The insuraiice margin of 15.2% is within the ongmal guidance range provided to"the market. -

It compares with a margin of 15.6% for 1H05, as restated under AIFRS.

Key to delivering this result has been adhering to our strategy of being focused on not
sacrificing underwriting discipline to sustain growth even though competitive pressures
increased markedly during 1HO6. '

Claims experience was mixed but relatively benign overall. Key features were:
» Continued improvement in commercial liability classes;
« Inflationary pressures in NSW and ACT CTP caused by higher than expected
increases in AWE (average weekly earnings);
+ An increased incidence of large commercial property fire losses; and

+ Lower storm claims costs.

Containing costs at such a challenging time in the market is crucial and this was achieved.
The whole of the increase of $35m in administration expenses from 1H05 can be explained
by increased provisions required for fire services levies.

Delivering another strong profit has enabled the Group to declare an interim dividend on

. ordinary shares of 13.5 cents per share. This is up 12.5% on last year's interim dividend of

12cps and means we are on-track to increase the dividends by 10% from FY0S5, in
accordance with the guidance provided to the market.

The Group has continued to generate surplus capital and now has approximately $870m.
While some of this is ear-marked for the interim dividend and the Asian investments already
announced to the market, the strength of the capital position has led the Board to resolve to
return $200m of capital to shareholders by the end of this financial year in line with our
ongoing strategy to both expand and generate increasing returns to shareholders.
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Financial results overview Y
IAG
Financial Results/Ratios Haif-year Half-year - Australia
ended ended Groupn
Dec 04 Jun 05
NEP (A$m)
Profit attributable to holders of ordinary shares (A$m) $452
Reported ROE % (Average Equity) to holders on ordinary equity pa 29.2%
Normalised ROE % (Average Equity) to holders on ordinary equity pa 21.2%
Net cash flow from operations (A$m) $431 —
Basic EPS (cents) 28.54
Diluted EPS (cents) . . ) 28.35
DPS ’ 12,00
Group insurance ratios . } :
Loss ratio 66.9%
Expense ratio 26.0% . —
Commission ratio 8.2%
Fire services levy (FSL) ’ : 2.9%
Administration expense ratio (excl FSL) .. . | 14.9%
Combined ratio ’ ' 92.9%
Insurance margin (before tax) [EUERE N ‘115‘6%
Probability of adequacy of
general insurance claims reserves >80% )
MCR multiple - Group ’ 1.85x
,[( K . e RS s AUamwmsfw1HDS&&tb§eq nt periods restated under AIFRS
NEMA SGJO ' SGIC \CGU - SVl N4~ -« Insurance Australia Group Limked ABN60090738023° 5
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“I'd’like;to.draw your-attentionto. afewhnes onthis page. .. .- PIELE T 2

“The difference between the reported ROE (return on equuty) of 26 4% for 1H06 and’ the
-7 normalised RO of 18.29 itabl
o shareholders funds

were: _ N .

* An increase of about $60m in each of reinsurance premiums tax. paid and
operatmg costs. The increased net ‘operating payments include the cash outflows
from provisions established in 2HO05 for restructuring, superannuation
contributions and extra fire services levies; .

+ About $40m extra in claim payments, net of reinsurance. This is a timing issue —
the most significant element of the increase is settling claims relating to major
weather events in 2H0S5. <

The administration ratio increasing to 27.1% masks underlying savings in-expenses.
In dollar terms, the Group’s administration expenses increased by $35m on 1HO05 to
$584m. This can. all be attributed to fire services levies, a cost we can neither
accurately predict or control due to the way in which these charges are levied on
insurers by the NSW and Victorian governments.

Inflation in wages, rent and consumables were covered by expense savings being
realised.

The MCR multiple improved to 2.04x whilst maintaining a very strong claims re.Serving
position at a 91.8% probability of adequacy. It is worth noting that all insurance
liabilities are reserved to a probability of adequacy greater than 90%.

Net cash. flow fromm ope_"tions is, about $260m Iowert than- 1H05 The key factors T




< year to that date and | spoke about our expectation- that Qrowth in FY06- would be flat.

Leading market shar_es retained (Q

Y/e Sept-04  Yle Sept-05 !Ig\‘%
Australian Premiums $'m $m Growth JeEEs
Industry gross premium revenue 22,809 22,701 -0.5%
IAG gross written premium . 5,594 5,637 0.8%
1AG share of the market i 24.5% 24.8% 0.3%

Industry data per APRA Quarterfy Statistics, excluding inwards reinsurance-
Y/e Sept-04 Y/e Sept-05

New Zealand Premiums ASm ASm Growth
Industry gross premium revenue 2,873 2,992 4.1%
IAG NZ gross written premium 1,049 1,091 4.0%
IAG share of the market 36.5% 36.5% -

Industry data: Insurance Council of New Zealand

+ 1AG growth in Australia was 1.3% ahead of the market to September 2005
* |AG grew in line with the market in New Zeaiand
* Overall market share materially unchanged

Al amounts for 1H0S & subsequent periods restated under AIFRS
NRMA scio g cGU ‘s awonn @ N4 ;. [Insurance fusiralia Group Limted ABN 60000730023 6
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“fd-now. like to spend a little time on:the market .conditions for. premlum -in .the_domestic

markets and then address the Group's performance within that._ D . . _‘ .

s ""}The mformatlon on this slide is the same as that on a-slide | uced when. reportlng on the LTI
- FY05 results except that it _now includes another six.months of information.” The -‘APRA .

e data to. March 2005 showed that ifidusiry.gross premium revenus had risen by 1.7% in the

" The APRA data shown on this slide shows that industry premium actually fell by 0. 5% for

" the:year to September 2005. As it-has been well-telegraphed that the December renewal
period has not included rate rises of note, | believe it is now safe to say that our
expectation of industry premium growth in Australia merely stalling for the year to June
2006 will prove to have been optimistic! .

What can also be seen on this slide is.that IAG’s premium in Australia grew 0.8% or 1.3%
more than the market in the year to September 2005 and we delivered growth in line with
the market in New Zealand at about 4% in the same period, meaning the Group has
retained its leading market shares in both these markets.



“‘The' doWhW‘a‘rds:—tréﬁd{ in stomer complamts as:a. percentage .of pohcnes in. force m our. .

. 'Re' wal rates |‘n both the'comfneréial Book ‘and th
books moderated slightly during. TH06..However, in. the circumstances,-this-was to be

Customer service levels maintained (l%
IAG

inswance
Australia
Groug

Customers complaints continus to u;ndhiw’} G

Trend in customer complaints

(direct personal lines portfolio)
0.024% .
0.02t%
s018%
0015%
0.012%
0000%
0.000%
0.003%

T e e e e e e @.«“’ﬁﬂ"fffffy SEEE S

- - % general compiaints {exci ciaims Jdirect peraons) ines mia, in-torce

+ Tracehs inclekm matisincton- wm-rm

ing high custoner retantion devak in Kby

Sustaini

Retention rates Brand hesith
Retall brands)

sxtzat Commarcial Ened (intermadiary| —8-— Dmec? carsonal nes
VITRTY CORTRIT S IS G A X OCDOw 2005

= Oct - Doc 04 +~ Oct - Dac G5
e , T T U All amaunts for 1HOS & subsequent periods restated under AIFRS
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health all. remain. strong ER DI

shd Fsme

expected and we are already working ‘on reversing that trend in -personal lines -and
believe that our consistent approach to prncmg will see it rise agam in commercial lines
once the cycle turns.

The health of our key retail brands remains strong, with improvements recorded in New
South Wales, Queensland and South Australia compared with a year ago.

At the core of our business are our people who continue to strive to deliver great
customer service. Based on these results, they have a good track record of delivering
that.




Consistent earnings contribution from )}
insurance business | IAG/

lasurance
Aystrahia
Group

Components of pre-tax profit (excl minority interests)

A$m

2H04 1HO5 2H05 1HO6
M nsurance result i lnvestment return on sharehoider funds
R Non-insurance margin® : A t Non-recurring items

* Non-insurance margin includes net corporate expenses, NSW insurance protection tax & fee based businesses.

SURE N - Ail amounts for 1H0S & subsequent periods restated under AIFRS
NRMA scro g @ L\ N4 - Insurance Australia Group Limited ABN 60000739923 . 8
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Sl quiv' turning back to the financials: This chart demonstrates that the core operating -~ -~
~~ ** " earnings of the Group (in dark grey on this chart) continue to deliver very strong results

~ and that the.volatility in.reported earnings-is- really contamed in the mark to market-of
the shareholders funds mvestment portfoho S P




Stability of key insurance ratios U
Expense ratio Insurance
Aystraliz
Group
04 1HOS 2H05 -8
w Adminisirafion rato ®FSLimpect  ® Commission ratio e Loss Rako ined Loss ratio
|nmmnee margin (before tax)
Combined ratio 18.0%
90.8% 91.9% - 16.0%
' n 0%
12.0%
10.0%
8.0%
80%
4.0%
20%
2.0%
2404 1HOS. 205 OB pi ol ™S 205 MO8
o Combined Ratio —h'rr\mised Combined rato
Nofes:
1. Only 1HOS and subsequent penods have been restated for AIFRS; and
2. The immunised combined ratio & determined by assummg constant bond yields within each reporting
. perod. All amounts for 1H0S & subsequent periods restated under AIFRS
NRMA 'SGIO SGIC @ s ;;; 3.5“ @ "4 « "+ Insurance Australia Group Limited. ABN 60080730023  §
nsarange - - '

,”_chans
.I m pl ased to pount out no

‘._‘Groups operatnons n.. Austraha and- New __,Zealand”-«-—-' The newtable‘ vanablhty

experience, for example due to weather related events or scheme changes can be more

readily absorbed by other areas. During 1HO06, for instance:

« Some of the storm and fire costs in personal lines and commercial lines in Australia
were offset by benign weather experience in claims for the New Zealand business;
and

« Continued favourable development of commercial liability contrasts with additional
allowances for future claims costs in the CTP portfolio driven by higher than
anticipated growth in average weekly earnings.

The affect of having to book additional provisions for fire services levies, to which |

referred earlier, is clear on the chart at the top left-hand side. When FSL is excluded
‘from the expense ratio, it can be seen that the ratio of the remaining expenses has
actually come back to 14.7%, particularly pleasing in an environment where overall
premium rates have been flat to down.

The red line on the charts for the loss ratio and the combined ratio shows what we refer
to as the immunised ratios. These are derived by assuming that the bond yields current
at the beginning of each period remain constant. This gives a clearer picture of the
underlying trend in claims experience.

There is no equivalent line on the insurance margin as our approach to investing our
technical reserves means that the change in the claims expense due to differing discount
rates is largely cancelled out by the capital profits/losses recorded on the investments
held to back the technical reserves.

it is this consistency that has enabled us to increase our minimum expectatlon for the
FY06 insurance margin from 13.5% to 14.0%.




Increased investment income ) Y

Portfolio income (pre-tax) and Lu,g
cl. derivative: Austrabia
e - ” o 3 Group

Technical reserves
Shareholders' funds

Total investment income
All yields zre a nnuaiised

* Technical reserves return of 5.6%
— Includes active return of 26 bpts, primarily from the equity overlay -
« Yield of 23.2% on shareholders’ funds includes active return of 124 bpts

— Return reflects mix of Australian equities (+16.0%), international
equities (+33.4%), fixed interest (+4.8%) and cash (+5.8%)

* The overall gross retumn of 10.8% includes active return of 55 bpts or
approximately $52m (pre-tax)

« Active returns delivered each year since listing in 2000

The retums shown excludes the investment income eamed on the portfolio backing the RES in 1H06 ($16m) and 2H05 ($14m).

. ' All amounts for 1HOS & subsequent periods restated under AIFRS
MzﬁA SGJO % CGU L\ BT N4 : - insurance Australia Group Uimited ABN 60090739923 10
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. " The:Group’s technical reserves return-of 2.8% for the half-year {or 5:6% annualised) is.
- essentially determined by the cash and hond.yields. However, it is pleasing to note that

the team delivered 26 basis-points in active.return, prlmanly from our equity overlay

: ~The ‘Group- has benefited from the growth in; equny market vaities during 1HO6. . Both the...

market . returns and. the active returns deliverad-by our fund managers were very strong
";The actlve return was. 124 basis points durmg 1H06. - - e

The yield on the shareholders’ funds portfolios of 11.6% (or 23 2% annuahsed) is Iower

than the market yields on equities due to the substantial portion of the shareholders’
funds invested according to our surplus capital fund. The surplus capital fund is invested
under an enhanced cash mandate (maximum of 20% in growth assets) on which the
yield was 2.7% (or 5.4% annualised) for 1H06.

10



Reported ROE enhanced by equity markets - )
. . , 7
normalised ROE sustained ,
. ; IAG
0% - Annualised Return on Equity };J:’;;‘;‘
ATCUD

25%

20% |

15%

10% I

5%

0%

_ FY03 " FYo4 FY0S 1H06
1 ROE (Actual) attributable to holders of ordinary shares
® ROE (Nommalised) attributable to holders of ordinary shares
* Equity market retumns delivered further growth in reported ROE in 1H06
* Surplus capital (invested in enhanced cash mandate) reduced
normalised ROE relative to FY0S
-~ Now in process of being utilised or paid to shareholders

wEa soio. saig. (cou B WA oAl G Unie AR O0RTIO 1

T T T T T e R T I D e A S Y

o “reniove the” volatuhty of‘ 'é‘d.
L ST '-r'v-rannuahsed R@Ecwas 18:2%:

_The_normallsed returh 15 Tower in ‘rIjOG 05 due’ to'the surplus capltal bemg“ e
carried: ‘This increases the ‘denominator in the caiculation ‘and- also earns a’ return -
below that bemg earned by the capital allocated to the business.

The average ROE reported since I|st|ng in August 2000 is 12.4%. Th:s rises to 14.2%
ona normahsed basis.

< The Group normalises the return on equity by replacing the actual yield on the core
shareholders’ funds portfolios with a rate determined by adding a 4% equity risk
premium to the 10 year bond rate. The surplus capital fund portfolio yield is not
normalised as it is not intended to be held for the long-term.

11




Double digit dividend growth — 12.5% t’i/
| IAG

fnsurance
e Australia
Dividends per share Graup

20

FYO1 FYo2 FYo3 Fro4 FYos 1HO§
o interm dividend = Final dwidend

All earnings pre-goodwill amortisation and post RPS dividends

+ Dividends for 1H06 represent:
~  47% of reported earnings
—  68% of normalised earnings
» Since listing, the cumulative dlvldend payout is 62% of cash earmngs

e - . . All amounts for 1H05 & subsequent periods restated under AIFRS
Nw sGio % @ ‘&:‘;\’:‘;&%K;. @ ",‘ . InsulancsAuamfs,GynwLimlﬁj A:BNSOOOOR!OGZ.BW‘IZ

INSURANCE

-+ The:Group’s guidance on the total dividend on ordinary shares for £Y06 was thatitwas . . .
- confident. that it could be increased: by 10%:--We are-on track-to do that and. have - ...
===: declared. aninterim- dividend- of. 13 5 cents ‘per-ordinary share wh:ch will: be#unded from . -
- oursurplus capital..... . ‘ e e LI e e e

T - This. represents: 68% of the normahsed earnmgs -for 1H06 Thus is near the: top endof
- our-dividend policy which is-to.pay 50 =°70% of normallsed earnmgs usually in-a 45:55

split between interim and final.

Since listing, the cumulative payout ratio is 62% of earnmgs before goodwill amortlsat;on
for holders of ordinary shares. : :

We considered it appropriate to moveé towards the top end of the payout ratio in this
period following consideration of a number of factors including:

» The Group’s current surplus capital position; and
+ The Group’s expectation that it will return to higher growth.
The dividend is due to be paid on 10 April.

The Group'’s capacity to continue to generate increases in annual dividend of about 10%
per annum beyond the next year or two will be dependent on successfully progressing
our ambitions for profitable growth.

12



‘ . )
Increased regulatory capital coverage (,L)
IAG
3.00x Iasurance
Austrafa
Groug
2.50x
7
E 2.00x
£ 150 |
Z
Z 1.00x |
3]
=
0.50x -
0.00x 4
30-Jun<3 30-Jun-04 30-Jun-05 31-Dec-05
m T1 Non-hybrid capital mT1Hybid =72 DRES
* The Group’s capital, expressed as an MCR muiltiple, is 2.04 times
* The excess above 1.55x MCR is approximately $870m
« A further 0.31x MCR is available to the Group from its contingent capital
- | @ soo gue (oo Mo, g we | REREIIRTEEELET

~(ie the muiltiple that-the Group's-Tegulatory -capital i5-t6™the MINIMUM - eXPeCted s ~=w = s - o |
“determined. by applymg APRA capltal ﬂnncuples toihe Group,s consohdated balance -7 o i

“The MCR multiple at’'371° December i5 2 04-times compared with- 2 00 umes at 30 Jun
~2005 and the Group's' current benchmark: lével. of 1.55 times:  This translates:into--
~ approximately $870m of surplus capital. :

These figures exclude the Group’s contingent capital of $550m which is represented by
the yellow section on these charts. This capital has already been raised in the form of
off-balance sheet debt and is at call for conversion into Tier One quality capital.

This very strong capital position supports our AA (stable) ratings and Standard & Poor's
has confirmed that the capital return announced today will not endanger these ratings.

13




Capital return (lﬁ
IAG

Insurance

* Surplus capital of approximately $870m at 1H06, before paying Bustiala
the interim dividend on ordinary shares of $215m

* Continuing philosophy of returning surplus capital to shareholders
— History of buy-backs (three in five years)

» Surplus capital being held for pending Asian investments,
particularly China

— Imminent completion of AmAssurance
— Tender for further stake in Safety Insurance is open

— Working to finalise agreement with China Pacific Property
Insurance

+ Core operations expected to continue to generate surplus capital
* Decision to retum $200m of capital to shareholders in 2H06
— Form of return yet to be determined

All amourts for 1HOS & subsequent periods resiated under AIFRS
m’ﬁ\'hp\ SGio g cgu X 2 W Insurance Australia Group Limtod ABN 60080730623 14
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*"When presenting on the Group’s” 2005 results I.referred to the strong surplus capital )
'~f-'-"-posst|on ‘and-the- Group’s desire to-temporarily pull back from our history.of regular.--. - . - «
= retumns orsurplus capital in anticipation-of -being-able to execute on-Asian expansion:-- - oL
- and not wishing to spendfunds- retummg capltal only {o- reed to raise the cap;tal again. - ...

within a very short t:meframe

i Ascit-turned out, while we have' announced progress on- three transactnons,_ none._ of R

these was settled before balance date.

The deal with AmAssurance is due to settle on 3 March (Foreign Investment
Committee approval was received on 16 February) and the tender for shares in Safety
Insurance is underway.” The aggregate cost of these two investments will be less than
$150m.

We don't expect to be able to reach the stage of paying for our stake in China Pacific
Property Insurance before 30 June 2008.

Given this timeframe, our surplus franking credit position and our expectation of
continued solid returns from our Australian and New Zealand operations, we concluded
that we would move to return $200m to shareholders before 30 June 2006.

What form of capital return will be most efficient and effective has not yet been
determined. Clearly special dividends and buy-backs are part of these considerations.

We will update the market once the Board makes its determination.

14



Acquiring stakes in profitable Asian )
L a /
insurers with total GWP of over $3bn =
hostats
: Insuranaeg Soue
N ' . Est. to}a! industry
CHINA - [ﬂg GwP grOWth pa
. T e www.cpic.com.cn $2,628m 14%
$35m 1% '
‘ ‘.;‘];;‘:é’.sdety Ingurance $96m 119
" ' $275m . ... .. 10% ,
AUSTRALIA . . S
$3,034m
Notes: el
1) Estimated GWP based on local accounting policies
NG ~scio0. gaic. Qm‘u T @ WA oy e i ARG 15
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1 now want to,_prowde some context for the progress we' ve made |n executmg our strateglc goal of
' foothold i irv thé ‘AgiaR generaling
T BUSIHESSes AT our core’ operations; 'the«matunty ‘of-thesse Tmarkets and ‘our-leading posmons w1th|n~'> :
‘them prowdems w1th htﬂe scobefns srgmﬁcant growth Havmg identified. this; we: announced to-the--;

, .future - , : s

= Qver, the past fout years, we ve bee mvolved in 4 number. of potentlal | d als whlch dld not come to
" fruition for a range of reasons nncludnng price, m:sahgned objéctives and our perceptnon of culfural it
with the potential partner. In recent months we've been pleased that a number of transacttons have
progressed to the point of being announced to the:market. e :

« In July 2005; the Group acquired a small general insurer in Thailand, formerly owned by Royal &
SunAlliance Insurance Group. This company, now renamed .IAG Insurance (Thailand) and
operating under the NZI brand, is primarily a commercial insurer writing about $35m in GWP per
annum;

« This is our second investment in Thailand, having had a strategic stake in Safety insurance since
1998. We increased our voting stake in Safety insurance just two weeks ago to 38.3% and
currently have a tender in the market for the remaining shares. This offer is due to close on 27
March. Safety Insurance's business, which is currently writing close to $100m per annum of
GWP, is complementary to NZI's in that it is primarily a personal lines insurer;

+ In early December we announced that we had agreed.to acquire an initial 30% stake in

Malaysia’'s second largest motor insurer, AmAssurance Berhad. This business is, based on the

latest figures to hand, generating over $270m per annum of GWP. The final regulatory approval

for this transaction was received fast week and completion is expected by the end of next week;

and .

On 7 February, we announced the signing of an MOU (memorandum of understanding) to

acquire an initial stake of 24.9% of China Pacific Property Insurance Company, China’s second

largest insurer which reported GWP of $2.2bn in the 10 months to October 2005.

All of these operations are reporting profits in their local markets.

Completion of these transactions will provide the Group with significant stakes in profitable companies
generating over $3bn of GWP annually. And, this is in markets that are currently experiencing GWP
growth of between 10% and 14% per annum.




IAG’s initial equity interest equates to over w
$800m of GWP — 12.7% growth 4

Insurance
Estimated Currentequity IAGshareof Transactions as Australia
annual GWP share GWP percentage of Sroup

$m % $m IAG GWP

Finalised transactions
1AG Thailand {(NZ1) 35 1000
Safety Insurance 96 383 37
AmAssurance 275 30.0 83
-406 . . 155 24%,

Estimated Expected equity IAG shareof Transactions as

annual GWP share GwWp percentage of
$m % $m IAG GWP

Transactions in progress

CPPIC 2,628 249 657
Safety Insurance >50.0 >11

2,628 . - 657 10.2%
‘Grand total 3,034 812 12.7%

+ Settlement of AmAssurance is imminent and the tender for remaining shares in
Safety Insurance is open

« Each of these businesses is reporting underwriting profits in its local market

» |AG share expected to improve through organic growth in these businesses and
IAG’s options to increase its initial equity holdings
v . ' o o . . ) Al amourits for 1HOS & subsequent periods restated under AFRS
NEMA _SGTO 3GIC \CGU AN EZD N4 Insurance Ausdrsia Group Limied ABN 60060730923 16
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~“Qnthis slide we present what these transactions mean interms. IAG s-growth:: -

The top half of the tabte reflects the’ ‘transactions which are finalised = mcludmg the .
ArmAssurance transactlon which we are about to Settle. - Together our stakes in these "~ .~

. companies add 2.4% tothe GWP: on whcch we will be earning income. - -~

T The second half of the table deals wnth the other transactions’ ‘which are currently belng. _
progressed ie the acquisition 'of 24.9%-of- CPPIC and further increasing our-stake-in
Safety Insurance. For presentation purposes, we have assumed our share of Safety

will end up at a minimum of 50%.

Apart from Thai business, we won't be a controlling shareholder of the other operations
so we won't be consolidating the related premium but it will form the basis of adding
value to 1AG’s shareholders in the form of dividends, reinsurance premiums and growth
in the value of our stake in these businesses.

Both the AmAssurance deal and the MOU for CPPIC mclude terms providing for I1AG to
increase its stake beyond the initial stakes, subject to certain conditions and regulatory
approvals. This, combined with the anticipated growth in these insurance markets on
the back of economic growth rates that outstrip both Australia and New Zealand and
increasing insurance penetration as the populations become more affluent, means the
initial figure of $800m can be expected to grow quite quickly.

Further opportunities in Asia continue to be identified and investigated.

16
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Changes in basis of reporting | L’%
IAG

Insurance

* Required to report under Australian equivalents of Intemational Financial Austialia
Reporting Standards (AIFRS) for FY06 o

» Allinformation relating to FY05 has been restated

- Earlier periods not being restated as information not readily
available

* Reconciliations in financial statements and appendix to investor report

* The most significant differences to the previous reporting basis arise
from the treatment of

~ Reset preference shares as debt
- Goodwill |
~ Surpluses in superannuation funds
~ Software development costs

» The profits the Group’s captive has eamed from reinsuring the risks of -
the consolidated group have been allocated back to those businesses

All amounts for 1H05 & subsequent periods restated under AIFRS |

NEMA  SGiO ggic \cou BBt  state I g . Insurance Australia Group Limted ABN 60090739923 18 -
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CAS you are-all aware, W& are’ obhged to prepare our 2006 fi nancual statemefits on the .

~ basis-of AIFRS:

. ,reconcmanons by’ reportmg segment in the mvestor report for the 200:) fi nanC|aI year )

As foreshadowed whenwe announced Gur-June 2005 results the net |mpact on the - -

reported profits was immaterial. The most significant changes were::
. Reclass:ﬁcatlon of the ‘Group s reset preference shares as debt rather than equity

* Only recording a write-down in goodwill when the goodwill is impaired. There is
no longer any regular amortisation; '

* Recognising the movement in the financial position of the defined benefit
superannuation plan rather than cash contributions; and

+ Capitalising and amortising software development — previously the requirements
meant the Group expensed all costs as incurred.

Within the segment reporting we have made a further change. Following feedback
from investors on how to treat the results of our captive, we decided that it would be
best to allocate the profits and losses earned by the captive back to the other
businesses based on the profits earned by the captive from those businesses. This
has been effected by adjusting the reinsurance expense in each business by the
relevant share of the captive’s results. These adjustments are also set out in the
appendix to the investor report. As this treatment differs from the usual consolidation
treatment set out in the statutory financial statements there are now minor differences
between the two reports.

' K - We have restated the financial statements for 2005 on tne sarre basis. To supplement -
“"“the--'réconciliations -provided. . in the™" statutory “financial ‘statements, ~there’ are'“."."’

18
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Australian Personal Lines (li)
IAG

insurance
1

) Half-year Half-year Half-year
Australian Personal Lines ended ended

De 04 J

Gross wntten premium 2,0 ‘
Gross earned premium 1,986
Reinsurance expense (83)

Net premium revenue 1,903
Net claims expense (1,268)
Commission expense (114)
Underwriting expense (331)
Underwriting profit 190
Investment income on technical reserves 158

Insurance profit 348

Insurance ratios

Loss ratio

Expense ratio
Commission ratio -
Administration ratio _

Combined ratio

Insurance margin (before tax)

PRV R All amounts for THOS & subsequent periods restated under AIFRS
nERA - 5G| saic \cov BNl EZER WA ¢ o iusce R GopLnted ABNBON0TRS 19
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S GWP was down 2% from 2H05-and 3.3%:

Te The indirect personal Imes boo
#commercial book; and - .
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. Fumning-to the. segments Australian Personal Lines. (APL) delivered.a margin of 13.1% for the half which is. _
" "up 0:4%on the 2HO5 but well-down ofthé 1H05 margin-of 18:3%. This reflects &' very strong performance
" from short-tail personal lines which'was ‘offset by a*historically low margin-from CTP.~

relative to; 1H0S.: The-overall reduction in; personarhnes GWP e

* Our CTP book reduced b/ $22m.

The reinsurance expense fluctuated in hne W|th the lelSlon s share of recovenes delwered by our captive,
IAG Re. The lower expense in 1HO5 and 1HOB;, relative to 2HOS, reflects the recovery of profits eamed by
the captive in those periods. The recoveries relate to cumulative attritional losses from weather events that
triggered claims under our aggregate stop loss programme.

+ The net claims expense for 1H06 includes an $8m favourable adjustment arising from the increase in
discount rates used for the half-year, in contrast to 1HO5 which included a negative adjustment of $28m:.

*» The investment retum on technical reserves reduced in line with the increase in bond yields during the
period.

» The administration expense ratio improved despite the fact that it includes an adjustment for prior period
Fire Services Levy (FSL) of $14m which was notified by the NSW and Victorian Governments.

» It also includes incremental advertising costs of $10m more than 1H05.

" The realisation of other expense efﬂc:enaes enabled the total increase in administration expenses to be

contained at $4m over the 2H05.

» $31m of expense efficiencies were targeted for nmplementatlon during the FY06. By 31 December 2005,
$18m had been implemented and the business is on track to deliver the balance by 30 June 2006.

« Claims frequency was slightly better for both motor and home than it was for 1H05.

During the period wages growth, parts prices and building costs have all acted to increase claims costs. At
the same time we have introduced our SCV system enhancements, new procurement models for home
insurance, jewellery, carpet, computers, white and brown goods and building damage including glass.

This has led to an improvement in our average claims costs for contents and home building claims etc.

We have aiso established our new motor claims model for NSW and, after some interesting challenges, it is
performing in line with the other states where it has been operating successfully for up to 3 years.

Recent customer feedback has been very positive as we continue to roll out further refinements to improve
the consistency of the customer experience.

« In summary, the lower result from CTP has been offset by strong margins from our core short tail personal
lines business.
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CTP affordability and AWE inflation (’,ﬁ
IAG

{nsurance

Australia
20% 1 Group
15% 1
10%

5% A
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Annual increase in NSW AWE

[—o— Qtrly increase annualised —s— Annual increase to quarteﬂ

* Measured using the ‘Sydney best metrc’ rate over five years

— Premium up by 1.6%

~ NSW AWE up by 28.4% .

— Annual CTP premium down to 35. 3% of a week’ s AWE from 41 8%
+ AWE acceleratron ralsmg concemn about future claims payment inflation

. All amounts for 1HOS & subsequent periods restated under AIFRS .
Nl}i\.@\ S$G1O ;_GIE S R w ""l ~ Insurance Austrafe Group Limitsd ABN 60 090 739 823 _ 20
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The chart at the top of this slide shows the most significant development for thrs ciass of -
business during the period. The Average Weekly Eamings index (AWE) as published by the
ABS has been a reliable forward indicator of future claims costs in this book of business for -
many years. in the year to September 2005, the latest available information, AWE in NSW
increased by 8.2%. This compares with an historic trend of around 4% pa.

+ The blue line takes the increase for each quarter and annualises it (i.e. multiplies the increase
for the quarter by four); and

* The pink line is a rolling twelve-month increase in the index.

The impact of this AWE trend, particularly the last 2 data points, has led to an increase in our
reserves of $68m which reduced the insurance margin for APL in the period by 3.6%.

While there is some volatility in the data and the data may revert to the levels experienced for
the past two to three years, the Group decided that it would be prudent to assume that the
increased level of AWE may continue for some time.

There has been no notable change in average claims costs to date and settlements under the
CARs process remain within our allowances. This change is focused on ensuring that there is
an adequate reserve set aside to meet future claim settlement costs.

As mentioned in our reports on prior periods, the claims frequency in the NSW CTP scheme
reduced over a number of years and the savings from the reducing frequency had out-weighed
the inflation encountered in average claim payments.

Claims frequency has now effectively reached a plateau wrth any savmgs being out-weighed by
inflationary pressures.

At this stage, no major increase in the benchmark premium is antlcrpated but the data will need
to be closely monitored.

Note:

Long Term Care has a new name, Life Time Care (LTC). .

LTC will take 11-13% of revenue of the scheme. This equates to a 1% reduction in revenue for
1AG Group. We also expect material capital releases to come from this change.

e ;,’j‘;Based on'the fatest avallable stattstrcs our.share of NSW premium has dropped 1.5% t6 37 9% .
-~ over the year to 31 December 2005. During the same period our share of NSW CTP as”

~measured in terms of motor registrations dropped byonly0.5%. . ...
: "_"In other words, dunng the past.12 months the quahty of our mix of- busmess has continued to
- improve due to the dlsproportronate reduction’in’ our share of higher’ risk business. . L
‘CTP rates in NSW-have riot increased since. Ju,y of 2003. The affordablhty of CTP in NSW has- o
.improved to a point where the'annual CTP premium is down to 35%.of AWE. T
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Australian Commercial Lines L’ﬁ
IAG

tasurarce

Half-year Half-year Half-year Lustralia
Australian Commercial Lines ended ended

Group
] Dec 04 Jun 05 i

MEE ‘ SRR
Gross written premium 827
Gross eamed premium 831

Reinsurance expense {95)
Net premium revenue 736
Net claims expense : (524)
Commission expense - (90)
Underwriting expense S (147)
Underwriting profit (25)
Investment income on technical reserves 93
Insurance profit 68
Profit from fee based business 11
Total commerciat line result 79

tnsurance ratios
Loss ratio
Expense ratio
Commission ratio
Administration ratio
Combined ratio o
tnsurance margin (before tax}

All amounts for 1HD3 & subsequent periods restated under AIFRS
Insurance Austratiz Group Limited ABN 60 080736923 21
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- In spite-of the.challenging.premium. environment Australian Commercial Lines delivered an insurance profit . -

~of-$138mand an ithra’nc;eﬁm‘a‘ggin‘QLf 18:6%: The profitis in line withthe 2H05-and well:ahead.ofthe: 1THOS .~ = A0 Ll e

- result of 9:2%:. The-1H06 GWP 'of $761m:is 8:0%.lower than the 2H05 and 12.2% lower than AHOS. .. .. .. .. ... .. ... .. .

The softening cycle and competitive. pressure co od which accentuated
&d foi RN and productdiversi o

nand g idiversi :our renewal rates above- -

"“the neéd o

This GWP trend is in line with our ongoing strategy to balance market positioning-and maintain underwriting ~ -

= discipline.. The key tactic-of maintaininghighi-levels-of-customer rétentiorhas enabled Us'to sustain "=~ =" s oo
- profitability during the half-year. I support of. this approach, incentives are based on retention and:-; -

profitability rather than growth and underwriting authorities have been restricted to ensure kéy fiskSor

pricing decisions are reviewed béfore cover isissued. | : R i PRI -

As { said earfier, retention remained over 80% aided by the-execition of initiatives to manage refationships,

deliver product diversity and improve processes. ’ . s T .

As you would expect the market has not been uniform with rates softening in the different classes for

different reasons. - g . .

+ Premium rates in liability reduced by more than any other class but profitability is still acceptable based on

our projections.

+ Most of our volume was lost due to the market pricing in property and construction classes being below

our acceplable levels. .

« We also saw notable increases in market capacity for professional indemnity which was instrumental in

softening rates for this class. .

* In contrast, our workers compensétion book in WA benefited from the strong economy in that state.

If 2you exclude FSL from total expenses, our underwriting and administration costs were $230m in 1HO6 vs

$237m in 1HO5. This one off impact of prior period FSL added $22m or 3% to the expense ratio for the
egwodfuNew measures have now been put in place to reduce the potential impact of this type of notification

in the future.

When we look at expense rﬁanagement opportunities there is no doubt that the commercial business we

purchased from Aviva in 2003 had significantly underinvested in technology and automation. As a result,

hhe glqsiness presents a number of opportunities to increase automation and reduce duplication and manual
andiing.

The single biggest initiative in the next 12 months will be the rollout of national operating procedures for all

maj?r procegses. We expect to see further improvements in the cost base as the various initiatives are

implemented. :

The most notable component of the claims expense was further releases from liability claims reserves as

the benefits of tort reform continue to emerge. There were no large losses from weather events in the period

but the benefits of this were muted by an increase in individual large losses.

During 1H06. overall asbestos claims experience improved at a rate better than eg)ected in the Group's

reserving assumptions. Given the potential volatitity in asbestos experience, the Group’s provisions have

not been adjusted and the level of provision has been maintained.

The survival ratio at 31 December 2005 is 42 times the average of the past three years claims paid.

21




International businesses

Half-year  Half-year  Halif-year,

International operations ended ended ended
Dec 04 Jun 05, Dec 0
ross ;\;Fiuen;reium
Gross eamed premium
Reinsurance expense (49)
Net premium revenue ] 445
Net claims expense 271)
Commission expense ‘ (49)
Underwriting expense (70}
Underwriting profit 55
Investment income on technical reserves 12
Insurance profit 67
China Automobite Association (@)

Total international resutt

Insurance ratios

Loss ratio

Expense ratio
Commission ratio
Administration ratio

Combined ratio

Insurance margin (before tax)

U N@MA  SGJO % cou B @ Nd Insurance Australla Group Limited ABN 60 000739 623 .22
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All amounts for 1H05 & subsequent periods restated under AIFRS

consolidated results will also include Safety insurance. This i a'business in which we
have been a minority shareholder since 1998: The business currently writes around
$100m of GWP per annum with a COR which is consistently well under 100%.

The minority position in our Malaysian mvestment AMMB insurance will be equity
accounted going forward. :

At this stage the'results’ of the Internatlonal segment mclude IAG NZ and IAG Thatland S
“which is tradlng as NzI.- B =2 .

IAG Thalland wrote GWR.of $16m in 1H06 with- a COR of 77 7% whrch rs weII ahead of
" the busmess case ‘that supported tHis” “acquisition; « ... :

SubJect to garnlng control of Safety lnsurancemthrough the current tender the 2H06
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A record performance from IAG NZ )
ING
C . . MHalf-year Hali-year Half-year Austialin
New Zealand Operations B ended . ended Growe
: L i Jun 05 -
Gross written premium
Gross earmned premium
Reinsurance expense (49)
Net premium revenue 445 462
Net claims expense (271) (298)
Commission expense (49) (44)
Underwriting expense (70) ;
Underwriting profit 55
Investment income on technical reserves
Insurance profit
Insurance ratios
Loss ratio
Expense ratio
Commission ratio
Administration ratio
Combined ratio
Insurance margin {before tax)
- . Al amouns‘fbHHDS & subsequent periods restated under AIFRS
- ‘NRMA 'sGjo. gl +\cou A e N4 ~_ InsuranceAusiralla Group Limited ABN 60090739923 23
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‘er the pnor penods is well ahead of the busmess case that supported the two--
“acquisitions: that make up this busmess ie State and NZI.. LT R

~These results were achleved desplte the operatmg envnronment Wthh produce ]
" challenging landscape for-business growth; strong.competition. amongst consohdated
~players and-i mcreasmg capital capacity from foreign. playérs. . . A

The business performed well across the board- with the direct channel, corporate
- partners and the broker channel all well positioned in the trade off between growth and
profitability.

During the 1H06 IAG NZ managed to grow GWP in its direct personal lines and
corporate partners channel which offset the reduction in the broker channel
experienced in the soft cycle.

The loss ratio of 58.2% improved by 2.7% relative to 1H05 largely reflecting better
claims experience and lmproved claims processes which were implemented during the
period.

The increase in the administration ratio from 1HO5 is due to a number of factors which
include:

- the acquisition of three distribution businesses in 1H04 where we were the existing
underwriter. This had the effect of moving expenses between external commission and
administration expenses; and

- NEP has remained flat while the operating expense has had to absorb inflation and
the cost of the business’s further investment in core capability.

The NZ business is on track to complete the roliout of the Australian Personal Lines
technology platform for policy administration and claims in the 1HQ7. Most of the
remaining costs for the rollout will be incurred in the 2H06 and most of these costs will
be capitalised and amortised in line with current IFRS requirements.

The NZ business also undertook a significant repricing of the home building insurance
book which generated improved profitability in what has been an unprofitable product
over an extended period.




Reinsurance ' L’}
1IAG

Insurance
Australia

« Catastrophe event limit cover purchased was retained at $3.5bn 2
» Maximum event retention increased to $200m from $100m

— Cost of cover in the market too expensive relative to the
capital the Group considers necessary to back it

— Moves the exposure to a little over 3% of NEP for one event
— Cover for a second event in place with a $175m deductible
* Reinsurer counterparty credit profile has improved

— 75% of catastrophe programme provided by ‘AAA’/AA’ rated
reinsurers (previously 70%)

— Some of the programme continues to be ‘collateralised’
providing further comfort

Reinsurance recoveries, including IBNR/IBNER, are $645m

All amounts for 1H05 & subsequent periods restaied under AIFRS

it . - - - >
- nEMA sGi0  sGic &u P N4 ‘,..-...lnswamaAuﬁraﬁaG‘roup’EEﬂRed ABN 60020739923 _ 24
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~ The catastrophe event limit cover purchased was retained at $3.5bn. Although
--@xposure across-Australia and New: Zealand grew.hy 8%, fhcs growth was largely in.

. areas whach did-not add to the Group’s * peak" risks. ... . e m oIl
* Based o the APRA minimum purchase requnrement of:a-1 in 250 years return penod I

‘the Group’s minimum required cover for regulatory purposes is $2bn. _
The $3.5bn-of cover on the same APRA basis is equivalent to a feturn period of 1in
430 years.

From 1 January 2006, the retained catastrophe loss for a first event was increased from
$100m to $200m, dropping to $175m for a second event.

The $200m limit moves the income statement volatility from under 2% of net earned
premium to approximately 3.6% of NEP.

The decision to increase the retained single event loss was made after careful
consideration of the cost of cover available in the reinsurance market.

The best price offered was well above our view of a fair price for the risk.
In the end it proved to be capital efficient to retain the risk against the Group’s capital.

The counter-party credit profile of the catastrophe programme has improved: The
expiring programme obtained cover for 70% of the limit from parties rated S&P 'AA’ or
above the 2006 programme now stands at 75% ‘AA’ or above.

Furthermore, as in 2005, some of the limit was purchased on a ‘coliateralised’ basis,
where reinsurers have deposited funds equivalent to their participation in a trust fund.
This is superior protection relative to that generally available in the reinsurance market.
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Capital strength — surplus capital (’/)j

Coverage of reguiatory capital requirements JAG Group IAG

Insurance

Australia
Group

Paid-up ordinary shares ~

Hybrid equity

Reserves

Retained earnings

Excess technical provisions {net of tax)

Less: deductions " {1,503)
2,572

Tier 2 capital o

Subordinated debt . . 607

Capital base 3,179

Minimum capital requirements (MCR): .
Australian general insurance businesses 1,537

Intemational insurance businesses MCR @ . 184
1,721
MCR multiple 1.85x

1. tnchudes goodw ill, nel deferred fax sssols mdcdts“md soﬂ ware. -
2 Tha MCR and capital bass for the international insirence busin  ess is calculatad on 8 sim itar basis to the Australian regulatory
requirements and includes the caplive relnsurance bushess an d the sperations it New 2ealand and Tralland.

Alt amounts for 1HOS & subsequent periods restated under AIFRS
Insurance Austraiia Group Limited ABN 60 080739623, 25
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preference shares’ which are riow classified as an- mterést—bearmg Ilabuhty in'the "
Australian IFRS- balance sheet contlnue to be treated as Tler 1 capltal for regulatory
purposes.’ ‘

The other noticeable AIFRS adjustments are in relation to goodwilt and capltahsed
software which are recognised as a benefit in the retained earnings. However, this
benefit was offset by an increase in the deductions made in determmmg the capital
base.

The comparatives for December 2004 and June 2005 have not been reinstated to an
AIFRS basis. . .

The Group regulatory capital base, as def ned by APRA, has increased from $3,492m
to $3,652m during 1H06 due to:

» Strong earnings after tax for the period (net of final dividend paid in October 2005);

» Reduction in net future income tax benefits, primarily due to unrealised gains from
strong investment performance; .

« Anincrease in the Australian dollar value of the US dollar denominated term
subordinated debt (recognised as fower Tier 2 capital); and

« A reduction in excess technical provisions. This was mainly due to an increase in the
premium liability relative to the unearned premium balance caused by the increased
inflation assumptions in the NSW CTP portfolio.

The regulatory capital required has increased from $1746m to $1793m as a result of
the increase in the maximum event retention to $200m from $100m offset in part by a
lower investment risk charge due to the lower holdings of equities.

The probability of adequacy for all insurance liabilities, i.e. including the liability on
unexpired premium, increased from 90.2% at 30 June 2005 to 90.5% at 31 December

2005.
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IAG

Insurance
Australis
Grous

Outlook

ey _ s Insurance Austrafia Group Limited
NEMA sGio saic \cou . N3 N4 ABN 50 090 739 923
R —— : . o B - . - . .

. -.I'd-now like to-hand back to Michael ‘Hbawker,tgigjgpg's‘é ouroutlook
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' - Dunng 2H06 the Group expects to: - .

Outlook (l}
IAG

insurance

* During 2HO08, the Group expects sl
— To deliver an insurance margin in the range of 14 — 16% for FY06

— Maintain A & NZ market shares, provided pncrng is at sustainable
levels

— Progress completing the international investments already
announced and pursue other opportunities in accordance with its
stated strategy

— Return $200m of surplus capital to shareholders by 30 June 2006
"+ Beyond FY08, the Group expects to

— Experience premium growth in Australia and New Zealand that is
more in line with long-term experience of market growth in
insurance

— Deliver returns on equity from the A & NZ business that exceed the
insurance market average by 2 - 3%

— Generate value for shareholders from its Asian platform for growth
All amounts for tHOS & subsaquent periods restated under AIFRS

NEMA  SGjO SEIC (esu. “lsw,h]‘[;}.ht, @ N4 lnsuranoeAt.&rg!qGroupLunrted ABN 60000730923 27
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e Sustam msurance margrns such that the fuII.yearumargm WI|| be between 14% and :

lnvestugate other opportunmes in accordance with lts stated strategy, and
* Return $200m of surplus capatal to shareholders.

The Group’s outlook for premium growth is dependant on the trmlng of the completion
of the Asian investments outlined above as these have a material bearing on its growth
prospects. At a macro level, the Group expects:

* The Australian and New Zealand insurance markets will continue the historic
trends of growing at 1.5 — 2.0 times GDP measured over cycles. The point at
which premium rates rise will depend on a number of external factors in the local
economy and international insurance markets;

* The Group's current position within the Australian and New Zealand markets is
such that it should be able to sustain returns of approximately 2 ~ 3% above the
industry average. How this translates into insurance margins depends on an
individual insurer’s mix of business from time to time and that insurers’ views on
capital required to back its business;

» The growth rates in premium in the Group’s Asian interests will exceed those of
the Australian and New Zealand markets based on both the higher economic
growth rates in the region and the increasing penetration of general insurance in
these markets as the populations accumulate more wealth; and

We expect our returns on equity from the Australian and New Zealand business will
exceed the insurance market averages by 2 —- 3%.

The Group believes its Asian interests will provide a solid base for growth in earnings
and value for shareholders.

We'd now like to take some questions.
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Share price performance since listing (’2
IAG

Insurance
Australia
1AG Relative Share Price Parformance Group
0 T
s @ Y 5 SIS s & e
S R s
SAPIASK200 Index  ~=|AG Stiere §  =——MSCI WORLD EX AUS Index  “—— ASX/SP 200
INDEX
P . - . ’ Co. All amounts for 1H05 & subsequent periods restated under AIFRS
Ngma scio ggic \cGu._ &Nt N1 Insurance Australia Group Limited ABN 60 080739.920 26
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N , Appendix 3B
New issue announcement

Rule 2.7,3.10.3, 3.104, 3.10.5

Appendix 3B

New issue announcement,
application for quotation of additional securities
~ and agreement

Information or documents not available now must be given to ASX as soon as available. !nfonﬁation and
documents given to ASX become ASX's property and may be made public.

Introduced 1/7/96. Origin: Appendix 5. Amended 1/7/98, 1/9/99, 1/7/2000, 30/9/2001, 11/3/2002, 1/1/2003.

Name of entity
SURANCE AUSTRALIA GROUP LIMITED

ABN
60 090 739 923

We (the entity) give ASX the following information.

e i i L rEge e b e

Part 1 - All issues : e T .

- 7 You must complete the relevant sections (attack sheets if there is not enough'space).

Clas:sof “*securities issued or to be Fully paid ordinary shares =1
issued . N SR e

2 Number of *securities issued or to | 80,064 .~
be issued (if known) or maximum
" number which may be issued

3" Principal terms of the *securities (eg, | On the same terms as existing Ordinary Shares
if options, exercise price and expiry | listed on ASX.
date; if partly paid *securities, the
amount outstanding and due dates
for payment; if “*convertible
securities, the conversion price and
dates for conversion)

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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Appendix 3B
New issue announcement

4 Do the *securities rank equally in all | Yes
respects from the date of allotment
with an existing *class of quoted
*securities?

If the additional securities do not

rank equally, please state:

¢ the date from which they do

o the extent to which they
participate for the next dividend,
(in the «case of a trust,
distribution) or interest payment

s the extent to which they do not
rank equally, other than in
relation to the mnext dividend,
distribution or interest payment

5 Issue price or consideration An exercise price of $1 has been paid by the
holders upon the exercise of the Performance
Share Rights irrespective of the number rights
exercised by the holders, ie $4 in total.

.6 Purposeoftheissue . | Shares were issued on exercise of employee

"~ (If issued as consideration for the | Performance Share Rights = -

acquisition of assets; clearly identify -
those assets) = o

7 Dates of entering *securities into | 28 February 2006
uncertificated holdings or despatch '

of certificates
Number *Class
8 - Number and “class of all | ,595,015472/ Ordinary
' *securities quoted on ASX _
(including the securities in clause 2 3,500,000 v Reset Preference
if applicable) Shares (IAGPA)
2,000,000 ve Reset Preference
Shares (IAGPB)

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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Appendix 3B
New issue announcement

10

Number *Class
Number and “class of all | 152,500, Options over unissued
*securities not quoted on ASX shares

(including the securities in clause 2
if applicable)

Dividend policy (in the case of a
trust, distribution policy) on the
increased capital (interests)

The Ordinary Shares will, from the date of
allotment, carry the right to participate in
dividends

Part 2 - Bonus issue or pro rata issue

11

13

4

15

16
17

18

19,

" " renounceable?

~ *Record- . date - _-to
- entitlements

Is  security approval

required?

ho ldgr

Is the issue renounceable or non-

cegm Tpee e da s
PRPSRE T R i .

Ratio in which the - *securities -will |-

be .offer_g'(_i_

*Class -of *securities—to-which the |

offer relates

determine

Will holdings on different registers
(or subregisters) be aggregated for
calculating entitlements?

Policy for deciding entitlements in
relation to fractions

Names of countries in which the
entity has *security holders who
will not be sent new issue
documents

Note: Security holders must be told how their
entitlements are to be dealt with.

Cross reference: rule 7.7.

Closing date for receipt of

acceptances or renunciations

PR

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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Appendix 3B
New issue announcement

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

Names of any underwriters

Amount of any underwriting fee or
commission

Names of any brokers to the issue

Fee or commission payable to the
broker to the issue

Amount of any handling fee payable
to brokers who lodge acceptances
or renunciations on behalf of
*security holders

If the issue is contingent on
*security holders’ approval, the date
of the meeting

Date entitlement and acceptance |
form and prospectus or Product |
" Disclosure Statement will be sent to

persons entitled

If the entity has iséued options;v'and

the terms entitle option holders to
" “participate on exercise, the date on

which notices will be sent to option
holders

Date rights trading will begin (if
applicable)

Date rights trading will end (if
applicable)

How do *security holders sell their
entittements in full through a
broker?

How do *security holders sell part
of their entitlements through a
broker and accept for the balance?

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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Appendix 3B
New issue announcement

32 Howdo *security holders dispose of
their entitlements (except by sale
through a broker)?

33 *Despatch date

Part 3 - Quotation of securities

You need only complete this section if you are applying for quotation of securities

34  Type of securities
(tick one)

(a) ‘/ Securities described in Part 1

(b) [:I All other securities

o Example: restricted securities at the end of the escrowed period, partly paid securities that become fully paid, employee
7.7 7 rincentive share'securities when restriction ends, securities issued on expiry or ponversi'on of convertible securities

Entities that have ticked box 34(a) 1. . ..
‘ Additional securities forming a new class of securities

‘Tick to indicate you are providing the infbrr;atiojn or

documents : . e

35 l:] If the +SECUﬁt{eS are *CQUivt-y”sle-cilritiés, the names of the 20 largest holders of the

’ additional *securities, and the number and percentage of additional *securities held by
those holders

36 . D If the *securitiés are *equity securities, a distribution schedule of the additional
*securities setting out the number of holders in the categories
1-1,000
1,001 - 5,000
5,001 - 10,000
10,001 - 100,000
100,001 and over

37 [:| A copy of any trust deed for the additional *securities

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

1/1/2003 Appendix 3B Page 5




Appendix 3B
New issue announcement

Entities that have ticked box 34(b)

38 Number of securities for which
*quotation is sought

39 Class of “securities for which
quotation is sought

40 Do the *securities rank equally in all
respects from the date of allotment
with an existing *class of quoted
*securities?

If the additional securities do not
rank equally, please state:
e the date from which they do
o the extent to which they
participate for the next dividend,
(in the case of a trust,
-~ distribution} or interest payment
¢ the extent to-which they do not | . .
rank: equally, other  -than in
relation to the -next dividend, |-
.. distribution or interest payment

- 4] Reason for request. for quotati‘orn- L e
now ;. R R -

Example: In the case of restricted securities,-end of
restriction period e D

(if issued upon ‘conversion of
another security, clearly identify that
other security)

Number *Class

42 Number and *class of all *securities
quoted on ASX (including the
securities in clause 38)

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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Appendix 3b
New issue announcement

Quotation agreement

1 *Quotation of our additional *securities is in ASX’s absolute discretion. ASX may
quote the *securities on any conditions it decides.

2 We warrant the foliowing to ASX.

. The issue of the *securities to be quoted complies with the law and is not
for an illegal purpose.

. There is no reason why those *securities should not be granted *quotation.

. An offer of the “securities for sale within 12 months after their issue will
not require disclosure under section 707(3) or section 1012C(6) of the
Corporations Act.

Note: An entity may need to obtain appropriate warranties from subscribers for the securities in order to. be able to give
this warranty )

. Section 724 or section 1016E of the Corporations Act does not apply to any
L e .. . applications received by us in relation to any *securities to. be' quoted and
o “that no-one has any right to return-any :*securities 0. be. quoted under
S - sectioris 737;-738 or 1016F of the Corporamons Act at the time that we
n ) . request that the *securities be quoted ' ;
e e W We -warrant that if. conﬁrmatlon is required -under section 1017F of the,
Corporatlons Act_in relation ‘to thé *securities to be quoted, it has been

B R provided at the time that we request that the *securities be quoted.
o If we are a trust, we warrant that no person has the right to return the
*securities to be quoted under section 1019B of the Corporations Act at the

time that we request that the *securities be quoted.

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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“Appendix 3B

New issue announcement

3 ‘We will indemnify ASX to the fullest extent permitted by law in respect of any
claim, action or expense arising from or connected with any breach of the
warranties in this agreement.

4 We give ASX the information and documents required by this form. If any
information or document not available now, will give it to ASX before *quotation
of the *securities begins. We acknowledge that ASX is relying on the information
and documents. We warrant that they are (will be) true and complete.

o 23 February 2006
Sign here: OO RPN Date: ..o
o (Group Company Secretary) -

Anne O’Driscoll
Print NAINIE. oot ieevieee st e reeessar e s seeneaenans

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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JAG Finance (New Zealand) Limited is a public company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in
Australia. It has reset exchangeable securities publicly traded on the Australia Stock Exchange. Its registered

office and principal place of business is Level 26, 388 George Street, Sydney, NSW 2000.

This half year financial report does not include all of the notes normally included in an annual financial report.
Accordingly, this report is to be read in conjunction with the annual report for the year ended 30 June 2005 and any
public announcements made by IAG Finance (New Zealand) Limited during the half year reporting financial period

in accordance with the continuous disclosure requirements of the Corporations Act 2001.
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JAG FINANCE (NEW ZEALAND) LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors present their report together with the financial report of IAG Finance (New Zealand) Limited (“the
Company™) for the half year ended 31 December 2005 and the review report thereon.

Directors

The Company’s Directors in office at any time during or since the end of the half year are as follows. Directors were
in office for the entire financial period unless otherwise stated.

Mr JA Strong (Director since 9 November 2004), Mr RA Ross (Director since 9 November 2004), Mr MJ Hawker
(Director since 9 November 2004), Mr G Venardos (Director since 6 October 2004) and Mr M Woods (Alternate
Director for Mr MJ Hawker and Mr G Venardos from 9 November 2004).

Principal activity

The principal activity of the Company is to perform all treasury functions of the IAG Group’s New Zealand
operations. This function is performed through a New Zealand branch of the Company.

Result and review of operations

The Company was incorporated on 6 October 2004. All prior period comparatfve information for the income
statement and cash flow statement is for the financial period from 6 October 2004 to 31 March 2005.

. The net result of the Company for the half year ended 31 December 2005, after ép‘plicabié income tax, was a profit
of $1,591,000 (2004 -'$6_5,7.’000)‘ . B o o

" . The following. q;iéirterlir‘interest‘ payment on the RES was made during the half year: ~~

__ Paymentdate ~ " ... Amountpér RES . Interestrate ST
15 September 2005 LT §10130. . 4.8125%.per anmum

~15 December 2005 o $1.1914. o 4.7787% per annum
Lead auditor’s independence declaration under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001

The lead auditor’s independence declaration is set out on page 3 and forms part of the directors’ report for the half
year ended 31 December 2005.
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IAG FINANCE (NEW ZEALAND) LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Events subsequent to reporting date

There has not been any matter or circumstance which has arisen since 31 December 2005 that has significantly
affected, or may significantly affect: ‘

(a) the Company’s operations in future years; or
(b) the results of those operations in future financial years; or
(c) the Company’s state of affairs in future financial years.

Rounding of amounts

Unless otherwise stated, amounts in the financial report and Directors’ report have been rounded to the nearest
thousand dollars. The Company is of a kind referred to in the class order 98/100 dated 10 July 1998 issued by the
Australian Securities & Investments Commission. All rounding has been conducted in accordance with that class
order. '

Signed at Sydney this 21st day of February 2006 in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

........................ reveeveeeeen Director . ...,




hcaloc

LEAD AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION UNDER SECTION 307C OF THE
CORPORATIONS ACT 2001

To: the directors of IAG Finance (New Zealand) Limited

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the review for the half year ended 31 December
2005 there haye been:

(a) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in
relation to the review; and ‘

(b) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the review.

Kb

KPMG
) N
crclie
DiAndries B Terblanché B
Partner. . . —

Sydney ‘ Gl
21st February 2006 : o e
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IAG FINANCE (NEW ZEALAND) LIMITED

INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

Interim

financial

Half year period from 6

ended October 2004

31 December to 31 March

2005 2005

$000 3000

Interest revenue

- related bodies corporate 21,407 8,908

- other corporations 93 - 309

Total interest revenue 21,500 9,217

Interest expense

- related bodies corporate 4,671) (1,838)
- reset exchangeable securities (13,197) (5,643)
Total interest expense (17,868) (7,481)

Net interest income 3,632 1,736

Treasury fee income 39 7
Amortisation of capitalised transaction costs (1,253) (625)
Unrealised exchange gain / (loss) o 3 243 (52)

Realised exchange gain _— 39 -
Other administration expenses (301) (85)

Profit before income tax 2.399 - 981
Income tax expense (808) (324)

Profit for the financial period 1,591 657

The above income statement is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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IAG FINANCE (NEW ZEALAND) LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2005

31 December 30 June
Note 2005 2005
$000 $000
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,016 2,397
Amounts receivable from related bodies corporate 9 2
Current tax assets - 198
Plant and equipment 8 8
Loans to related bodies corporate 559,487 551,837
Total assets 561,520 554,442
Liabilities
Payables , 87 84
Interest payable on reset exchangeable securities 1,393 1,330
Amounts payable to related bodies corporate 68 51
Current tax liability - 353 -
Employee benefits provision- 8 g
Loans from related bodies corporate . 16,836 12,858
Reset exchangeable securities 4 . 539,906 ° 538,833 .
Total liabilities 558,651 553,164
Net assets s 2,869 1,278
-Equity
Share capital - -* -¥
Retained eamings 2,869 1,278
Total equity 2,869 1,278

* The issued share capital of the Company was $1 represented by 1 fully paid ordinary share.

The above balance sheet is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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IAG FINANCE (NEW ZEALAND) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

Interim

financial

Half year period from 6

ended  October 2004

31 December to 31 March

2005 2005

$000 $000

Total equity at the beginning of the financial period 1,278 -
Profit for the financial period 1,591 657
Total equity at the end of the financial period 2,869 657

All movement in equity for the financial period relate to retained earnings.

equity balances during the financial period.

There were no movements in any other

The above statement of changes in equity is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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IAG FINANCE (NEW ZEALAND) LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

Interim
financial
Half year  period from 6
ended  October 2004
31 December to 31 March
2005 2005
$000 3000
Cash flows from operating activities
Interest received 21,207 7,255
Interest paid (17,607) (4,943)
Income tax paid Q277 -
Other operating receipts 32 -
Other operating payments (278) )
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,077 2,305
Cash flows from investing activities - -
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of reset exchangeable securities "= 550,000
Loan to.a.related body corporate - " (550,000)
Loan from a related body corporate - 12,462
Repayment of loan to a related body corporate (3,578) -
Payment of borrowing costs B - (12,572)
__Net cash used in financing activities (3’578), _ _{1 10)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash held (501) 2,195
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the ‘
financial period 2,397 -
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash held in foreign '
currencies ‘ 120 3
{Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial
period 2,016 2,198

The above cash flows statement is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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JAG FINANCE (NEW ZEALAND) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005
1. Summary of significant accounting policies

This general purpose financial report of IAG Finance (New Zealand) Limited (“Company”) for the half year
reporting financial period ended 31 December 2005 has been prepared in accordance with Accounting Standard
AASB 134 Interim Financial Reporting, the Corporations Act 2001 and the Australian Stock Exchange Listing
Rules: This general purpose financial report of the Company was authorised by the Board of Directors for issue on
21st February 2006.

This half year financial report does not include all of the notes normally included in an annual financial report.
Accordingly, this report is to be read in conjunction with the annual report for the financial period ended 30 June
2005 and any public announcements made by IAG Finance (New Zealand) Limited during the half year reporting
financial period in accordance with the continuous disclosure requirements of the Corporations Act 2001.

The half year financial report would normally include only those significant accounting policies that are different to
those applied in the preceding annual financial report. To assist readers in understanding the significant accounting
policies of the Company under the new Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards
(“AIFRS”), we provide below a complete set of significant accounting policies.

(a) Basis of preparation of half year financial report

For all financial periods up to and including the financial period ended 30 June 2005, the Company prepared
financial reports in accordance with Australian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“Australian GAAP”).
From 1 July 2005, the Company is required to prepare financial reports in accordance with AIFRS effective for the
half year ended 31 December 2005 and the full year-ending 30 June 2006. The principal accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out below The functional and presentation currency used
for the preparation of this financial report is Australian dollars.

The prior period comparatlve information for the income statement is for the financial period from the date of
incorporation on 6 October 2004 to 31-March 2005 The first annual financial period of the Company was from
6 October 2004 to.30 June 2005. U . T,

Compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) refer to the overall framework of standards and
pronouncements approved by the International Accounting Standards Board. IFRS forms the basis of Australian
Accounting Standards adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards Board, being AIFRS. This interim financial
report of the Company complies with IFRS.

First time adoption of AIFRS

This interim financial report is the Company’s first interim financial report to be prepared in accordance with
AIFRS. AASB 1 First-time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards has
been applied in preparing this financial report.

There was no financial impact of the transition from Austrahan GAAP to AIFRS on the Company’s financial
position, financial performance and cash flows.

Certain items have been reclassified from the prior financial period’s financial report to conform to the current
financial period’s presentation; the capitalised transaction costs on reset exchangeable securities (“RES”), previously
disclosed as an asset are now disclosed together with RES.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of this financial report have been consistently applied by the
Company to all financial periods presented in the financial report. These financial statements have been prepared on
. the basis of historical cost principles, as modified by certain exceptions noted in the financial report, with the
principal exception being the measurement of all derivatives at fair value.

Critical accounting judgements and estimates

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, various judgements and estimates are made. None of
the accounting judgements or estimates made during the financial period are considered to have had a significant
~ impact on the amounts recognised in the financial report (prior interim financial period — none).
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IAG FINANCE (NEW ZEALAND) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005
1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation of half year financial report (continued)

Australian accounting standards issued but not yet effective

As at the date of finalisation of this financial report, there are a number of new and revised accounting standards on
issue with mandatory application dates after the end of this current reporting period. Many of the standards are
permitted to be early adopted. Each of the standards that were able to be early adopted and applied for the half year
financial report have been early adopted and applied. We note the following standards that have only a disclosure
impact that will be relevant for the first time to the 2006 annual report:

s AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures applicable for the first time to the 30 June 2008 financial
report. It is anticipated this standard will be early adopted for the 2006 annual financial report together
with AASB 2005-10 which makes a number of consequential amendments to other standards arising from
the issue of AASB 7.

e AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures issued in December 2005 and the amendments made by AASB 2004-
3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards for which application of the standard is mandatory for
the 2006 annual financial.

(b) Interest income
Interest income on a loan to a related body corporate and external parties is brought to account on an accruals basis.
(c) Interest expense e

Interest expense on reset exchangeable securities and loan from a related body corporafe is brought to account on an
accruals basis. t S oot - '

(i) Income tax e _—
Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the
income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is

recognised in equity.

Current tax expense is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates for each
jurisdiction, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous financial periods. Deferred tax expense is the
change in deferred tax assets and liabilities between the reporting financial periods.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised using the balance sheet method for temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes, except in the following circumstances when no deferred tax asset or liability is recognised:

e temporary differences if they arose in a transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of
the transaction did not affect either accounting profit or taxable profit or loss;

e temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments in subsidiaries where it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

e temporary differences relating to goodwill that is not deductible for tax purposes.

The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at reporting date. Deferred tax
assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the asset can be utilised.
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JAG FINANCE (NEW ZEALAND) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Taxation (continued)

(11) Tax consolidation _

Insurance Australia Group Limited (“IAG”) (“head entity””) and its Australian resident wholly-owned subsidiaries
have formed a tax-consolidated group with effect from 1 July 2002 and are therefore taxed as a single entity from
that date. The Company is part of this tax-consolidated group effective from its date of incorporation.

Current tax expense/income and deferred tax assets and labilities arising from temporary differences of the
Company are recognised by the Company in its financial statements using the ‘separate taxpayer within group’
approach by reference to the carrying amounts in the financial statements of the Company and the tax values
applying under tax consolidation.

Any current tax liabilities (or assets) and deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses of the Company are
assumed by the head entity in the tax-consolidated group and are recognised as amounts payable/(receivable)
to/(from) the head entity in conjunction with any tax funding arrangement amounts. Any difference between these
amounts is recognised by the Company as an equity contribution or distribution.

Nature of tax funding arrangements and tax sharing arrangements

The Company has entered into a tax funding arrangement with the head entity which sets out the funding obligations
of members of the tax-consolidated group in respect of tax amounts. The tax funding arrangements require
payments to/from the head entity equal to the current tax liability/(asset) assumed by the head entity and any tax-loss
deferred tax asset assumed by the head entity, resulting in the Company recognising an intercompany
payable/(receivable) equal..in amount to the tax liability/(asset) assumed. The intercompany amount ., .
. payable/(receivable) is at call. o R o

Contributions to fund the current tax liabilities are payable as per the tax fundmo arrangement and reflect the tmnng“ )
of the head entity’s obligation to make payments for tax liabilities to the relevant tax authorities.

The ‘Company has" also-entered into. a “tax sharing agreement with the head entity. The tax sharing agreement
provides for the determination of the allocation of income tax.liabilities between the entities of the tax consolidated
.. group should“the head entity default on its tax payment obligations. No amounts have been recognised in the .

-financial statements in respect of this agreement as payment of any amounts under the tax sharing agreement 1s.. .
considered remote.

(i11) Goods and services tax

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (“GST”), except where the
amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (“ATO”). In these circumstances
the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of GST. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the
ATO is included as part of other receivables and payables in the balance sheet. Cash flows are included in the cash
flows statement on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing and ﬂnancmg activities,
which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are classified as operating cash flows.

(e) Derivatives

The Company uses a variety of derivatives for the purpose of managing its foreign currency exchange rates and
interest rate exposures. Derivatives are not held for speculative purposes. While the Company has a number of
cconomic hedges in place, no transaction has been selected for hedge accounting. The derivatives are initially
recognised on the balance sheet at fair value (generally the transaction price; the fair value of the consideration given
or received) with movements in fair value being recorded in the income statement.” Fair value is generally
determined using the current bid pnce for derivatives classified as assets and the current ask price for derivatives
classified as liabilities.

The derivatives are classified as assets and disclosed as receivables when the fair value is positive, or as liabilities
and disclosed as payables when the fair value is negative, except for cross currency swaps relating to borrowings,
which are disclosed together with the borrowings. The treatments for the various instruments are as follows:
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IAG FINANCE (NEW ZEALAND) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(e) Derivatives (continued)

Cross currency swaps - The Company enters into cross currency swaps to hedge foreign currency borrowings.
Interest receipts and payments on the swaps are charged to the income statement on a daily basis over the term for
which the swap is effective as a hedge of the underlying borrowing and are included within the interest expense on
borrowings. Revaluation gains and losses are recognised in the income statement against the revaluation losses and
gains of the underlying hedged items. ‘

Interest rate swaps — The Company enters into interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to interest rate movements
on its borrowings. The interest income and expense associated with the swap agreements are charged to the income
statement on a daily basis over the term for which the swap is effective as a hedge of the underlying borrowings.
The swaps are recognised in the balance sheet at fair value being the net amounts receivable or payable at the
reporting date, taking into account current interest rates and the current credit worthiness of the swap counterparties.

Forward foreign exchange contracts — The Company enters into forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge
foreign currency exposures recognised on its balance sheet. The forward foreign exchange contracts are recognised
in the balance sheet at fair value being the net amounts receivable or payable under the contracts and the associated
deferred gains or losses. When recognised, the net recexvables or payables are revalued using the foreign currency
exchange rate current at reporting date.

43 Foreign currency o o R

v (1) F orelgn currency transactlons
* - Foreign currency transactlons are txanslated into the functlonal currency using the exchange rates. prevalhng at the

dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and Tiabilities recognised in foreign currencies at reporting date, are
translated- to Australian-dollars at rates of exchange current-at-reporting date:- Resultmg exchange differences are

brought to-account in the income statement . . B LN

(i1) Translation of controlled forelgn operations e ‘ B

The financial position and performance of the controlled forelgn branch Wthh has a functlonal currency other than
Australian dollars are translated into the Company’s presentation currency for inclusion in the Company’s financial
report. The assets and liabilities are translated using reporting date exchange rates while equity items are translated
using historical rates, Items from the income statement are translated using weighted average rates for the reporting
financial period. Exchange differences arising from the translations are recorded directly in the income statement.

(g) Employee benefits

Liabilities for wages and salaries (including bonuses), annual leave and sick leave are recognised at the nominal
amounts unpaid at the reporting date using remuneration rates that are expected to be paid when these liabilities are
settled, including on-costs. A liability for sick leave is considered to exist only when it is probable that sick leave
taken in the future will be greater than entitlements that will accrue in the future.

(h) Loans to/from related bodies corporate

The loans to/from related bodies corporate are initially recognised at fair value less transaction costs that are'directly
attributable to the transaction. After initial recognition the loans are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method.

(i) Reset exchangeable securities

Reset exchangeable securities (“RES”) are initially measured at face value less transaction costs directly attributable
to the issue of the securities. Interest expense on the reset exchangeable securities is brought to account on an
accruals basis and payable quarterly subject to the terms of issue. Transactions costs are capitalised, disclosed
together with RES and are amortised over 5 years from the date of issue.
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IAG FINANCE (NEW ZEALAND) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

2. Ultimate parent entity

The parent and ultimate parent entity is [AG, which owns 100% of the issued share capital of the Company. 1AG is
an entity incorporated in Australia and listed on the Australian Stock Exchange.

3. Segment reporting

The Company operates as a special purpose company issuing RES in Australia. RES are listed on the Australian
Stock Exchange.

The Company also generates income from providing treasury functions to IAG’s New Zealand operations.

31 December 30 June

L 2005 2005

4. Reset exchangeable securities : $000 $000
5,500,000 reset exchangeable securities 550,000 550,000
Less: capitalised transaction costs (10,094) (11,167)
539,906 538,833

" Balance at the beginning of the financial period ‘ 538,833
Issue of reset exchangeable securities ~ 7 ' - © 550,000
- Transaction costs incuired . : ‘ < (12,604)
Amortisation-of capltahsed transaction costs R 1, 253 1,260
Foreign exchange movements. .. .. | ST o (180) S 177 ..
7 - Balance at the “end of the financial period e . 539,906 538, 833

On 11 January 2005 ,“the New Zealand branch of the Company issued 5 ,500, 000 reset exchangeable “sécurities
- (“RES”) raising a total of $550,000,000. The RES began trading on the Australian Stock Exchange on 12 January
2005.

The gross proceeds of the issue were loaned to a related body corporate, IAG (NZ) Holdings Limited on commercial
terms. This is disclosed as a loan to a related body corporate on the balance sheet and includes accrued interest.

RES holders are entitled to an interest payment, subject to the terms of issue, that is non-cumulative and based on a
floating rate. These interest payments are expected to be fully franked.

The Company’s obligations to the RES holders are secured by a portfolio of high quality, short-dated, fixed interest
securities (“Portfolio”). This Portfolio is held by a special purpose related body corporate, IAG Portfolio Limited.
The Portfolio was funded by a loan from Insurance Australia Limited, a related body corporate, to IAG Portfolio
Limited. At 31 December 2003, the market value of the Portfolio was $551,164,000.

Interest payments on RES will depend on the performance of the Portfolio. An interest payment may not be paid in
full if the total income from the Portfolio is less than the interest payment on RES. An interest payment may not be
made at all if IAG does not have sufficient profits equal to or greater than the interest payment on RES and has not
paid a dividend on any of its classes of capital.

RES redemption amounts will depend on the performance and creditworthiness of the Portfolio. IAG may, at any
rime, exercise its right to exchange some or all RES for preference shares issued by IAG.

The Company may change some of the terms of the RES or redeem or convert some or all RES on a reset date. The
first reset date is 15 March 2010 after which the reset dates are expected to be every 5 years. RES holders can
request redemption of some or all of their RES under certain circumstances. ~
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IAG FINANCE (NEW ZEALAND) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

5. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

There have been no material changes in the Company’s contingent liabilities or contingent assets since 30 June
"2005.

As reported in the annual report of the Company at 30 June 2005, contingent assets and liabilities in respect of the
issue of RES are as follows:

(a) IAG Portfolio Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of iAG, has granted to Permanent Trustee Company Limited
(“Trustee™) a mortgage over IAG Portfolio Limited’s Portfolio and a floating charge over its rights, property and
undertaking as a security to the RES holders.

(b) To safeguard the interests of RES holders, the Company has granted the Trustee of the RES, a fixed charge over
its rights, title and interest in the payments to it under the Portfolio Management Agreement and certain intra group
receivables.

(c) Insurance Australia Limited has put in place an interest rate floor with IAG Portfolio Limited in the event the
bank bill rate applicable to the calculation of the interest rate payable on the RES falls below the ‘floor’ rate of
2.80% per annum. This will enable IAG Portfolio Limited to generate sufficient income to allow the Company to
make part or full interest payments on RES.

(d) In the.event of an interest payment on RES being unfranked, IAG must pay . -an amount into IAG Portfolio
Limited to fusid a gross-up of the interest payment on RES. . "

. (e) IAG may exchange some-or all RES for preference shares 1ssued by IAG at any time. -

(f) The Company may, in relation to the RES, change therr terms redeem them for cash or convert them 1nt0
ordmary shares 1ssued by IAG on any reset date The next réset date 1§ 15 “March 201 0.” ;

(g)-The Company may, in relation to the RES, redééni them for cash or-convert them into- -ordinary- shares issued by
IAG, if a tax event, regulatory event or acquisition event, as defined in th¢ RES terms, occurs,

(h) RES holders may redeem the RES on any reset date or if a trigger event, as defined in the RES terms, occurs.

(1) IAG has an obligation to pay all costs, charges and expenses in managing the Portfoho including the trustee and
custodian.

(j) IAG and other members of the IAG Group may be entitled to any surplus in the Portfolio from excess income
from the Portfolio after the payment of aggregate interest payments on RES or from excess net assets of the Portfolio
after the payment of aggregate rederaption amounts on RES.
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IAG FINANCE (NEW ZEALAND) LIMITED

DIRECTORS' DECLARATION

In the opinion of the Directors of IAG Finance (New Zealand) Limited:

(a) the financial statements and notes, set out on pages 4 to 13, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
including: ‘

(1) giving a true and fair view of the financial position of the IAG Finance (New Zealand) Limited as at 31
December 2005 and of its performance, as represented by the results of its operations and its cash flows,
for the half year ended on that date; and

(1i) complying with Accounting Standard AASB 134 Interim Financial Reporting and the Corporations
Regulations 2001; and

(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become
due and payable.

This declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to be made to the Directors in accordance
with section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 for the half year ended 31 December 2005.

— .

Signed at Sydney this 21st day of February 2006 in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

a2

...................................... Director
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the nature and extent of our procedures, our review was not designed to-provide assurance on internal controls.
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Independent Review Report to the shareholder of IAG Finance (New Zealand) Limited
Scope
The financial report and directors’ responsibility

The financial report comprises the interim income statement, balance sheet, statement of changes in equity, cash
flows statement, accompanying notes 1 to 5 o the financial statements, and the directors’ declaration for IAG
Finance (New Zealand) Limited (“the Company”).

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
report in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001. This includes responsibility for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records and internal controls that are designed to prevent and detect fraud and error, and for the
accounting policies and accounting estimates inherent in the financial report. The directors are also responsible for
preparing the relevant reconciling information regarding adjustments required under the Australian Accounting -
Standard AASB 1 First-Time Adoption of Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards. ‘

Review approach

We conducted an independent review in order for the Company to lodge the financial report with the Australian
Securities and Investments Commission. Our review was conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing
Standards applicable to review engagements.

We performed procedures in order to state whether on the basis of the procedures described anything has come to
our attention that would indicate the financial report does not present fairly, in accordance with the Corporations
Act 2001, Australian Accounting Standard AASB 134 Interim Financial Reporting and other mandatory financial
reporting requirements in Australia, a view which is consistent with our understanding of the Company’s financial

“position, and of its performance as represented by the results of its operations and cash flows.

We formed our statement on the basis of the review procedures performed, which were limited primarily to:

® - enquiries of company pérsonnél; and

B analytical procedures applied to the ﬁnancml data

While we considered the effectiveness of management’s internal controls over financial reporting when deteﬁxiini_ng

e e are L v

-.- The procedures do not provide all the evidence that would be required in an audii, thus the level of assurance is less .

than given in an audit. We have not performed an audit and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.
A review cannot guarantee that all material misstatements have been detected.
Statement ‘

Based on our review, which is not an audit, we bave not become aware of any matter that makes us believe the half-
year financial report of IAG Finance (New Zealand) Limited is not in accordance with:

a) the Corporations Act 2001, including:

. giving a true and fair view of the Company’s financial position as at 31 December 2005 and of its
performance for the half-year ended on that date; and ’

il. complying with Australian Accounting Standard AASB 134 Interim Financial Reporting and the
Corporations Regulations 2001; and

b) other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia.

AT
KPMG

,

K anchit

DA Andries B Terblanché Sydney
Partner 21st February 2006




Insurance Australia
Group Limited

ABN 60 090 739 923
388 George Street
Sydney NSW 2000

Telephone 02 9292 9222
13 February 2006 iag.com.au

Manager, Company Announcements Office
Australian Stock Exchange Limited

Level 4, Exchange Centre

20 Bridge Street

)

SYDNEY NSW 2000
Dear Sir/Madam Insurance
Australia
INSURANCE AUSTRALIA GROUP LIMITED (‘IAG’) ANNOUNCES Group

INCREASING STAKE IN THAILAND'S SAFETY INSURANCE

IAG announces it has increased its interest in Thailand’s Safety Insurance Public
Company Limited (Safety Insurance) and is seeking to increase it further.

IAG, through its Thai investment holding company, NHCT Limited, acquired an additional
16.7% interest in Safety Insurance on Friday 10 February 2006, taking its existing 21.6%
shareholding, acquired in October 1998, to 38.3%. :

The Group is now seeking to further increase its interest through a general tender offer
to all Safety Insurance shareholders. The tender-documentis to be delivered to Safety
Insurance shareholders and published on the Stock Exchange of Thailand shortly. The
outcome of the tender- process will be known over the following month. The offer price -
implies a value of approximately A$87m for 100% of the Company.

Increasing the Group’s interest in Safety Insurance-is én&fﬁé?’step towards ensuring the
Group will be a key player in fast growing Thai insurance-industry, in line with its Asian

.expansion strategy The Group has another Thai mggrer TAG Thailand (formerly Royal

& SunAlliance), which it acquired in July 2005.

About Safety Insurance

Safety Insurance, which has been listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand since 1977, is
Thailand’s 7th largest general insurer and 5th largest motor insurer and currently generates
approximately A$100m in GWP per annum. Providing predominantly motor insurance, as
well as fire, marine and other general insurance, Safety Insurance distributes its products

“through insurance agents and brokers, as well as selling direct to customers.

Yours sincerely

Anne O’Driscoll
Group Company Secretary &
Head of Investor Relations

Media inquiries: Emma Foster +61 2 9292 8929 or +61 411 013 170
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) ’ Insurance Australia
Group Limited
ABN 60 090 739 923
388 George Street
Sydney NSW 2000
Telephone 02 9292 9222
iag.com.au

8 February 2006

Manager, Company Announcements Office | ))

Australian Stock Exchange Limited

Level 4, Exchange Centre

20 Bridge Street I AG

SYDNEY NSW 2000 Insurance
Australia
Group

Dear Sir/Madam

INSURANCE AUSTRALIA GROUP LIMITED ('IAG")
ANNOUNCES CHANGES TO ITS EXECUTIVE TEAM

An announcement concerning changes in IAG’s executive team is attached for
disclosure to the market.

. ~ Yours sincerely o L
o Qm @MWU ComTE TS s
- Anne O'Driscoll T -
Group Company Secretary & ; e

=TT ~_Head of Investor Relations ' = ) ‘_'“"Af»i':-', o
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MEDIA RELEASE -~ IAG

Australia
8 February 2006 ' Group
' Insurance Australia Group Limited
ABN 60 090 739 923

388 George Street
IAG announces changes to its executive team. Sydney NSW 2000 Australia

iag.com.au

Insurance Australia Group Limited (IAG) today announced changes to its executive team
including the rotation of responsibilities for some existing executives and the promotion of two
senior managers to the executive.

[AG Chief Executive Officer, Mr Michael Hawker said the changes would ensure the talent and
depth of capability was shared across the Group, while contmumg to align executive roles to core
businesses.

The key changes include:

»0 David Issa, currently Group Execuuve Technology Services, wnll take up the role as CEO
2 _ Personal lnsurance He w11] continue to have respon51b1hty for the Group s technology
- services..
“-e-. Rick- Jackson currently CEO , Personal Insmance will take on the newly created role of
CEO, Asset Management, Reinsurance and Group Strategy.
7 & David Smith, currently CEO, IAG New Zealand, has-decided'to leave New Zealand and; asa
' ‘result IAG. Nick Hawkins, formerly “Head' of-Asset Management and- Genera] Manager -
o lGroup Fmance ‘Wwill take on the role ofCEO TAG Néw Zegland! ™" o o
" e .- Jacki Johnson currently Head of Risk Management Servxces wnll join the executive team as
CEO, Business Partnerships. o
o All other executives remain in their current positions and J ustin Breheny will join the
executive as planned in March as CEO, Asia.

“As we transition from a purely domestic organisation to an international business, we’ll continue to
evolve our executive structure to ensure we make best use of our expertise,” Mr Hawker said.

“In his new role, Rick Jackson will use his 20 years experience in underwriting, claims and financial
analysis to determine our reinsurance needs, manage our in-house asset management group and drive
our longer-term strategy.

“At the same time, David [ssa will use his expertise in technology to create product innovation and
continue to improve customer service in our personal lines business. During the past three years
David has transformed our Technology Services area and has worked closely with Personal
Insurance to introduce new initiatives such as our single customer view project which has enhanced
our understanding of our customer base and our ability to cross-sell our products and services. He’s
also had experience running financial services businesses from his time in banking.

“I’'m also delighted to announce the appointment of two internal candidates, Jacki Johnson and Nick
Hawkins, to our executive as it highlights the depth of talent in our broader management team and
our focus on succession planning and career development.
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“Both Jacki.and Nick have held several senior roles with the Group. Jacki has held senior positions
in strategy, the CGU integration project office, as Head of Organisational Effectiveness and currently
as the Head of Risk Management Services. Nick is currently Head of Asset Management & Group
Strategy and was previously the General Manager, Group Finance.”

Mr Hawker thanked David Smith for his dedication and achievements since joining IAG in 1999.
“David has made an enormous contribution to the Group, including the creation of [AG New
Zealand and the highly successful integrations of State Insurance and NZI. While we are
disappointed David is leaving the Group, we fully support his decision to leave New Zealand and
focus on his family.”

Mr Hawker said the changes were effective immediately,

IAG’s executive team is as follows. Profiles of the group executives are included in the attached fact
sheet.

Michael Hawker
CEO IAG

Justin Breheny -
CEO, Asia

e o Tony Coleman
o Nlck Hawkms . - ‘f" Chlelesk Oﬂ'oer& Group Actuary

MY B RS R [

L T “'CEO TAG New Zéaland®" . —

- U.i;fA

L — = ~ Christine McLoughlin—.
David Issa 1 Group Executive, Office of the CEO
+ CEO, Personalilnsurance = =[] _ -

FERYIE

T ‘Sam. Mostynm--‘- et

- Group Executwe Culture & Reputatlon )

..... * ‘ } )‘ ﬁ AA‘{' 2
Rlck Jackson

- CEO, Asset Management Reinsurance &
Groun Strategy

S - George Venardos
Jacki Johnson 1 Chief Financial Officer
CEO, Business Partnerships Sl

Mario Pirone

CEO, CGU
- ends -

Media Rélations ) ' . ' Iavestor Relations

Name Carolyn McCann . Name Anne O’Driscoll
Telephone 029292 9557 . Telephone 02 9292 3169

Mobile 0411 014 126 Mobile 0411012675
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